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Financial Summary
BBEE

2010 2009
—E-FF ZEETNF
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET B EE T
Segment Revenue* kA6
Construction and engineering AN M TR 3,200 3,886
Insurance and investment 1Rk RIEE 101 67
Property LIES 467 500
Food and beverages Z 8 542 435
Computer and information communication B RE BRI
technology and others N H A 1,143 925
Total 5 5,453 5,813
Segment Performance™ DERE
Construction and engineering AR M TR 155 498
Insurance and investment R MI&E 50 (236)
Property LY/ 380 (31)
Food and beverages 2R (12) (128)
Computer and information communication B R E AR
technology and others K H 20 (16)
Total W 593 87

Included share of revenue and results of associates and jointly controlled entities
BEMEBE AR RAREHERZ WERER
Included segment results and gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries

BESEXERNENBAR Z#R

SEGMENT REVENUE
2B

21%

7%
59% 67%

10% 9%

1%
8%

2%

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

PERE
(HK$ million /5 ¥ & & T)

B subsidiaries HBAT
. Associates Ef#E N\ T]
. Jointly Controlled Entities  HE{ZHI 3%

Computer and information
Food and o
Property peverages communication
L/E3 9 technology and others

i SRR AABANEREM

Construction and
engineering
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Financial Surmmary
BBHE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five years.

THAETEBEEBERAFT(ARADKENBAR (B AEBE D RNATAFREBEE=-A=1T—"HI1Ltz#&
BE REE EEREMMBERBR -
| Financials (HK$ Million) BHEEECEEFET) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 |

Total assets 48R E 7,292 8,114 8,589 7,291 6,936
Total liabilities BmaE 3,179 4,508 4,822 3,976 3,948
Total equity B 4,113 3,606 3,767 3,315 2,988
Minority interests LSRR E 376 381 445 322 267
Equity attributable to equity ARaIREFBNEL B

holders of the Company 3,737 3,225 3,322 2,993 2,721
Share capital A&

— in number (Million) -2B(AEER) 278 278 279 279 279

— in value (HK$1.25 per share) -HE(EREKL25T) 347 347 348 348 348
Revenue I % 3,934 5,196 5,569 4,665 4,335
Profit attributable to equity holders AKABIEEEE A

of the Company FEAE & 7 378 136 231 318 331

| Per Share Basis (HK$) BRAEGEE)

Earnings — Basic AR - HK 1.360 0.490  0.830 1.140 1.190
Dividends s 0.700 0.455  0.450  0.500 0.680
Net asset value B EFEE

- including minority interests - BELEIRERER 14.79 12.97 13.50 11.88 10.71

— excluding minority interests - TEELBRFEES 13.44 11.60 1191 10.73 9.75

Profit attributable to equity holders

Revenue of the Company
Wz DA RIERSE ABIEER

(HK$ Million 7% E &)

39344
oy 51% 4
oy 5560 4
ue 4665 4
ey 4335 4

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
ROTRESEARIEES

(HK$ Milion 7 & & 1)

1o I
0o YT
o LY
o7 Y

.

(HKS Million 7% & &)

o I
o) 1364

os Ty

o7 Ty

o 3314

Earnings and dividends per share

BREBARRKRE
(HKS 7&#)
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Corporate Information
TXREHN
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

¥ The ongoing recovery of the world economy
from the effects of the global financial
crisis has enabled the Group to achieve an
unprecedentedly high profit. We will cautiously

. continue to explore new opportunities that
are relevant to our skills and capabilities in
order to deliver sustainable benefits to our
lders the coming year. ”

RS eBEROE ST EEHER &
BELEUKREGHF - XA A
P BRAOLEINER  HR

5 I R AR 25 o P

On behalf of the
Board of Directors, I have great
pleasure in presenting the annual results
of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for
the fiscal year ended 31 March 2010.

During the year, we have witnessed an improvement in the global economic
climate following the severe worldwide financial crisis that unfolded in late 2008.
We are also fortunate that the impact on Hong Kong and Mainland China has
proved to be less serious than it was in many other parts of the world. As a result
of the lesser impact on Hong Kong, the Group has been able to consolidate its
position and achieved an unprecedentedly high profit. In view of the Group’s
strong financial position, the Board has decided to declare a final dividend per
share of HK$0.55.

AANERREZEMAZIETBEREEARQFATARA ) REME
ARA(FBERIAEEDBE-_FT-FTF_A=-+—"HLMREFENESF

BE_ZT N\FFREBEEZRLBUECRBEE  FR2ARFRAREES
REBRBEHRIBHRE - FEH  2HEeRMEREFTERPE AU ERK
VRETTNEREMBEREE - ERUEEZXERD  AKEHE
NBEEMA > WEHFBAELEARER G - ERAKERENH
Bk  EFERESMIKELB055T 2 RPME -
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We took advantage of favourable market conditions to dispose of our
interests in two major property developments in Mainland China.
These were the Xiling Project, a commercial and residential project in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, in March, and Huaqiao Plaza in Hefei,
Anhui Province, in April. Both of these transactions were concluded on
favourable terms and at a fortunate time, as they were entered into before
the Mainland government introduced new measures to cool the property
market. The disposal of the Shenzhen Xiling Project was completed in
April, and the Hefei Huaqiao Plaza project is expected to be completed
in July this year. The Group is maintaining a bullish outlook about
the long-term prospects for the Mainland property sector, despite the
government’s short-term measures to control the risk of it overheating,
and we will continue to look for opportunities to expand our property
portfolio there.

The Group foresees that the prospects for the building construction and
engineering services sector will improve as economic conditions continue
to pick up in Hong Kong, and we are well positioned to reap the benefits
of this recovery.

Both communities and governments around the world are becoming
increasingly concerned about the environment. We believe this concern
will continue to open up fresh opportunities for our environmental
engineering division to increase its business further. We will leverage
on our experience and capabilities in this area to bid for more new
environmental engineering projects in both the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong.

In general, the global economic recovery looks to be sustainable,
although certain regions and sectors may be more vulnerable to a double
dip than others. The Group will therefore remain cautious in our outlook
and plans for the year ahead. We will continue to focus on exploring
and developing new business opportunities that are particularly relevant
to our skills and capabilities, which are less susceptible to economic
cycles, and which will generate a stable positive ongoing cash flow that
will deliver sustainable benefits to our shareholders, customers and
employees.

In conclusion, I would like, on behalf of the Board, to thank
the Company’s management and staff for their hard work and
professionalism during the past year. Their superb contributions have
helped us to surmount the many short-term difficulties we have faced,
and they have also made it possible for us to create firm and enduring
foundations that will allow us to realise our goals and strategies for long-
term success.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman
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The Group’s consolidated revenue decreased by 24.3% during the
year ended 31 March 2010, down from HK$5,196 million in 2008/09
to HK$3,934 million in the year under review; whereas the total
segment revenue declined by 6.2%, from HK$5,813 million in 2008/09
to HK$5,453 million in this fiscal year. However, its profit increased
significantly during the year, up from HK$7.7 million to HK$455 million.
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company also surged to
HK$378 million, compared to HK$136 million in the previous fiscal year.

The reduction in the Group’s consolidated revenue was mainly
attributable to a fall in the revenue of its Construction and Engineering
segment in Macau. Furthermore, the deconsolidation of the lifts and
escalators business following the completion of the disposal by the Group
of a further 2% interest in its 51% holding to Toshiba Elevator and
Building Systems Corporation (“TELC”) in December 2009, and of the
pipe technologies business in Europe and Australia in July 2008, also led
to a decrease in the Group’s consolidated revenue, comparing with that
in 2008/09.

Meanwhile, the stabilisation of the global financial markets led to a
significant recovery in the market value of the Group’s investment
portfolio, and a significant improvement in its profit for the year. The
Group recorded a revaluation gain on its investment properties of
HK$180 million (2009: a revaluation loss of HK$99.6 million), as well
as a net gain on its financial investments (excluding derivative financial
instruments) of HK$20.4 million (2009: a net loss of HK$171 million)
in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The Group’s profit also reflects an improvement in the Construction and
Engineering segment’s results.

The Group operated five core business segments during the past
year, namely: (1) Construction and Engineering, (2) Insurance and
Investment, (3) Property, (4) Food and Beverages, and (5) Computer
and Information Communication Technology and Others. Following the
adoption of a new financial reporting standard, information concerning
these segments is presented in the consolidated financial statements
on the same basis that the Group uses for internal reporting purposes.
The segment revenue includes the revenue of the Company and its
subsidiaries, plus the Group’s share of the revenue of its associates and
jointly controlled entities on a proportionate consolidated basis. The
segment results have also been revised to include the Group’s share of the
results of associates and jointly controlled entities.

Earnings per share rose from HK$0.49 in 2008/09 to HK$1.36 for the
year ended 31 March 2010. In view of the Group’s strong financial
position and achieved an unprecedentedly high profit, the Board has
decided to declare a final dividend of HK$0.55 per share.

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

Although the revenue of the Group’s Construction and Engineering
segment declined by 17.7%, from HK$3,886 million in 2008/09 to
HK$3,200 million in the year under review, it turned a loss of HK$280
million into a profit of HK$130 million during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
= f_?é /E_E' J_j af & fﬁ,

The revenue of both the building construction and electrical and
mechanical divisions substantially decreased, due to a reduction in their
business in Macau. However, the segment recorded a significant sharing
of its revenue from the TELC lifts and escalators manufacturing plants in
Shanghai and Shenyang, Mainland China, in which the Group has 20%
interest.

The considerable improvement of the segment results was mainly
due to the deconsolidation of the loss-making pipe rehabilitation and
construction arm in Europe and Australia, and a substantial reduction in
the provision for project losses in its building construction division.

In view of the slowdown in Macau’s previously booming real estate,
casino and hotel industries, the Group has been shifting its focus back
to Hong Kong. Major projects with a total contract sum of more than
HK$2,128 million were secured in Hong Kong and Singapore during the
year under review. They included:

a. Construction of the Hong Kong Community College of City
University Building at the City University of Hong Kong;

b.  Construction of a development at the junction of Plover Cove
Road and Po Wu Road, Tai Po;

C. Construction of a residential development at Tsing Fat Lane, Siu
Lam, Tuen Mun, NT;

d.  Replacement and rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains in
East Kowloon;

e. A pipe technology project at Central, Wan Chai Bypass — FEHD
Whitfield Depot re-provisioning works;

f. Term contracts for upgrading more than 700 lifts and escalators
with the Singapore Housing Development Board; and

g. Expansion of Tai Po Water Treatment Works and Ancillary Raw
Water and Fresh Water Transfer Facilities.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Following the recovery of the global financial markets during the second
and third quarters of 2009, and the net gain on the Group’s financial
investments, its Insurance and Investment segment achieved a segment
profit of HK$50 million during the year under review, compared with a
loss of HK$236 million the previous year. In view of the current market
volatility, the Group will maintain a cautious approach in its investment
activities during the coming months.

Although this segment’s total revenue increased from HK$66.4 million
to HK$101 million, insurance underwriting has always been a fiercely
competitive business, and Chevalier’s insurance business has not been
immune to the conditions that prevailed in this sector during the
year. Even so, the Group will maintain the size of its entire insurance
operation at a competitive level, in order to keep it in an efficient and
effective position to take advantage of the opportunities that will arise
when the Hong Kong economy improves further.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE i R 7

PROPERTY

The Property segment revenue declined slightly by 6.6%, from HK$500
million in 2008/09 to HK$467 million in the year ended 31 March 2010.
However, its profitability increased from a loss of HK$31.6 million in
2008/09 to a profit of HK$380 million during the year. Lower revenue
from properties developed by jointly controlled entities was recognised
during the year under review than in the previous financial year. On the
other hand, rising property values in Hong Kong and Mainland China
resulted in the Group recording an upward adjustment of HK$192
million on its investment properties and properties for sale in the year
under review, compared to a downward revaluation of HK$126 million
during 2008/09. The property market’s recovery also led to a rebound
in the Group’s share of the results of associates and jointly controlled
entities, from a loss of HK$10.1 million in 2008/09 to a profit of HK$41.3
million in the year under review.

During the year, the Group focused primarily on property developments
in Beijing, Chengdu, Changchun, Shenzhen and Hefei in Mainland
China. Taking advantage of favourable opportunities, it arranged for the
sale of its interests in projects located in Xiling, Shenzhen, and Hefei,
Anhui Province. The disposal of the Xiling Project was completed on
9 April 2010, and that of the Hefei Huaqiao Plaza is expected to be
completed during the first half of the 2010/11 financial year. The cash
proceeds from the sale of these two projects will increase the Group’s
ability and flexibility to make other timely and desirable investments
when suitable opportunities arise.

The Group’s current projects in Beijing, Chengdu and Changchun have
a total site area of over 834,000 sq. m. Other than the Phase II of the
Beijing project which is now in the pre-sale stage and expected to have
contribution to the Group in the coming year, the remaining projects
are in the development phase. Given the positive outlook for Mainland
China’s economy, the Group will continue to look for chances to
acquire premium property development projects and add to its property
portfolio there.

The performances of the Group’s hotel management operations, cold
storage and logistics, and property management divisions remained
stable, and all of them made a steady profit.

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

Because of the full consolidation of Igor’s performance, the Food and
Beverages segment revenue increased by 24.6% to HK$542 million
during the year under review, compared with HK$435 million in
2008/09. However, after absorbing an impairment of HK$29.2 million
in goodwill for the purchase of the equity interest in Igor’s, as well as a
HK$7.2 million amortisation of the trademark of Pacific Coffee starting
from the financial year 2009/10, the segment recorded a loss of HK$12.3
million. This compares with a loss of HK$128 million (after absorbing
impairment of goodwill and fixed assets of HK$134 million) during the
previous year.

As of 31 March 2010, Pacific Coffee operated 84 coffeehouses (2009: 81).
Of these, 77 in Hong Kong (2009: 70), 4 in Singapore (2009: 6), and 3 in
Mainland China (2009: 5). The Group’s own teams operate and manage
all of these outlets, which are located in core commercial districts, prime
shopping and residential areas, tourist centres and transport hubs. Pacific
Coffee also made progress in its franchise operations during the year,
with franchise stores opening in Macau, Foshan (Mainland China) and
Malaysia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
= f_?é /E_E' J_j af & fﬁ,

Igor’s operated 35 outlets as of 31 March 2010 (2009: 30). They consisted
of 10 restaurants, 15 restaurant-bars, 7 “Wildfire” chain stores, and 3
specialty kiosks (2009: 10, 12, 8, and nil respectively), and they were
located in prime business locations in Hong Kong, as well as in leading
shopping malls. Igor’s also operated a central kitchen called “Blu
Catering”.

Pacific Coffee’s international franchise activities grew steadily during the
year under review, and it has received commitments from its franchise
partners concerning the opening of more outlets in the coming years.
Pacific Coffee is therefore set to continue developing its franchise
business further, and it will increase awareness of its brand on the global
scene.

Given the difficult environment in which the Food and Beverages
segment operated during the year, the Group was cautious about
selecting new locations for expanding its food and beverages business
in Hong Kong. Looking ahead, it will strengthen the performance of its
existing outlets by investing in marketing, operational efficiency, and
improvements to the quality of its food and service. It will also continue
to seize favourable opportunities to open new outlets.

COMPUTER AND INFORMATION COMMUNICATION

TECHNOLOGY (“IT”) AND OTHERS

The segment revenue grew by 23.6%, from HK$925 million in 2008/09 to
HKS$1,143 million during the year under review. The main reason for the
increase was the strong performance of the car dealerships of the Group’s
associates in Chengdu (Mainland China).

The revenue and profit of the IT business decreased during the year,
largely due to a reduction in purchases by corporate customers since the
global economic downturn began. Individual consumers have likewise
become more price-sensitive and cautious about spending their money.
To satisfy customer demand, a number of low-cost netbook computers
and new notebook models were introduced, which boosted its sales
volume.

The revenues of the network solution and document solution businesses
both fell, because corporate customers were focusing more on low-end
products at competitive prices. Meanwhile, the trend for customers to
reduce their expenses affected the performances of the Group’s telephone
maintenance businesses in Hong Kong and Thailand, resulting in a slight
fall in their contributions during the year. However, the Group foresees
that its sales to the corporate sector will pick up again in the near future,
and it has a series of new models in the pipeline to take advantage of this
recovery.

The car dealership business of the Group’s associates in Sichuan Province
made good progress. It currently operates four showrooms selling
Dongfang Nissan, FAW Toyota and Zotye automobiles in Chengdu.
Both their volume and turnover increased significantly compared to last
year. The growing disposable incomes of Mainland citizens and their
increasing demand for automobiles lead the Group to believe that this
business unit has excellent growth potential in the coming years. The
associates intend to open more showrooms in Chengdu, and actively seek
out opportunities in other cities of Mainland China.

RZZE—FF=HA=+—H " Igors &£ =354
ERH(ZZETNEFE :30[) BEHEE
15F B BB E - 7/ [Wildfire | 3 85 JE & 30 &
BNREF(ZFZTNF - DRI/ - 12/
SERE)  2HMAMREBZRZLOBER R
FEZBEYEIS o Igors NS & — 78 Al Blu
Catering] 2 F REF 5 °

Pacific Coffee Z B3 2 /R B R B EAF N
EEER Iaﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% F*
RENFFIRE Z 54 o Bt » Pacific Coffee &
BEE  SPERABHFELER  UReH
mEZBEBRMEE -

E 9IS iwgﬁ“*Zﬁékﬁﬁ@'$%@
%E%\%EE/ BEREBHE - RE
B BPERNREREHEELLERE LR
HRBEFHZRR - WA MENERmER
BER BHELEEMNEEBRRMIEM

ERREABARNK(EMARED R
/\fm

oz WEE T )\ EAFENEEL2S
1@ HIN23.6% % 0] BRF B A S 11,4318 7T ©
EAEENETZERAAAEERFRHKEHZ
HERNRIMTBEREEBERERY -

BB BRI Bos IR F A AL
Do ETERARBEREEBETBNANR X
B &R D MAﬁ%%%EEE%'

BHERERER A"AMERPHER AR
BIEHLZBEKA 2/ N ERDHE K R
FRELERI  EMEDHE -

MRBANRRNERRDRER 2 WmH
ERRY  WIHHREEREFEINERE
ABSF N EmER -MA TP
MEBBHAEEREBRRE 2 EREBEER
BRABRTE <REEBRFAZER
TR - R AREEHY CXEPH
HEREHAKE/REN  NEEKLE
ERERY D EBHED — RIIFER

AEBERTEIENBERR Z ABEREE
%ﬁ@%m ﬁ%% %ﬂ“@ﬁﬁﬂi

%%@E&A%@ﬁ?£¢K%?M°W%
™R A B AR INA K E )T B HE R

ft  SAKEHEEZEFEMRNAKEAFE
ﬁTQ?E o % HHEE A R A ER B
EQWWI I A& AR 7 A B A 3 L 45 T
F&%

—Z —FTEEH | Annual Report 2010 13



Management Profile
EEE/E

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Executive Director, Chairman, aged 74, is the founder of Chevalier
Group since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited (“CPHL”), a public company listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also a director
of certain companies of the Group. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Towngas China Company Limited and a Non-
Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr
Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business
Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an
Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996
and 1997, he was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board
of Directors by Nanjing University and was conferred an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively.
Dr Chow also serves actively in a number of educational advisory
committees and gives substantial support to the aforementioned two
Universities in Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology in areas of researches and developments. He is also a
Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor
of Sichuan Union University in the Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow
was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social Science
by City University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public
services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron
of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as
the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in
2001. He also actively participates in various professional bodies and
associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the
Founding President of International Ningbo Merchants Association
Co Ltd, the President of The Japan Society of Hong Kong and the
Permanent Honorary President of the National Taiwan University-HK
Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions to local and
overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable decorations
from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan and especially the Order of the
Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008. Furthermore,
Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the Government
of the HKSAR (“HKSAR Government”) in 2004. He is the father of Mr
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Executive Director, Vice Chairman and Managing Director, aged 60,
joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is an Executive Director of CPHL,
a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director
of certain companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and
Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman
of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Association
of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of
Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and
Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(“CPPCC”). Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business development
and is responsible for the strategic planning and management of the
operations of lifts and escalators, building construction, building
materials and supplies, aluminium works, electrical and mechanical
services, civil engineering, property development as well as investment
projects of the Chevalier Group.
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Mr TAM Kwok Wing

Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director, aged 49, joined Chevalier
Group in 1986. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group.
Apart from managing the operation of insurance underwriting together
with property investment and development, property management, cold
storage and logistics and travel agency businesses, he is also responsible
for legal affairs and corporate communications of Chevalier Group. Mr
Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing University of the
Mainland China, a Master of Arts Degree from City University of Hong
Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a Fellow Member
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the U.K. and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a member
of the CPPCC, Changchun. Presently, he also serves as an Honorary
Secretary of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau, the Chairman
of Publication Committee and a Council Member of The Hong Kong
Association of Property Management Companies as well as the Vice
Chairman in the Education Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.
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Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Executive Director, aged 36, joined Chevalier Group in 2000 and is
the Managing Director of CPHL, a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr
Chow holds a degree in Master of Engineering from the University of
Oxford, U.K. He is currently a General Committee Member of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of
the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber
of Hong Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Committee Member of the
Shanghai CPPCC and a Committee Member of the Advisory Council on
the Environment and Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He is the son of Dr Chow
Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and CPHL.
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Mr HO Chung Leung

Executive Director, aged 60, joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He is also
a director of certain companies of the Group. He is responsible for the
management of Chevalier Group’s accounting and treasury activities.
Mr Ho is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

fAIRREE

HOEF - BAEFATE R-ANEFMA
HI&E - - RABAKEBEETRARZES °
MEETZAEEEETRENG T MER
E2H - MAEERERBRBFARGHNAE
ERGBRBLEEFMAGEE -

—Z —FTEEH | Annual Report 2010 15



Management Profile
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since 1998.

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph O.B.E., J.P. [ B R 18 + O.B.E,, J.P.
Aged 68, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director HENT N\ R_ZEEZE_EWZTEAEEARD
in 2002 and a member of the Audit Committee and chairman of the AIZBYIERTEES UAEZEZEEKE
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is the Chairman of FEHEWNEZESZXF BAFABPEIREEAR
Joseph Chow & Partners Ltd., an independent non-executive director & ERAFIZER REEBEAE AT B IE
chairman of PYI Corporation Limited, an independent non-executive HITEEETITRE MNEEBREELATANLESY
director of Build King Holdings Limited and Road King Infrastructure HEERARBIUIENTEE T ASEE
Limited as well as a non-executive director of Wheelock Properties WEBEARIERNITES - BHEABEN T+
Limited. He has over 40 years of experience in the planning, design and FRER R -FEAMEEEEE R
construction of many major engineering projects in the U.K., Middle HALREEZEATIRERE &R REEES
East, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He is currently the Chairman BEETAGAMEERFTEMATEHHER
of the Construction Workers Registration Authority and Hon. Senior Kok B RER RELEEBSIEME
Superintendent of the Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was gk  BEITREMEME  FEZHA K
previously the President of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, ZRERBLERARABITIZEREELZE S
Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong ZER UWEERAEEZEGREBRER
Examinations and Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole BZEE -
Eastern Hospital Governing Committee as well as a Member of the Hong
Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.
Mr SUN Kai Dah, George BRELRE
Aged 70, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and RHE+t+m R-_ZEZENE=A=+—B#%
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the ZEAEARRNRZBYIERTES WAEZ
Company on 31 March 2006. He has extensive experience in business ZESNFNEZES I KE - FHEZEER
management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company EEEE® o WmA—TEMR—Lt/\EK -
incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He has VWHREBRMNEEEHETE FTH AT -
retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer of Zindart Limited Zindart Limited 2 Bl 8% A ° 5 — L L\ F &
RZARTTIARE — 5 -
Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles J.P. BEIS LD
Aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director, BER+—mB R_ZZTN\FUA—BEZ
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration FEEBRATIZBIYIIERNTTES W ABEKES
Committee of the Company on 1 April 2008. Mr Yang is a partner of BEeTELTEMNEESRKE - HBEERA
S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising firm of Accountants and a member ZHBREIMITZAERA W AREEH &
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales and the BiMEFetmAaekkdiestmaese
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Yang obtained 8 o G ER — N\ = F @ 2 Cass Business
a Master Degree in Business Administration from Cass Business School School A TR EEBE L& - HEER -
London in 1983. Mr Yang was appointed as Justice of the Peace by T E ¢Z§i§ﬁ§ BEEHRREETAEKFHL -
the HKSAR Government in 2004. He was selected as “Outstanding FE  KESRAESLTAS[ 4 H 25TED
Accountant Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public AKE| - HIBARILEBRHBEER - HBEER
Accountants in 2004. He is currently a member of Hubei CPPCC. Mr N8 TAAS FBELKHI»EZE
Yang is the Chairman of Admissions, Budget and Allocations Committee eXF KN AEERFTEHZEELZES
and a Director of The Community Chest. He is also a member of the FEFHBIEcEEE -
HKSAR Chinese Medicine Council and Partnership Fund For The
Disadvantaged.
Dr KO Chan Gock, William SEEBL
Aged 64, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company WESNTHE R_FTZNFOA-—B%
on 1 April 2009. Dr Ko graduated from The University of Hong Kong in ZEREIRAZEARITEST - IE LR
1968. He has served in the government of Hong Kong for more than 38 —NANFEERBEERE - REWBENRZ
years, having worked in a wide range of departments including the Water BEEBRFMFABE=1T/N\F  BEKS
Supplies Department, the Highways Department, the Civil Engineering Z BHRE ITAIERHARERIBE - &
and Development Department and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was NRZEZE—FRZEARKBEER "ET
appointed as the Director of Water Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil RZEZLF-HAEREAKE -

service in January 2007.
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Schedule of the Major Properties
FEYF*

AEBZEBZYEFINMAT ¢

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () HERE BRAY%E
FOR OWN USE
Approximate The Group’s
Location Usage gross floor area Lease term interest
i B JizEes BEHEEAH ROFH rEBAGER
sq.ft. L5 R %
Hong Kong
B8
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise and 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and carpark o B
one-third interest in MAERIFES
201 car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
BEERMAE N\
HEI@mEdP L+
—ZE2-——Z2-"Z-N=E"
TAEZ+=Z8RK
H=9—tm 2 EEA201E
Ground Floor of Block A, Industrial 15,000 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, T A H
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
NBEBIEKET TR
18E TEROAEM T
Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T A H
Fanling, New Territories
AN BLERLZRBE=5
H+-BEARKE
Chevalier Engineering Service Centre, Industrial 177,500 Medium 100
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay T % o Hf
REEHE %
H+-TERSEH O
124-130 Kwok Shui Road Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
Kwai Chung, New Territories REREE M Ef
#5720 B I 1R
—BZTHEZE—-—BA="T5%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout Residential 9,500 Medium 100
B L E BB R *= A
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
AIRE =58 T= £ Hf
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Schedule of the Major Properties
FTEYEE

Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis

(UREAMZEFERAE)

Chevalier International Holdings Limited | H TR &£ B & R A 7

MoERRINE

(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () H#E®RE BRAWE )
FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate The Group’s
Location Usage gross floor area Lease term interest
2 Jizkes BEHEENH RAFEH ~EBAEER
sq.ft. £ R %
The Whole of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and Industrial 163,000 Medium 49
5th Floors, Factory Units Nos. I A
2205 and 2207 on 22nd Floor,
and 8 car parking spaces of
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre,
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FREEELTHE
—HEZtEZElE+NRE
ERTEFD
- = AkEERE-
T+ ZFTRRK
TR EREFEEUSHE
Singapore
¥ 0 3
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 81,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T KA
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,  Industrial 17,000 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 T% KA
Canada
nZx
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Ontario, Office, workshop and 20,200 Freehold 100
MIF 2M38 carpark for KA EERE
automobile dealership
RESBEE
WMRE  THR
BE5
14535-14583, Yonge Street, Office, workshop and 25,000 Freehold 100
Aurora, Ontario carpark for Sk A EERE
automobile dealership
RESBEE
WMRE THR
BE5
838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C. Hotel 66,000 Freehold 90
i KA FE
USA
xH
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 91
South San Francisco, CA IT% /8B KA EHE
Thailand
HH
No. 540 Bamrungmuang Road, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
Debsirin Sub-district, showroom KA EERE




Schedule of the Major Properties

TEYR%
(I) HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES () H#E®RE BRAWE )
FOR OWN USE (continued)
Approximate The Group’s
Location Usage gross floor area Lease term interest
1 B A% BEEBROR ZHFH FAEEAEERS
sq.ft. £ R %
Mainland China
HE A it
355 Minquan Road, Xinyang City, Hotel 105,000 Medium 70
_ Henan Province B & A
AEEEETREBE=ZRIAR
Sha Long Road, Sha Tong Village, Hotel and office building 191,000 Long 100
Houjie Town, Dongguan City BERPERNE K H
REMEEHBEDEND &K
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, Guangzhou, /N 5
Guangdong Province
BERARERMNTRILES
TNE=ZNE
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai _carpark N = A
EBTHRER B — </ FE mEkiEES
TR
(II) PROPERTIES FOR SALE I FEWE
Approximate The Group’s
Location gross floor area”  Lease term interest
o B BEEBENY ROFH REEMEER
sq.ft. ¥R %
Hong Kong
Charming Garden — 2 shop units and 44 car parking spaces, 2,339 Medium 100
8—16 Hoi Ting Road, Mongkok West, Kowlopn N Fh Hf
NEFATREBEBN\E /]S REEBC2ME M= E (14418
Beverly Garden — 3 shop units and 273 car parking spaces, 11,753 Medium 100
__1 Tong Ming Street, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories H A
FABERFAG R ERCEMOMERFEM273E
Glorious Garden — 5 shop units and 163 car parking spaces, 5,765 Medium 100
N 45 Lung Mun Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories N A Hf
FARHEPIREPIE T+ RS = LB w518 KX F E 163 1A
Mainland China
HE A it
Chevalier Tower — 10 residential apartment units 15,214 Medium 49
and 150 car parking spaces, No. 8, West Binjiang Road, dr HA

]injigng District, Chengdu, Sichuan
PO A ER 8T [ B )L A Bk N\ SRt R R LS B PIEE B L
101 % 1= & 7 1501

* Excluding car parking spaces

TEEEEN

—Z —FTEEH | Annual Report 2010 19



Schedule of the Major Properties
FTEYEE

(IIT) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

20

() BREAPYE

Estimated
gross floor The
Stage of Expected date of Approximate area after Group’s
Location completion completion Major usage site area completion® interest
WL THREEE REME
b B EE BREXIBH FEAR HEAYH HEEROR Frit ez
sq.ft. FHR sq.ft. FHR %
Mainland China
FE R
Shenzhen Luohu  In progress 2010 Residential and 161,000 1,295,000 46
District TRETHR _ZE—ZF commercial
RIYIZE 9 = EEhkEE
Chengdu Jinjiang In progress Late 2010 Hotel and 49,500 237,000 49
District TERETHZZE—ZFFK commercdial
P #B 87 )T 1= BIE K%
Beijing Huairou In progress 2011 Villa, residential and 2,078,000 1,484,000 44
District TRETHR T ——F commercial
ERERR ME - EEREE
Hefei Luyang In progress 2011 Hotel/serviced 222,000 1,455,000 51
District TRETH —_ZE——F apartment,
ERERRE residential and
commercial
BIE BRAE R
"B EER
[EES
Chengdu Shuangliu In progress 2012 Villa, residential 1,390,000 1,639,100 49
County TRETH ZE—ZF and commercial
P D & O 5 AE - EEREE
Changchun Luyuan In progress 2014 Residential and 5,207,000 7,491,000 96
District TRETH _T—NF commercial
RE&ER ER=PSEEES

Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, resettlement
buildings, preserved buildings and clubhouses

TaEMTE FES

H &

RBEE EEREE REZEREHZ
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased by 24.3% or HK$1,262 million from
HKS$5,196 million in last year to HK$3,934 million in this year. The
decrease was mainly attributed to the decline in revenue from the
Construction and Engineering segment after the completion of a further
disposal of 2% interest in the lifts and escalators business carried out
by Chevalier (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (the “CHK Group”) in
December 2009 and a disposal of 75% interest in the pipe technologies
business in Europe and Australia (the “CPT Group”) in July 2008 leading
the businesses being accounted for as associates since then as well as the
decrease in revenue contribution from Macau projects.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased 146.2% to HK$847 million for the year ended
31 March 2010 and gross profit margin rose substantially from 6.6%
in 2009 to 21.5% in 2010. This significant improvement was due to the
reduction in project losses of building construction division and the
deconsolidation of overseas loss-making pipe rehabilitation business.

Other income/(expenses), net

There was a net other income of HK$26.7 million (2009: net other
expenses of HK$219 million) recorded in this fiscal year. The
improvement was because of a significant net loss of HK$233 million
recorded in the Group’s trading investment portfolio and derivative
financial instruments last year but only a small loss of HK$5.1 million
this year due to the recovery in the investment markets. The loss on
investment was compensated by the net other income mainly derived by
the Group from its associates and jointly controlled entities for the year.

Other gains, net

Other gains, net, excluding gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$32.2
million (2009: gain of HK$778 million), was increased by HK$563
million. The increase was mainly attributable to the recovery of the
investment market which brought to a fair value increment in investment
properties of HK$180 million (2009: fair value reduction of HK$99.6
million) and a net gain of HK$48.3 million (2009: an impairment loss
of HK$10.6 million) on available-for-sale investments recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the year. Besides, due to the
appreciation of foreign currencies against the functional currencies of the
Group entities, exchange gain of HK$14.2 million (2009: exchange loss
of HK$36.5 million) was recorded. In view of the deteriorated market
condition in food and beverages business and other businesses last year,
impairment on goodwill of HK$129 million was made for the year ended
31 March 2009 while only HK$29.2 million was made this year.

Selling and distribution costs

The full consolidation of the selling and distribution costs of Igor’s this
year due to the Group’s acquisition of the remaining 51% of the equity
interest in Igor’s in March 2009 contributed to the increase in selling and
distribution costs.

Financial Review
B 7% o) g

meawkEx

W

N8 B UK 25 B 2 F B 51,9618 TOR 4 24.3% 3k
BEDRETLEARFE 2 EM3934B T o B
LPEFERHNBEREWK ITRESBNKRER
Lo TTERAEE—SEAF+ - AERE—
SHERELT(BEB)BER A LENEB QA
(TELtBFEEE]MECENFAREREERS
720w HEZZEENFE+AHERE
N KGRI (TCPTERE ) M98 8 Bl 2 75%4 25
SEBARABE AT - AKRFIIAB MUK
mEERD -

EF

HE-_ZT-ZF=ZA=+—BILEE " F
F 2 AN 146.2% % 76 #8478 T - £ FI XK 8
BT NFERNCHABAE — T —FFH

215% - ERABZFRRARNBTRENMZ
HEEBERD  ARBINEHEMZEBE
EXBIBHEE AR -

HiBA (XH) » F8
AUYBFEHSEMBEAFELEEL08
T(ZEZTNAF X HFREB219E
)  BERETARAEEEFRESRE
MEMTEMB TAZERERFEEE233
B HEERREMSER  AFERER
EREREES 08T -REBEAAEEZ
Ba R RARENERAEENHE M WS
FREAFTHEH o

Hp s - B8
Higss - FRTEBREENB AR 2 W

BHE320BTL(ZZEZNF - WmBE778
Bo)EmssefEr - BB RIITEEH
RIEMBSEHETHNICENEZ A L EH N
BEISET(ZEZENF  RAERDEE
9,960 J0) M F AR A W R ER 2 7 #
HEREZ W FEBE4L830BTL(ZTEZTN
F  RERBIEBE1,00087T) TR - tboh - A
RIOMNBREBNE I EKIZE - WG
EAWNTEEILQRB T (ZEENFEELE
BAK3 0B IL) HREFEREBHBLE
MEHzTREE  SHE_TTNLF=A
Z+—HALFEZEHERERBE129ET
MAEEE A BE29208 T °

HERKHRE
HRAEER =TT NF = A K HBIgorsth T
51%HE &+ #llgor's/N F € 2 5 & R AL $H A AR
ERBAK  SHE RLHKAEM -

—Z —ZEEH | Annual Report 2010 21



Financial Review
BR[Ol

Share of results of associates

The Group’s share of results of associates improved substantially to
HK$54.5 million (2009: HK$7.5 million). The increase was mainly due
to the share of profit of the CHK Group after it has become an associate
of the Group and the first contribution from Toshiba lifts and escalators
manufacturing plants in Shanghai (“TCE”) and Shenyang (“STE”).
The increase in fair value of an associate’s investment property also
contributed to the increase in share of results of associates.

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

The Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities recorded
profit of HK$23.0 million (2009: loss of HK$11.4 million). The profit
was mainly attributable to the sales of shopping arcade of a property
development project in Chengdu.

Finance costs, net

Finance costs, net reduced significantly by 53.8% or HK$37.6 million.
The substantial repayment in bank borrowings and the redemption of
convertible bonds during the year contributed to the reduction in finance
costs.

Income tax (expense)/credit

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2010 was derived from
the current tax expense of HK$53.2 million (2009: HK$28.2 million) and
the deferred tax expenses of HK$40.6 million (2009: credit of HK$32.4
million). Increase in deferred tax provision mainly arose from the
increase in valuation of the Group’s investment properties.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Increase in profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was mainly attributable to the decrease in loss of construction and
engineering projects, recognition of fair value gain on investment
properties and a net gain on financial investments and derivative
instruments recognised in the consolidated income statement despite the
decrease in gain on disposal of subsidiaries.

Profit attributable to minority interests

Profit attributable to minority interests was HK$77.7 million (2009: loss
of HK$127.9 million) represented mainly the share on net profit of the
CHK Group by minority shareholder until the deconsolidation of the
CHK Group, loss attributable to minority shareholder of Pacific Coffee
loss was decreased and CPT Group was accounted for as an associate
during the year.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments

During the year, the Group transferred certain land and buildings
from property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments to
investment properties at fair value of HK$308 million. Most of these
properties were rented out to the CHK Group by the Group companies
and thus reclassified to investment properties upon the deconsolidation
of the CHK Group. In addition, the Group’s investment properties were
revalued upward by HK$180 million due to the upward adjustment in
property market value.
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Interests in associates

In addition to the impact of the share of results of associates and
dividends received from associates, interests in associates has been
increased by HK$126 million upon the disposal of 2% interest in the
CHK Group which was deconsolidated and accounted for as an associate.
Furthermore, the completion of the acquisition of 20% interest in STE
also added HK$30.5 million to the interests in associates.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

There were several major transactions during the year affecting the
interests in jointly controlled entilies: i) capital injection by the Group to
a jointly controlled entity engaged in property development projects in
Chengdu of HK$156 million; and ii) the signing of agreements to dispose
of the property development projects in Shenzhen and Heifei, upon
which, assets of HK$23.2 million and HK$150 million respectively were
transferred to disposal groups classified as held for sale.

Properties under development
Increase in properties under development of HK$122 million represented
the costs incurred for a property redevelopment project in Changchun.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities

In relation to the disposal of the Citiway Group and Smartco Group,
both purchasers agreed to take up the repayment obligation of the loans
from the Group to the disposal groups of HK$90.4 million and HK$135
million respectively. Such amounts were transferred from the amounts
due from jointly controlled entities to assets of disposal groups classified
as held for sale.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Other than movement arising from normal operations, the consideration
receivables for the disposal of 49% interest in the CHK Group and
75% interest in the CPT Group amounting to HK$192 million as at 31
March 2009 were settled during the year, which led to the net decrease in
debtors, deposits and prepayments by 29.8% to HK$840 million.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2010, bank balances and cash reduced by 55.7% to
HK$767 million (2009: HK$1,732 million). The reduction was mainly
contributed by the payment on the redemption of convertible bonds
and net repayment of bank borrowings contributed to such decrease. At
the end of the reporting period, 73.3% (2009: 72.5%) of bank balances
and cash was denominated in Hong Kong and United States dollar (“US
dollar”) while 18.5% (2009: 18.4%) was denominated in Renminbi.

Assets/liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale

As at 31 March 2009, assets/liabilities of disposal group classified as
held for sale were 100% of assets and liabilities of the CHK Group upon
disposal of its 49% interest. Upon further disposed of its 2% interest in
December 2009, the CHK Group has been deconsolidated and accounted
for as an associate by the Group.
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On 22 March 2010 and 3 April 2010, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreements to dispose of its entire interests in two property
development projects in Shenzhen (the “Citiway Group”) and Hefei
(the “Smartco Group”) respectively. The disposal of the Citiway Group
was completed on 9 April 2010 while the disposal of the Smartco Group
shall take place between 30 June 2010 and 10 July 2010. The assets and
liabilities of both disposal groups were presented as assets/liabilities of
disposal groups classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2010.

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals

Settlement of the consideration payables for the step-up acquisition of
interest in Igor’s and acquisition of interest in TCE totalling HK$181
million decreased the balance.

Bank borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)

Net repayment of bank borrowings of HK$587 million reduced the
balance by 32.7% to HK$1,207 million (2009: HK$1,794 million) as at
31 March 2010. 76.3%, 21.7% and nil (2009: 68.7%, 25.7% and 4.1%) of
the balance were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars, Renminbi
and Euro respectively. At the end of the reporting period, maturity of the
bank borrowings in respect of the portion due within one year decreased
to 39.8% (2009: 46.1%).

Convertible bonds - liability and derivative components

On 28 July 2009, all the outstanding convertible bonds were fully
redeemed and cancelled, and no further finance costs in relation to the
convertible bonds were incurred.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HKS$3,737 million (2009: HK$3,225
million), an increase of HK$512 million or 15.9% when compared with
2009. Such increase was mainly resulted from the profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$378 million, exchange
gain on translation of operations of overseas subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities of HK$87.9 million, impairment loss
on available-for-sale investments transferred to income statement of
HK$46.2 million, a rise in carrying value of available-for-sale investments
of HK$114.4 million and fair value surplus of properties upon transfer
to investment properties of HK$141.7 million offsetting by payments
of final dividends for last year totalling HK$153 million and gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investments transferred to income
statement of HK$94.5 million.

At the end of the reporting period, the decrease in bank borrowings
helped improve the total debt to equity ratio to 29.3% (2009: 61.1%),
which was expressed as a percentage of the bank and other borrowings
(representing the sum of bank borrowings, other loans and liability
component of convertible bonds) over the Group’s net assets of
HK$4,113 million (2009: HK$3,606 million). The net debt to equity
ratio slightly decreased to 10.7% (2009: 11.8%), which was expressed as
a percentage of the net borrowings (representing the total debt net of the
sum of bank balances and cash and structured deposits) over the Group’s
net assets. The ratio of total debt to total assets of HK$7,292 million
(2009: HK$8,114 million) also dropped from 27.2% last year to 16.6% as
at 31 March 2010.
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BORROWINGS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings descended to HK$1,207 million (2009: HK$2,205 million)
because of the net repayment of bank borrowings and the redemption of
the 2.125% convertible bonds of HK$450 million during the year. Cash
and deposits at bank, including fixed and structured deposits, decreased
to HK$767 million (2009: HK$1,777 million). Net borrowings (total
borrowings after cash) thus slightly increased to HK$440 million (2009:
HK$428 million). Most of the borrowings carried floating interest rates
based on Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rates, with small portions based
on Prime Rate.

Finance costs for the year were substantially cut to HK$36.9 million
(2009: HK$86.9 million), represented a decrease of 57.5% as compared
with 2009.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group’s treasury activities are centralised in order to
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans,
the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate
level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND INTEREST RATES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group has arranged foreign currency swap
contracts amounting to HK$15.2 million (2009: HK$78.9 million) to
hedge the exchange rate exposure between various foreign currencies to
other cross currencies. The Group had outstanding interest rate swap
contracts which amounted to HK$950 million in total (2009: HK$1,256
million) at the end of the reporting period, enabling the Group to
manage its interest rate exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2010, bank borrowings of HK$231 million (2009:
HK$405 million) and other unutilised banking facilities were secured
by charges on investment properties of HK$626 million (2009: HK$351
million), property, plant and equipment of HK$112 million (2009:
HK$154 million), prepaid lease payments of HK$106 million (2009:
HK$152 million), properties for sales of HK$83.5 million (2009: HK$62.7
million), cash at bank of HK$5.0 million (2009: HK$138 million) and
inventories of HK$21.9 million (2009: HK$46.3 million).

Investment properties with a total carrying value of HK$72.0 million
as at 31 March 2009 of the Group were pledged to a court of Mainland
China as security for its property preservation measures under the legal
proceedings among the Group and the joint venture partner of a jointly
controlled entity in Shenzhen. The pledge was released during the year.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Details of the capital commitment as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES
AND THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial assistance
to, and given guarantees for banking facilities granted to, affiliated
companies as at 31 March 2010, which together in aggregate amounted
to HK$621 million as loans and HK$929 million as guarantees issued
for banking facilities granted. These amounts represented a percentage
ratio of approximately 21.8% as at 31 March 2010 and exceeded the
relevant percentage ratios of 8% under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. In accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an
unaudited proforma combined statement of financial position of those
affiliated companies with financial assistance from the Group and the
Group’s attributable interest in those affiliated companies as at 31 March
2010 are presented below:

HREME
R-ZE-—ZTFE=ZFA=+-HONHARBEZF
BEN AP HRRM L3

BRALE
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As at 31 March 2010
R-ZE—FF=A=+-—H

Proforma

combined Group’s

statement of attributable

financial position interest

BEEH AEH

B AR & LR

HK$Million HK$Million

B EE T B EHE T

Non-current assets ERBEE 797 289

Current assets M EE 5,178 2,093
Current liabilities mEaE (2,561) (891)
Non-current liabilities ERFAaE (682) (283)
Shareholders’ advances R& R B =% (751) (621)

Total equity el 1,981 587

As at 31 March 2010, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees, amounted
to HK$383 million (31 March 2009: HK$629 million).
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Corporate Governance Report
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TRERHBEE
The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate EESHNEFSKENCEEREREN
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they EEEEEN A  TEEHENESNLIE
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and SHREENELMNENKRENODRZEAS
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate ZoATEIEAFAHBNEEETEEE
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising EERKETHIREAMEBEMNTS B8R E
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasing stringent RERER UABRBRESFSYHUETFELRD
regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in XEEANAG EETZ I EHRITSEEMNDEE
corporate governance. ERER
The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set FTHRBIME T UFE (D EE BT HT
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules came into effect on 1 January BINWI B RTANER-_ZEERF—A—
2005. The CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices HARR - ETRTANTAMERZ RN D E
namely, mandatory code provisions that a listed company must comply ERsTR B B ESFRNEX - ETH AT
with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices WZBE S - B AR 1R B ST A IR XA 15 R 1E
that a listed company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose e hEarESR - LEmasmnm
in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the NEBFEDEREREETRNBR BT T
mandatory code provisions of the CG Code except for the following non- FIRBER BRI RAR B BT EERST
compliance: 81 Fh #1958 | <F A R X
All the Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. FTBEENITERYRAEIETCEE -
BOARD OF DIRECTORS E=g
The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership EEEREARMARRRERBEXENE
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act BEEMNEE B EKE - EwmERski
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. Eih  MUEEHBAR A R ERREERER
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors A BRETE EEGUASE B
and evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the KEEAMAM  REEMMAEEEEH
corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides on B EZRE  WRiTAQRAZEEERK
matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director T - BEFGNEATIZHERARNSZEE H4 8
appointments or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. RE2FRPHESE SARS  ZFEFEM
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set BRE -BREDERESHBR -RAREEZ
out on pages 14 to 16. H ARBIEBEMNHNELUEZICH °
The Board comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director EFEHARPTES  —BIERTEER
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full Board met five RN TERMER O EEFHFALE
times during the year under review. The attendance of Directors at the Board TTHAXREH SESHEEEREZNESE
Meetings and the Board Committees Meetings is set out in the table below: ZEeesmMERERET -
Meetings Attended/Held
ERLE BIRHY
Audit  Remuneration
Directors Board Committee Committee
= B2/ EREER FHESS
Executive Directors
HOES
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 5/5 - -
JE TR IS £ (£ /)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director) 5/5 - 1/1
BEEXRE (B TEREFRKTE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) 5/5 - -
BEIR K (G EFMEAATE)
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 5/5 - 1/1
B #E 1E 5t
Mr Ho Chung Leung 5/5 - -
Al SRR K A&
Mr Ho Sai Hou (resigned on 16 September 2009) 2/2 - -
Mttt REE(RZFEAFINA L NHEFE)
Non-Executive Directors
FHTES
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph” 4/5 2/2 1/1
JE Bt L7
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George* 4/5 2/2 1/1
HF & kA
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* 5/5 2/2 171
5 E sk
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William (appointed on 1 April 2009) 5/5 - -
SEBRL(R-FENFHA—HEZL)
# Independent Non-Executive Director
# WUFHTEE
— T —ZHF4 | Annual Report 2010 27/
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LrEELREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for the father-son relationship between
Dr Chow Yei Ching and Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment when considering new director appointments. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during
the year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at
the annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following
their appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from
office by rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting
since the last re-election or appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Non-Executive Director was considered and confirmed
at a Board Meeting of the Company with the attendance by full Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same person. Dr Chow Yei Ching remained as Chairman and has
ceased to be the Managing Director of the Company with effect from
1 April 2009. Mr Kuok Hoi Sang is currently the Managing Director
of the Company. The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Managing Director. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the
functioning of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent Non-Executive
Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He has extensive experience
in financial reporting and controls. Other members include all other
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr Chow Ming
Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah, George. The Audit Committee is
responsible for the appointment of external auditors, review of the
Group’s financial information and oversight of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control procedures and risk management
frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2010. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any),
the interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2009 and last
year’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2009, and has reviewed
with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting
matters and risk management systems of the Group. The final results for
the year ended 31 March 2010 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in
its meeting held on 23 June 2010. The Audit Committee of the Company
regularly discusses with the management the system of internal control to
ensure an effective internal control system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman
of the committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for reviewing and determining the compensation and benefits of the
Directors and senior management of the Company. Its terms of reference
are accessible on the Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
March 2010 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2010.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s business to an Executive Committee which was
established in 1991. Members of the Executive Committee comprise five
Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang,
Tam Kwok Wing, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Ho Chung Leung.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance control
and risk management functions. The Group’s system of internal control
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

Corporate Governance Report
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LrEELREEE

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit
reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key management.
The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for following up
the implementation of recommendations and corrective actions. The
Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of the Board or
management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010
on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting responsibilities
in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2010 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 41 to 42.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the fees paid/payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors to the Group were as follows:

RSB EE 3 ()

NP ERPEAEEANADELET LEY
EEACTEEATHEESR EFZRHT
EMAEES T EANESRADERSEE -
WHEBEEBABREES W ORI
R % o WESEZ A AR B AR K EZ
JRAI - TEERRENELHERELZES
FTEEREEEN RNABZBNEERER
FEZ AN ERENNT BZELEgnH
NEBEZBETEEERAMBANSESS
ETRAEEE -

EENRBMBGREMBRENEE

EFEeHRACREREEE_T—TF=A
ST -HULEFEZGAUBRRELREE
RENEERR -

ARABZZBMERBRFHARABE_F
—EFE-_A=t - BLFEGEVBRRD
BEESNEEEQENBI B RESD

2B 2 B &
BE_Z-—ZF=RA=+—-HILUBFE
N A SEEZEE R 2 ZBR E I
BRBEXN /ENZEOMEMT

Nature of services

Amount (HK$’000)

PR 7 1 & SHEOCB¥T )

Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers ZE R - BRERBKEBEGF A EBE 5,853
— other auditors - H = Eram 1,191

Non-audit services  — PricewaterhouseCoopers ERERYE -BERKESTEIERKR 621
— other auditors - H b &5t AD 371

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he has complied with the Model Code throughout the year.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated
different charitable and voluntary organisations in various community
activities and is always devoted to environmental protection. During
the year, estates managed by our subsidiary were granted the Certificate
of Merit in the “Competition on Source Separation of Domestic
Waste 2008/2009” and “Class of Good” Wastewi$e label in the “Hong
Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence” for the recognition in
environmental protection and waste reduction. Besides, the Group
has committed itself to the “2nd International Conference on Climate
Change 2009”. The Group also has been supporting a variety of charitable
activities of the community including the Community Chest Charity Golf
Day, CMA Scholarship Programme 2009, Hong Kong Cancer Fund’s
Cancer Link Upgrade Project and Chevalier Blood Donation Day co-
organised by the Hong Kong Red Cross. In addition, the Group has made
a donation for supporting large-scale sports events in Hong Kong such
as sponsoring the HKSAR Delegation to the 11th National Games of
Mainland China and free tickets of the 2009 East Asian Games distributed
by the Social Welfare Department for the underprivileged groups. To
support the football’s development in Hong Kong, the Group is one of
the sponsors of 1st Division Football Team “Sun Hei” and the “ChelseaFC
Soccer School (Hong Kong)” set up by the English Premier League Club
Chelsea.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and
other information relating to the Group are disclosed on the Company’s
website at http://www.chevalier.com.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHEZ

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are shown on pages 140 to 152.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2010
analysed by business and geographical segments are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 44. An interim dividend of
HKS$0.15 per share was paid on Friday, 15 January 2010. The Directors
now recommend the payment of final dividend of HK$0.55 per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
6 September 2010 to Thursday, 9 September 2010, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for
the proposed final dividend and the attending and voting at the Annual
General Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:00 p.m. on Friday, 3 September 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$1,327,136,000 (2009: HK$1,379,839,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2010 are set out
in notes 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW
A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 3 and on pages 21 to 26 respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHEE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTERFRHUED
The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the FERN AEEZAAHEBNAARESD
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less than AMEAREEBERE MR T E30% o KAAF)S
30%. None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (whom EE HBMBEALTHEMRR(AESAANE
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s BEARRNADEITIRABB%E )58 E K
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers SENAAMHERNIAERERPBEREZ -
or five largest customers.
MAJOR PROPERTIES EFEYR
Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2010 are REBR -_ZE—ZEFE=ZA=+—HZEEY
set out on pages 17 to 20. EEHHENFEI7TEZE20E
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES EERGMEE
Following the deconsolidation of the lifts and escalators business, which BEERAAI,200% 8 T 2 A5 N EHREE
employed approximately 1,200 staff, after December 2009, number of BR-_EBEENE+__AEBETBHEA AR K
full-time staff globally employed by the Group as at 31 March 2010 was EEN _ZE-ZFTFE=ZA=1+—HE2HERZ
reduced to 3,100. Total staff costs amounted to HK$732 million for FHME TR E3INE - BHE_ZT—TF=
the year ended 31 March 2010. The remuneration policies are reviewed A=+—HIFE @BE8IRXABE7NE
periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company T AEBEZHFMEEDRERE 2 TEK
performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include E MEBY  RREENRENE T 2RIR
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement MEHELTG EMmETENSERNER
schemes and employees’ share option scheme. MAEAI8E - BEE - RENRe:TEREES

BIRETESE -
DONATIONS BERM
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$962,000 to charitable FERN AREBEFRTEZ=HRE B EK
bodies. 962,0007T °

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

=
There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye- KA A2 40 B I £ B ARG & ERE 7GR 0 R
i

laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws BEARARFZ u}ﬂﬂiﬂj BREZEN S
in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated. EAEH RS -

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED BE HELBERLHES
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the FR > AQRFHETRHBARTEES
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year. HESKBLOARNR ZEM LEMES
DIRECTORS 2

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this FEALMBEAREEAHRIIZ2ATES
report were: LUN

Executive Directors HITES

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) BEEL (FEF)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director) NBERE (BIFEFFEFHKLE)

Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director) BRELE (FIEF/ILE)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar JE 4 IF 5t £

Mr HO Chung Leung fal RERJE &

Mr HO Sai Hou (resigned on 16 September 2009) Mttt (RZFZEAFNAFNHEFE)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph* JE BA R 1 £+

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George* RBE ST

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles* Tb—; &=k A

Dr KO Chan Gock, William (appointed on 1 April 2009) SEBEYt (RZEZNFHA—HEZ(T)
*  Independent Non-Executive Director t B IHMITEE

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs CHOW Vee Tsung, BRIBEARQR A - AHEELE  ARRE
Oscar, HO Chung Leung and SUN Kai Dah, George shall retire from ERFEREXEARIBARAZRERT K
office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, © FER BB IEEMT SR TESEZ
offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive Directors are subject ERBTFTEEHITESHR -

to the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.
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BEFEHEE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions entered into by the Company and/or
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Transactions”) and are subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements set
out in Rule 14A.35 and Rule 14A.63 of the Listing Rules. Details of the

Transactions required to be disclosed are set out as follows:

The Company entered into the Elevator Distribution Agreement with
TELC and the Office Equipment Distribution Agreement with Toshiba
Corporation (“Toshiba”) on 12 February 2009 in relation to the
distribution of the elevators and escalators and their parts (the “Elevator
Products”) manufactured by or for the TELC and its subsidiaries (the
“TELC Group”) and the sale and purchase of the office automation and
communication equipment and products bearing the trademarks of
“TOSHIBA” and “HZ” (the “Office Equipment Products”) respectively.

Besides, the Company and TELC entered into the shareholders’
agreement on the date of first closing on 31 March 2009 (the “First
Closing”) to regulate their respective rights and obligations in Chevalier
(HK) Limited (“CHKL”), Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. and
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. as shareholders (the “Shareholders’
Agreement”). Among other things, it would be one of the terms of the
Shareholders’ Agreement that the Company shall continue to provide
the irrevocable and unlimited corporate guarantee (the “Corporate
Guarantee”) in respect of the borrowings or finance of the CHKL and its
subsidiaries and associated company (the “CHKL Group”) during the
period following the First Closing and prior to the closing date of the sale
and purchase of 2% of the issued share capital of CHKL on 15 December
2009 (the “Relevant Period”) and, in the case of non-Toshiba business in
Singapore, a period of two years after the First Closing.

Each of the annual caps for the purchases of Elevator Products and
Office Equipment Products by the Group from the TELC Group and
the Toshiba and its subsidiaries (the “Toshiba Group”) respectively
and the payment/payable of the commission by the Group to the TELC
Group for maintenance services for the Elevator Products provided by
the Group (“Maintenance Commission”) for the year ended 31 March
2010 amounted to HK$155 million, HK$280 million and HK$60 million
respectively. The relevant cap amount of the provision of the Corporate
Guarantee to be utilised by the CHKL Group during the Relevant Period
of HK$365 million.

During the Relevant Period, for the purchases of Elevator Products and
Office Equipment Products by the Group from the TELC Group and the
Toshiba Group respectively and the payment/payable of the Maintenance
Commission by the Group to the TELC Group amounted to HK$70
million, HK$133 million and HK$21 million respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
During the Relevant Period, the maximum amount of provision of the
Corporate Guarantee to be utilised by the CHKL Group was HK$357
million.

By virtue of TELC being a substantial shareholder of CHKL (being a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) during the Relevant Period,
TELC, Toshiba and their associates would become connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.
The transactions contemplated under the Agreements will constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules. Subsequent to the Relevant Period, CHKL would be a 49%
owned associated company of the Company. Save for their respective
interests in CHKL, CHKL and its ultimate beneficial owner (Toshiba)
are independent from the Company and its connected persons. The
Transactions no longer constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules after 15 December 2009. The
Company would cease to comply with the reporting requirements under
Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 of the Listing Rules and the annual review
requirements under Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Transactions.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the above transactions
are (a) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements/deeds
relating to the transactions in question; (b) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (c) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and (d) fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors have engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain agreed-upon procedures on the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions on a sample basis and the auditor has, based on the work
performed, provided a letter to the directors stating that:

1. the transactions had been approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company;

2. the selected transactions which involved provision of goods and
services by the Group were entered in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3. the selected transactions were entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing such transactions, based on the
samples selected; and

4. the amount of the transactions did not exceed the relevant annual
cap amount as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 20
February 2009.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to S352 of
the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares

EERNBmFEURB RS
FEA BEEFEAKENTABERHEF
ZEBRAE( IR

EERFETBRAEBZESER

R-FE-—FTF=ZA=1+—HB XARAEEFEK
T2TBRABRARAREMEB AR (ER
REZLBEGI (RS RBAEER]) EXV
M)zt - HEKRO MMESFTREACRE
BHEMHEROIFEXVEE7TRED B EAR
RAEAIRBRAZEENER (BEARRES
RIE Lt 3B 5 N B & R OISR 5 & 3 AR 1E
BEZEDNER) AWM BVCRENRE
ERMMERIENGREATFEZER
MRz MER IREBEZETAANE
ARABRBRrzEEMNERIT ¢

(a) ADEEZE-RG

Number of ordinary shares
ZERROEE

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

ExEB 5% 8 A #E NE R By EEBQ

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359* - 154,682,359 55.73
JZ 7% 3D EnER A

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 98,216 - 98,216 0.04
=035 & EmEB A

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 169,015 32,473 201,488 0.07
EllETES EnER A

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
fa] 5= BR EnER A

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares of the Company, * B IR I8 + B 2 R 154,682,359 R A A AR - 1

representing approximately 55.73% of the issued share capital of the Company. These
shares were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’

Interests in Securities” below.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

Report of the Directors
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EERFETBRAEBZEZER®

(b) HEBEAREZR-RKRHD

Number of ordinary shares

EBRROHE
Approximate
Associated Personal Corporate Family percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity interests interests interests Total of interest
EEEH HELE 54 ARz DLRAEzR REER By EZEEYN
%
CHOW Yei Ching CPHL Interest of controlled - 1,285,829,330* - 1,285,829,330 57.01
corporation
EpY: HiZd REHNRAZER
KUOK Hoi Sang CPHL Beneficial owner 24,000,000 - - 24,000,000 1.06
BEE HIZT BREAA
TAM Kwok Wing CPHL Beneficial owner 4,000,000 - 104,000 4,104,000 0.18
BEK Htzd BREAA
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar CPHL Beneficial owner 174,120,000 - — 174,120,000 7.72
& # I HiZT BREAA
* Dr CHOW Yei Ching had notified CPHL that under the SFO, he was deemed * B INE S+ E 545 5 154,682,359 A A AR5 0 4

to be interested in 1,285,829,330 shares in CPHL which were all held by the
Company as Dr Chow beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares, representing
approximately 55.73% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31
March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to S352
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CIHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 20 September 2002.
Another share option scheme of CPHL, the subsidiary of the Company
(the “CPHL Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CPHL
and the shareholders of the Company on 20 September 2002. The CIHL
Scheme and the CPHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. During the year, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL Scheme.
There was no outstanding option under the CIHL Scheme and the CPHL
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during

the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
ORSO Scheme was granted exemption from Mandatory Provident
Fund regulations by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
and shall not open to new members starting from 1 December 2000.
Certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local
government’s central pension plans for their employees.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) service provider for employees of the Group who
join the Group from 1 December 2000. The MPF Scheme is available to
the employees aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the
employment of the Group in Hong Kong. The benefits are required by
law to be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to HK$34.7
million against which the forfeited contributions amounting to
HK$34,000 have been deducted.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO
were as follows:
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FERRzESES

WNZZE—ZTF=ZA=+—H BEARAES
MEBITBRABRHM  FHALSHEBRA
NEIRO AR EEARERESRL
H S 1§ B EXVEFE2 K35 308 1§ | AR A
RIEE  RAXRHBRARARREESLEE
BhlEBEEFZLHEMAZERRER
LU

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial Shareholders Capacity shares held of interest

FERR &6 EROBE 5 B4

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 154,682,359 55.73
J& 75D EmEA A

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 154,682,359* 55.73
BIEEF EmEA A

* Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, is deemed * BEEFLBEGREXVE  AELZ2BEES

to be interested in the same parcel of 154,682,359 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO, or, were
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and
CPHL, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2010, with deviations from code provision A.4.1 which has already
been stated in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report.
Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 27 to
31 of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
share which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares as at 23 June 2010, the latest practicable
date to ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2010
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Independent Auditor's Report

PRICEAVATERHOUSE(COPERS

BN &

EORKES TSI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 152, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2010, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone +852 2289 8888
Facsimile +852 2810 9888
pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor's Report
B BT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ=_ZF—FF=HA=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTZTNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T BT T
Revenue W 5 5 3,933,579 5,195,577
Cost of sales Fi=R=— 9N (3,086,200) (4,851,435)
Gross profit EF 847,379 344,142
Other income/(expenses), net Emig A (ZE)  F58 6 26,740 (218,778)
Other gains, net Hilhzs - F58 7 245,414 428,386
Selling and distribution costs $H N 4 8H Bk AN (490,331) (347,474)
Administrative expenses THEH (125,418) (128,961)
Operating profit 4R 5 T 503,784 77,315
Share of results of associates FTiE Bt & N R EE 54,514 7,482
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FriG HREGI S EEER 23,002 (11,356)
e 581,300 | 73441
Finance income B 7 WA 8 4,624 16,996
Finance costs B % &R 8 (36,891) (86,881)
Fimancecostsymet ... WBEAF®E ! 8 ... (3227)] | (69,885).
Profit before taxation M AT A 9 549,033 3,556
Income tax (expense)/credit TSR () % 10 (93,733) 4,144
Profit for the year NEEZRA 455,300 7,700
Attributable to: EiE7s
Equity holders of the Company KANRIREZEE A 377,547 135,634
Minority interests DY R E R 77,753 (127,934)
455,300 7,700
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic (HK$ per share) - BN (FRE) 11 1.36 0.49
— Diluted (HKS$ per share) - EE (FREB) 11 1.36 0.49
Dividends B®’E 12 194,295 126,292

The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

2B ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FE 2 E W&

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BZ=—ZT—ZFTF=HA=1+—HIEFE

2010 2009
—E-EF C—ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Profitfortheyear FEEN 45,3000 7,700_.
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHM2EKE
Exchange difference on translation of operations of MEBINEBAR - EERAR
overseas subsidiaries, associates and jointly HEZEHCENEBEMEELEZ
controlled entities SNV H 4 = RR 88,875 (51,359)
Change in fair value of AHEEZRED
available-for-sale investments, net N EEE - F5E 114,360 (64,354)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AfHE 2 RERRERE
transferred to consolidated income statement EBEREEGAENFER 46,243 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEAMHEE ZIRENKE
transferred to consolidated income statement EBREREGAENZR (94,533) -
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer to BRI EYERYWEZ
investment properties N EER
— gross - 48 158,972 -
— net of tax - kR T IE (17,261) -
Fair value adjustment upon step-up acquisition of HE-—HBERARZERN
interest in an associate NAEFHE = 908
_Other comprehensive income for the year, netof tax __ FEHMEEME MME 296,656 | ... (114,805)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEWEZHEE 751,956 (107,105)
Attributable to: iR -
Equity holders of the Company KRR ERZE A 673,250 16,595
Minority interests DB R 78,706 (123,700)
751,956 (107,105)
The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FREEIRAEZMENLEFRE T BHRR 2EK

statements.

2B -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wE BRI i’%

Asat 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZTF=F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties B 14 1,509,885 1,004,810
Property, plant and equipment mME - BELFE 15 484,449 558,381
Prepaid lease payments FE S 1 & RIE 16 362,961 435,197
Goodwill S 17 177,873 202,591
Other intangible assets HiwmEEE 18 129,325 151,679
Interests in associates PTG B & R a) 2 HE 20 369,469 187,482
Interests in jointly controlled entities BTG SRR % 2 21 387,151 383,508
Available-for-sale investments AJ & H:’l E7EE 22 213,027 243,728
Investments at fair value through profit or loss RiEx WE bi2/N /LD BREZIRE 23 - 27,704
Properties under development HEPYE 24 358,303 236,424
Other non-current assets EMIERSHEE 25 197,262 187,644
Deferred tax assets BEEMEEE 39 6,928 4,641
4,196,633 3,623,789
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from associates JFE Ui B 45 N B DR TR 20 156,474 101,582
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JFE U 2K B 450 I 1 ZE IR X 21 238,642 424,837
Investments at fair value through profit or loss NEBHEEZ AL EREZRE 23 275,640 164,600
Inventories 78 26 179,844 150,119
Properties for sale FEY % 27 172,275 197,431
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEMIR S « FH B & RIEN K ,T)\ 28 840,304 1,196,915
Amounts due from customers for contract work MENTRRERNEPWE 2R 29 56,040 116,753
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBEIA 30 1,827 5,893
Prepaid tax FBHIE 8,464 15,297
Bank balances and cash RTEFERES 31 766,896 1,731,606
2,696,406 4,105,033
Assets of disposal groups classified PHEASER
as held for sale HEEBHNEE 32 398,651 385,642
e e 3,095,057 | .. 4,490,675
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to associates FE B & N B IR 30 20 3,421 89
Amounts due to customers for contract work HANTIRERMZERLPS N 2E 29 546,189 534,181
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEBIA 30 40,570 86,496
Creditors, bills payable, deposits JEMIEF - BNEE  GFAR:
and accruals kiERER 33 846,433 988,004
Unearned insurance premiums AmBRRE
— due within one year SN @J A 34,296 24,427
Outstanding insurance claims RARBEE 34 137,986 167,158
Deferred income EEUW A 26,612 25,509
Current income tax liabilities EHEHRARE 63,844 60,174
Bank borrowings fﬁ TEX® 35 480,533 826,637
Convertible bonds — liability component ABRKRESR-aE EL 36 - 410,798
Convertible bonds — derivative component Bl ESsE-—TET A -‘B i 36 = 30,488
2,179,884 3,153,961
Liabilities of disposal groups classified TRAEBEZ
as held for sale HEEENAE 32 = 200,200
R 2,179,884 | . 3,354,161
Net current assets REBEETFE 915,173 1,136,514
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERARBER 5,111,806 4,760,303
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEBEMRIE

Asat 31 March 2010 R=—E—ZF=F=+—H

2010 2009
—g-8F —TITAF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BT BT T
Capital and reserves BRAREE
Share capital f& 2K 37 346,955 346,955
Reserves #B 38 3,389,905 2,878,053
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company ZAQ A EHFH A EB(hER 3,736,860 3,225,008
Minority interests DEI R 376,187 381,328
Totalequity ] RS . 4113047 | 3,606,336
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Unearned insurance premiums KR &
— due over one year - BE—F 35,529 10,468
Bank borrowings RITERN 35 726,275 967,301
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 39 236,955 176,198
... 99759 1,153,967
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZRERBERS 5,111,806 4,760,303

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2010 and signed on its behalf

by:

KUOK Hoi Sang
A
Director

EF

The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

REZERN _Z-ZFRA_T=A#KE I H
TIHEERRRE -

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

BE#IE
Director

EF

FERBEINAZHWFEDLELRE

2B -

FAAE R < MK
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Company Statement of Financial Position

LA BRI i’%

As at 31 March 2010 R=ZT—ZF=A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries FriE i@~ ml 2 19 2,194,622 2,074,530
Interest in an associate it —MBE a2 20 89,594 -
Available-for-sale investments nHEEEZIRE 22 207,622 226,244
Other intangible assets HuwmEE 599 599
2,492,437 2,301,373
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE IR Izﬁ % NEIE 19 1,386,246 1,840,220
Amounts due from associates FE U Bt 22 N TR X 20 20,962 85,409
Investments at fair value through profit or loss AR B IFE BALERBZIRE 23 91,497 53,179
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWIR - FHZES RBEMNKIE 28 2,946 203,374
Derivative financial instruments TEFBIA 30 1,806 5,821
Prepaid tax B HIE 1,108 1,108
Bank balances and cash RITEFNE S 31 154,478 589,565
o . R 1,659,043 | . 2,778,676
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE - Bt B A B R X 19 1,392,227 1,413,584
Derivative financial instruments PTEBBIA 30 40,454 86,484
Creditors, deposits and accruals J& 1+ 1 ?A FARSLERER 33 16,938 14,317
Bank borrowings RATE 35 147,000 327,037
Convertible bonds — liability component B EAE-BaEss 36 = 462,146
Convertible bonds — derivative component —J BRES -TETE *B m 36 - 34,300
e 1,596,619 | 2,337,868
Net current assets FHEESE 62,424 440,808
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 2,554,861 2,742,181
Capital and reserves B2 K 1 4
Share capital fi% A< 37 346,955 346,955
Reserves & 38 1,798,906 1,799,226
Total equity HmRER 2,145,861 2,146,181
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Bank borrowings HR1T & K 35 409,000 596,000
Total equity and non-current liabilities HEZRERBER 2,554,861 2,742,181
Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2010 and signed on its behalf REZGN_F > £|z SAZ T =B#& WA
by: TE‘JE%K% ==
KUOK Hoi Sang CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
L B #E
Director Director
EE EZE
The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FNBERINE ML EEES M ERER ZEK
statements. =R o
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Consolidated Staterment of Changes in Equity

e == N /g,
GARRBDE
For the year ended 31 March 2010 BZ=—ZT—ZFTF=HA=1+—HIEFE
Equity
attributable to
equity holders of Minority Total
the Company interests equity
KERFRE
BAEA PEBRER
FE 15 &5 i BES
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BET T
AUApril2008 ) e e NG Bt = A =AY A 45036 3,767,183
Profit/(loss) for the year FERA,/(EE) 135,634 (127,934) 7,700
Exchange difference on translation ME BN B 1 A
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, BhE DA R AR E
associates and jointly controlled entities EBMEEZIMERBER (55,538) 4,179 (51,359)
Change in fair value of AHEEZREN
available-for-sale investments, net DNREEY  FHE (64,409) 55 (64,354)
Fair value adjustment upon step-up acquisition of 3 fi§ — ] Bt & A @] 2 # 25 /)
interest in an associate NEEFAE 908 - 908
Total comprehensive income for the year FEX2ERZLE 16,595 (123,700) (107,105)
Dividends paid B E (96,055) - (96,055)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ERNFLOEBRRRE - (20,745) (20,745)
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder —ZOHBRREE - 3,616 3,616
Repurchase of shares (note 37) B %D (BT aE37) (4,738) - (4,738)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries 15 % [ff B A 5] 2 # &=
(note 38(b)) (PH 5F38(b)) 775 (18,393) (17,618)
_ Disposal of interests in subsidiaries _____________] wEMBARZER (13,716) 95,514 81,798
_At31March2009 K =EENEZACZACA sl =]
Profit for the year F 2R A 377,547 77,753 455,300
Exchange difference on translation BEBINTELAR
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, BENT RARESCEN
associates and jointly controlled entities XBMELZINERBRER 87,866 1,009 88,875
Change in fair value of AHEEZRED
available-for-sale investments, net DNAEES  F5E 114,416 (56) 114,360
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments A fit i & 2 $& & & )% (B &5 18
transferred to consolidated income statement EEEEANEER 46,243 - 46,243
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & 7] 4 7 I} & 1% & A U &%
transferred to consolidated income statement BREEGREWNER (94,533) - (94,533)
Fair value surplus of properties upon transfer to EREREMERMEL
investment properties D EER
— gross - #a%a 158,972 = 158,972
— net of tax - B IE (17,261) = (17,261)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EKEHE 673,250 78,706 751,956
Dividends paid BRE (152,661) = (152,661)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders BERNTFLOEBRERE = (11,779) (11,779)
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder —ZLHBRRLE = 5,470 5,470
Issue of share option of a subsidiary BO—BHNBAR BRE 491 371 862
Placement of shares of a subsidiary feE —RMEB AR 2 RH
(note 38 (c)) (PH 538 (c)) - 21,390 21,390
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEMB AR Z R (10,177) (99,299) (109,476)
Gain on partial disposal of interest in & — 8D R 2 &1 &
. asubsidiary(note38(9) s (EEs8 () M . SRR )
At 31 March 2010 R-_FT-TF=-A=1+—H 3,736,860 376,187 4,113,047

The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBEsRhER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z—

—TFE-A=t—HLFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
fi BMTR  EETR
Operating activities REXK
Cash generated from operations RS EEL VIS 49(a) 485,241 709,033
Interest paid 21 F B (32,237) (69,227)
Profits tax and Mainland China income tax paid BEMNFER BB RS (37,045) (61,848)
Profits tax refunded 2 W F1E TR 5 12,730 6,394
Net cash from operating activities REREXBZREFH 428,689 584,352
Investing activities REEK
Interest received 2 WA 2 4,624 16,996
Dividends received from associates BUREE AR ZIRE 31,495 3,250
Dividends received from jointly controlled entities ERARERHEEZRE 6,762 -
Dividends received from listed securities Bl EmESFZEE 10,394 4,259
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEREE (52,180) (71,837)
Payments for prepaid leases EREEZ T (2,589) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HE ¥ ¥ | E MR E
and prepaid lease RENHEEZ AEHIE 17,907 12,453
Purchase of other intangible assets BAEMETLEE - (5,933)
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible assets HEREMWEFEE TS RE 1,460 -
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WE BB RARMELZ
a subsidiary RentFaE 49(d) (5,111) -
Payments to acquire additional interests in subsidiaries WEE M B A Rl B IMER 2 3K - (17,618)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from HEREAZES(RE)/ A
disposal of AR
—75% interest in CPT Group - CPTE B 2 75%% & 49(c)(iii) = 190,792
2% (2009: 49%) interest in -Ht %.5 S£B.22% 49(c)( i),
CHK Group (ZZ% jLE 49%) ¥ 5 32(c) (91,334) 527,811
— other subsidiaries -HEuBA 49(c)(i) 26,344 -
Adjustment arising from finalisation of EREE Hyf YN
purchase consideration for step-up acquisition of JEZHNREEE
interest in an associate SnEEE:S 17 661 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from step-up acquisition of HMEMASNTIZER ﬁﬁ@ £ 49(b)(i),
interests in associates ZHREFRAN R (ii) 318 (4,316)
Investments in associates Eed- /NG| (30,472) (21,479)
Net advances to associates ﬁ Hﬁﬁ ERRMEZFERN (24,209) (882)
Investments in jointly controlled entities RERZESIEZRE (157,541) (182,648)
Net advances to jointly controlled entities ﬁ £ [R] 28 il 7 ¢ % ez 3B (27,517) (52,974)
Proceeds from disposal/(purchase) of available-for- HE/(BE)THEEZ
sale investments, net ®E W AT Tﬁ‘ b IE\ FEE 32,080 (33,170)
Deposits refunded from property development projects EEBPEANMYELEIER
in Mainland China Z: % = 29,471
Settlement of consideration receivables on disposal WHHEHRB AR ERZ
of interests in subsidiaries fE WK B 191,947 -
Settlement of consideration payables for SEMRE
— step-up acquisition of interest in an associate -EB-BBMENRZER (95,047) -
— acquisition of interest in an associate -BA—MBERR ES (86,000) -
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (AR)/ REREXBK RS FE (248,008) 394,175
Net cash inflow before financing activities BEXBH v BRERATE 180,681 978,527
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HFRBEEREX

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BZ =T —ZTF=HA=+—HIEFE

2010 2009
—g-8F -TInfF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k=4 BT BETT
Financing activities BmEE®
Dividends paid RENE &5 (152,661) (96,055)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ENIBRR RS (11,779) (20,745)
Drawn down of bank and other loans ERRTEIREMER 1,824,509 2,162,797
Repayment of bank and other loans BIR R1T 5 30 ] 2 At A5 5K (2,472,281) (2,378,337)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits B (I EERER 132,687 (131,363)
Capital contribution by a minority shareholder —ZVHBERHE 5,470 3,616
Repurchase of shares B[O f% 19 = (4,738)
Net proceeds from placement of shares RE—RRBRRZ’kH
of a subsidiary P15 SIEFH 22,339 -
Redemption of convertible bonds BEO Ak ES (452,400 -
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEEE-HEFE (1,104,116) (464,825)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents HEeRBRSZEEYWRD), & (923,435) 513,702
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RENZzEERREZEEY 1,671,275 1,182,197
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ERgE 28 14,103 (24,624)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZEERBELEEY 761,943 1,671,275
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYINM
Bank balances and cash BIEFERRS 766,896 1,809,843
Bank overdrafts BITHEY = (928)
Pledged deposits BEMER (4,953) (137,640)
761,943 1,671,275
Less: Included in assets of disposal groups classified W AMADEAEE
as held for sale JHEBE 32(c) = (78,237)
761,943 1,593,038

The notes on pages 52 to 152 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FRERB RN 2

1  GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the

consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2010.

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair

value through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed in note 4.

(i) New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial

year beginning on 1 April 2009

The Group has adopted the following new/revised standards,
amendments and interpretation to existing standards that are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April
2009 and relevant to the Group’s operation. The impact on the
Group’s accounting policies upon adoption is set out below:

. HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items
of income and expenses (that is
in equity”) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring “non-owner changes in equity” to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)  New/revised standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning on 1 April 2009 (continued)

As a result, the Group has presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity all owner changes in equity,
whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it
is also in conformity with the revised standard. Since the
change in accounting policy only impacts the presentation
aspects, there is no impact on earnings per share.

. HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations”. The amendment clarifies
the definition of “vesting conditions” and specifies
the accounting treatment of “cancellations” by the
counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement.
Vesting conditions are service conditions (which require
a counterparty to complete a specified period of service)
and performance conditions (which require a counterparty
to complete a specified period of service and specified
performance targets to be met) only. All “non-vesting
conditions” and “vesting conditions” that are market
conditions shall be taken into account when estimating
the fair value of the equity instruments granted. All
cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of
vesting and the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period
is recognised immediately. The adoption of HKFRS
2 (Amendment) has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”. The amendment increases the disclosure
requirements about fair value measurement and
amends the disclosure about liquidity risk. The
amendment introduces a three-level hierarchy for fair
value measurement disclosures and requires some
specific quantitative disclosures for those instruments
classified in the lowest level in the hierarchy. These
disclosures will help to improve comparability between
entities about the effects of fair value measurement.
In addition, the amendment clarifies and enhances the
existing requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk
primarily requiring a separate liquidity risk analysis for
derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities. It also
requires a maturity analysis for financial assets where
the information is needed to understand the nature
and content of liquidity risk. The Group has included
additional relevant disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

. HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments”. The new standard
replaces HKAS 14, “Segment Reporting”. The new
standard requires a “management approach”, under which
segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. In addition,
the segments are reported in a manner that is more
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. Comparatives for 2009 in Note
40 have been restated. However, such restatement in note
disclosure does not have any impact on the consolidated
income statement and statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFTBEEHEEw®
POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued) (a) MMBER(E)

(i)

(ii)

o4

Newf/revised standards, amendments and interpretation to (i)
existing standards that are effective for the Group’s financial

year beginning on 1 April 2009 (continued)

. HK(IFRIC) — Int 13, “Customer Loyalty Programmes”.

R-BEANFIF— AKX EEEY

BEFEELEMBHET AT ERERE

fﬂ/ﬁ?ﬂgﬂlﬁé‘f?(i‘
Ee(BRTBEEREREE)-

The interpretation clarifies that where goods or services REE135% ' [ BB ETEl] - Z
are sold together with a customer loyalty incentive (for 2 EEMW T 8 E m e R BB
example, loyalty points or free products), the arrangement EREFPOBHER(MBER D ﬁ
is a multiple-element arrangement and the consideration REEm) BEETHBRNZEK
receivable from the customer is allocated between the Z i RWEF 2 2 BEALH
components of the arrangement using fair values. The ZEBERE D 2 AR BELDE o
adoption of this interpretation has no material impact on T?Té MR B P EERS B REE
the consolidated financial statements. KERTE -
New/revised standards, amendments and interpretations to (ii) ¥ K 4 3 H 7 5 B 15 K R B AT AE
existing standards that are not effective and have not been 155TE R B 53 B 2B R Ry 16 5T 2 R 2 BE
adopted by the Group
The following new/revised standards, amendments and 5l AN [ A B A ET uT/ LIS T 2R
interpretations to existing standards relevant to the Group have Eﬁ%}ﬁﬁ HERIWEBEFTARZREBLEEEM -
been issued, but are not effective for the financial year beginning ERE-ZZTNFMNA BBV
on 1 April 2009 and the Group has not early adopted: %fg MARER  MAKBERRERE T UK
Effective for
New/revised standards, accounting periods
amendments and interpretations beginning on or after
BT3B #
e RBETER H2EMBZ
1'4“TZIK&=§E ERHBER
HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” 1 July 2009
BB S ERFE275% (BEET) [ & N 98 S8 75 i 3k | :‘2‘:%%%
HKAS 32 (Amendment) “Classification of Rights Issues” 1 July 2009
BB ERIE2RE(EBTX) [ Rz 7 38 :TCEAE
HKAS 39 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” 1 July 2009
R G ERIE395 (EFTA) (BT A : RKRE :%Eﬂg
HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations” 1 July 2009
EEUHRELENFIREERT) [EHE G :J@C%Sjl*gr
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 “Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners” 1 July 2009
ZR(BABRMBEREREZRES)- [ARBADIKFREEE] —ZEFNF
BEE17%R +HA—H
HKAS 17 (Amendment) “Leases” 1 January 2010
EREFHERE17R(BFTA) [HE] —F— ZEEE
HKEFRS 2 (Amendment) “Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions” 1 January 2010
EREVBRELENF2R(BFIAN) [KEARSHEEUBROAERNNRK S :EEEE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment) “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement” 1 January 2010
ER(ERVBEHREREZES)- [REESE2RKNEMK] —T-TF
BEE 145 (EFTA) —HA—H
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments” 1 ]uly 2010
FER(BARVEREREZES)- [URATARKHFEMBEAE] —ZfF
BEE19% tH—E
HKAS 24 (Revised) “Related Party Disclosures” 1 January 2011
BB EFHERIFE 245k (KIEFT) [BEEALZHKEE] :?E_E
HKERS 9 “Financial Instruments” 1 January 2013
BB B RELERFESR [ TA] 7;)% E

HKICPA s Improvements to HKFRS 2008, 2009 and 2010

EEEHMASHE SN BRELN _SENF  —TENFR-_FT—TF2 K8
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state whether there
will be any substantial changes to the Group’s significant accounting
policies and presentation of financial information.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

When a business combination involves more than one exchange
transaction, the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities may be different at the date of each
exchange transaction. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities must then be recognised by the acquirer at their
fair values at the acquisition date, any adjustment to those fair values
relating to previously held interests of the acquirer is a revaluation and
shall be accounted for as such.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation. All unrealised gains/losses are eliminated.

Minority interests in the net assets are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has
a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBEER T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
minority interests, the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals of
minority interests are also recorded in equity. For disposals to minority
interests, differences between any proceeds received and the relevant
share of minority interests are also recorded in equity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate or
a jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition, is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill
arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly controlled entity
is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate or

jointly controlled entity.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is
included in investments in respective associates and jointly controlled
entities and is tested for impairment as part of the overall balance. For
the purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the net
fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the business combination and is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair

value at the date of acquisition.
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(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and of changes in equity of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. The
results of associates are accounted for on the basis of dividend received
and receivable during the year.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and classified according to their
natures. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of interests
in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to/from the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity
of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of
the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals
or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

When a Group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity, except to the
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE B ER T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Joint ventures (continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. The results of jointly controlled entities are
accounted for on the basis of dividend received and receivable during
the year.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when a Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and/or receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and/or payable is recognised
in income statement.

(i)

58

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(i)  Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each reporting period end date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amounts
due from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities’
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to
a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as any of the other categories
set out above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the income
statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income statement
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEHMBHERNE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the income statement in the period in which they

arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other borrowings,
creditors, outstanding insurance claims, amounts due to
associates and bills payable are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values of
such derivatives are recognised directly in the income statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as held-
for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the
host contracts, and the combined contracts are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. In all other circumstances,
derivatives embedded are not separated and are accounted for
together with the host contracts in accordance with appropriate
standards. Where the Group needs to separate an embedded
derivative but is unable to measure the embedded derivative, the
entire combined contracts are treated as held-for-trading.

(iv) Convertible bonds

The Group’s convertible bonds issued with embedded derivative
features is split into liability and derivative components. The
initial carrying amount of the liability component is the residual
amount after separating the embedded derivative. The liability
component is subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The derivative component is
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and any gains or
losses arising from change in the fair value are recognised in the

income statement.

(g) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is

classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by professional valuation
conducted as at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value

are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the
asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as part
of the other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If an item
of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Properties
Hotel properties, cold storage warehouses and other properties
held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50
years or the remaining terms of the respective leases, whichever
is the shorter after considering the residual value.

(ii)  Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided
to write off the cost of the plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking into
account their estimated residual value at the following rates per

annum:
Annual charge
Machinery 10%
Leasehold improvement Over the rental
lease term

Furniture, fixtures, office
equipment and motor vehicles 10%-33'/5%
Others 10%-20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset
is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEHMBHERNE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Prepaid lease payments
Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premiums paid for land cost.
Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement over the term
of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis. The amortisation during
the period before the commencement and after the completion of the
construction of the properties (except for investment properties) is
expensed in the income statement.

(j) Properties for sale
Properties for sale, which comprise land and buildings held for resale,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
properties for sale comprises land and related development costs.

(k) Properties under development
Properties under development comprise prepayments for leasehold
land and land use rights, development expenditure and borrowing
costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if it is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and
value in use.

()  Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the development
costs incurred on a clearly defined project will be recovered through
future commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred.

(m) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted average method.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds in the ordinary course of business less applicable selling
expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
as measured by the proportion that the value of work carried out
during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. When
it is probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an
amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due
to customers for contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the statement of financial position,
as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but not
yet paid by the customer are included in the statement of financial
position under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability
under bank borrowings in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Unearned insurance premiums

Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portion of the
premiums written which relate to periods of insurance subsequent
to the end of the reporting period and are deferred to subsequent
accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed on the basis of
net premiums written for all classes of insurance. Net premium written
represents gross premiums received or receivable after deducting
reinsurance premiums.

Insurance claim

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the end of the reporting period an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported which is calculated with reference to
foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured with reference to the value of work carried out
during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever is
later.

(n)

(0)

(r)

HEBMBHERNE

EXRETERBE®

T

Bt 4
S o
i3
ik
ol &
oF

-
b
W%ﬂ
=4t

S
W o
s
ZN
%H-
i} OfF
| A T
N =Y
E ) .o
23
B
N BRBK
o W5 XA

S
A
>F
H
==
pil

i}
d

5

MERE P s =F
EE =8 7% Bk
2
ﬁ

JaiE
=N amp
(\\y

2F
Y or

sEN
S5 i 8]

>R F M
- I

\L‘W
B e

[t 250

A

& HF 2| 10)>
I T
=
FS o2
AP -
Bighalpe

B o 3.3
I =F = ik
R &

2
Sm
=

E=11]
SN

\;
/

o 55 0N

2

EESY - EEID W T
TSP - M

£

L

B o 3008 HF H B D
i

k=1l
52
5

St i & (U
EE
ok BY
=
]
_rﬁ-
s

i NI
2F
24 T e 0>

- IR R N
S

Sm
S
&
=
=
I

25
H
e

EN D 2
it

sl

o
o

H - ot B9 el o ot Ik
TR O 206 S T s HE

558 0 o (B PE s

2 >3
S
T
F o
N
.
=

- Shm TVEY R D R

NG

Bz

o

bl
=
i
s
E’I\_
%
&
)
==
&
S
2F

N

k>

sl
7 _ﬁ
B 0L |11 & kp
5t T 10 g

K@ B4R

K>
4
]
El
@

B ML Y AEREEERRITER -

it
&
bl

RARE] R B
BT 2 R BR AR B
%Eﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi
c FARREE %%E
B i sk el R e 2 405 -

ot
—_
S

4 Ok 3
==
)

TN I 3 3

S R

5 3 X Ao
St

#ﬂﬂi R ﬂ 74‘3

Iy 0 2 S S S
3
B

= S AT Y

)
S
£
A0
55
b
W
N
=

KB
&
=

i

§
A

=
Rl TN g

i A
TR (2

(
INFHE 35 X

T
- N
5 - S
2 o T
E=NGP
TN O s

& 4 m D
38 Fin SZ 4

=9
2k B 1

ST
M

W
—
S
P 55
=

5

iﬂﬂiﬂfﬁk&mﬁﬁ

[ Bf &

A R 5 N N
2¥

Hg
=

El:j:
)55 2

25
F N
Skl JR
HEH

- DN = i
1] 24 sy

(0o =
T Bk S %
HE | W
=) B G
| O) =6

e
0 &

AN
7
anp
(\AY

0 B By i 3
- FWHD

R O I T Bk 55
=
Ji

Y

NEREZRADERBRE T &
%EE% ZX M MER L

’X
o

m
L

a4

—Z—TFEFH | Annual Report 2010 03



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

(s)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived
at after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are
accounted for as deferred income.

Premiums for direct insurance business and reinsurance are recognised
as income over the terms of insurance policy period.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net
carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position
as an obligation under finance lease. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement,
unless they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs as
stated in the policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing
on the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, which are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange components of that gain or loss are also recognised directly
in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange fluctuation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE &R

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(w) Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

(x) Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carry amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment at each reporting date.

(y) Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as assets and liabilities held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair values less costs to
sell if their carrying amounts are recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through a continuing use. The carrying
amounts of the reclassified assets and liabilities are determined based
on the same applicable accounting policies prior to the reclassification,
except for prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment,
no amortisation and depreciation have been provided and for interests
in jointly controlled entities, no share of results of jointly controlled
entities have been included for subsequent to the reclassification.
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3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner that is consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Directors of the Company that make strategic
decisions.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
financial derivatives, debtors, creditors, amounts due from/to related
companies, bills payable, bank balances and cash and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arise from investments
in debt securities, derivative financial instruments, bills
payable , bank borrowings and floating and fixed rate bank
deposits. Majority of the Group’s bank borrowings carry
interest at floating rate and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The management monitors interest rate
exposure and hedges significant interest rate exposure
by using financial instruments such as interest rate swap.
However, these instruments are not qualified for hedge
accounting.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by one percentage point and
all other variables were held constant, the post-tax profit
of the Group and the Company excluding impact of fair
value changes of derivative financial instruments and
investments in debt securities would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$2,680,000 (2009: increase/decrease by
HK$1,255,000) and decrease/increase by HK$3,098,000
(2009: HK$1,812,000), respectively resulting from the
change in the borrowing costs of bank borrowings and
finance income of bank deposits.

Soll

HEBMBHERNE

DEB|E
BEDHEZRENAALIBLERRES
O AMBEE 2T A - - ARAEFER
BRRIERBATENTIEZELERRE T &
EBERAREARIRERLBFNFZEZEDRR
HRER o

AEENFTENBEIARGREAHREE ZKR
B REBEGRBAAEREZRE T4£H

W R AR - FEATIR R - UL PR
BB ARIER  EBNRE ROGFEES
DA&E?& R EMBITAZHBREBME

RHE - 250 #%TE 2 56 E K A K E
ZERBZBREINOT EEEEIEKE
RZEZE UBEREFERMEITEE 2
i o
B EREZE
(a) THHZEE

i) FIFEE

AEEZMERERKBEHEFKR
B TAMBIE BNEE R
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S BAB M RITE R AF B FI X5
B MAKEARHRES RE N =X
[\ o B IR B BL AR ) R AL B 3 | R
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RIREEIR - (WFI =R, w > —
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2,680,000 C(ZEZT AL F : #n
A 7 1,255,000 7T ) ROR A1
107 #3,098,000 T (=T F L F -
75 151812,0007T ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBRENT

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3 BMERREEEERBE®

31 MEEREERGE

i)

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHEKGE)
(ii)  Foreign currency risk (i) SPE R Bz o
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to AN 8 T B PR A % %ﬁ‘% - A Y
foreign currency risk arising from various currency EZ fﬁg? BBz INERR © K
exposures. Foreign currency risk arises when the Group’s %’% o i 0 2 & E NEBIAERE
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in 2B EB REME - BEAIMNE
currencies that are not the entities’ functional currency. BB o
The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign AEBmEEHINER Eﬁ Z WBEEE
currency risk mainly comprise of instruments in debts and EZREEBLRAZBLF T ALARR
equity securities and accounts receivable balances arising YN E L B E A £ 2 BIK
from sales made to overseas customers. The Group’s RE - AEEEEINER R 2 M5
financial liabilities that are exposed to foreign currency BEFEKREEINIE - Z’»‘%‘é Z
risk mainly arise from overseas purchases. It is the Group’s B3R T e ﬁ 5 5 [ B AR 15 10 AT i&: =3
policies to ensure that the net exposure is kept to an Z K - 0 38 DA B R B & Sh
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies % (#n ﬁﬁ% ) Eﬁj %2 HA 5K 17 2K
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term EH - EREEHEREREINERR
imbalances. The management will continue to monitor NESR ?;ﬁ % 15 /RT% BIA Eﬁ\ﬁ%l
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging BISNEE B S BEARINER
significant foreign currency exposure by using financial =
instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts
should the needs arise.
Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other E i SN E EL E:z % I (TEREE
than the functional currencies of the Group) that are % Z WEEE lj % XL 2 i3 E:] J’/(
exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly d inated AR® - MEKXTT - T KRR
y denominate (NES T ~7TL
in Renminbi, Canadian dollar, United States dollar (“US v = fi7 o \ZK\%E, _< X \E ) B
dollar”) and Macau Pataca. The carrying amounts of A E] Jiﬁ\\ WREM  MIEAE R
the Group’s (on entity level) and the Company’s foreign BRERREHRZIREERDT -
currency denominated financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
aE &8E
2010 2009 2010 2009
The Group AEH “E-Z2F —TTNF ZEBE-FBF —TTNF
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BEFxT AEBETT
Australian dollar BT 2,699 10,648 = —
Canadian dollar MmE AT 216,323 185,772 = -
Euro Br 78 35,871 186,921 (43) (76,914)
Hong Kong dollar kit 44,308 91,358 - -
Japanese Yen H 45,846 25,268 (115) —
Macau Pataca R P - 8,310 (253,746) (279,020)
Renminbi AR 121,728 161,513 - (37,466)
US dollar e 567,210 728,817 - -
Others H 1 17,155 13,337 - -
Assets Liabilities
aE &8E
2010 2009 2010 2009
The Company VNN —E-ZBF —TTNF ZBE-BF —TTNF
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT EBEFxT ABETT
Canadian dollar mE KXt 216,323 180,430 = -
Euro 8% 78 35,794 111,302 (43) (3,660)
Macau Pataca SERPT = 8,310 (253,746) (279,020)
US dollar e 227,445 252,378 - -
Other H 21,488 24,424 - (37,466)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B HIRE N

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BEEREREEEERHE®)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBEEEEGE
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHEME)
(ii)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) PERE (&)
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s NREET AK % & PN/ D Y i
sensitivity to every percentage point increase and decrease XS HH A 2 NE 2 £
in the functional currency of corresponding Group entity MRS —EE D2 ﬁ(’?jfg ° f?*g
against the above foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis BRE DM BB AINE SEA 25
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated WMIEE - WER % RE X FiE
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year M—EEDH 2 E T AFE - IE
end for every percentage point increase in foreign currency 2 [ ik 13 ifé + 5/7_|\ % B 1 AR
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in Mz EEEae ARk
profit/investment revaluation reserve where the above 155 T s F REEGHFEEER
foreign currency strengthens every percentage point e
against the functional currency of corresponding Group
entity.
The Group rEE
2010 2009
—E_BE -—TTHE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Increase in profit & A 38 40 4,893 6,561
Increase in investment revaluation reserve 1% & B EEE 2,113 2,235
The Company LSS
2010 2009
—E2-2F _—TTAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BET T
Increase in profit S A 3% 50 345 421
Increase in investment revaluation reserve 1% & B REEE 2,059 2,063
(iii) Price risk (iii) 1B 5 /B 2
The Group and the Company are exposed to price risk AREBEBNMANRRHEEEBSRR @ It
because investments held by the Group and the Company DHERAEB M ARBMEFR 2R
are classified on the consolidated statement of financial BN S WA AR M2 B # R
position and the company statement of financial position //E%:Z R A% B 2R 5 AT R B R & s
either as available-for-sale investments or investments at B=IRE A ERE LA
fair value through profit or loss of which fair values are mAaEARETXMES N
subject to changes in market prices. & o
If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments i AR & TAZBER®BZ
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one BIEE —EasE - 8
percentage point and all other variables held constant: H th A wRAE A
- the post-tax profit of the Group for the vyear — AEEEHBEE_Z = &* =
ended 31 March 2010 would increase/decrease by =t —HIEFE 2 Bii& s A
HKS$1,141,000 (2009: HK$270,000) as a result of the 1% 38 00 R 2 A 1,141,000
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value T(ZZTNF %270,000
through profit or loss; 7T) T ERRESEIREA
NERBZUBEENRA
BEZSHFE
If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments MARNE EHRATARER®RL
of the Company had been increased/decreased by one B8 j]ﬂ/?)@i}f_fﬁﬁj\ﬁ BH
percentage point and all other variables held constant: fhrr st A= R AL - B
= the post-tax profit of the Company for the year - ARABE_FT-FTF_-H
ended 31 March 2010 would increase/decrease by =t BILEFEZHBIE G
HK$570,000 (2009: HK$35,000) as a result of the K 18 0 R A 7 B 570,000
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value T(ZZTAF : #%35,000
through profit or loss. 7T) W EPRRERIREA
RNEBREZMBEENRA
EZFHAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

Sl

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(©)

70

Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of debtors, amounts due from
related companies, available-for-sale investments, investments at
fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments
and bank balances and cash. The Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations as at the end of the reporting period in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and assessment of
the impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, management has properly reflected revised estimates of
expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers
in each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted
to trade debtors was 60 days. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2010, the
amounts due from related companies with no history of default.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments, interests receivable, bank balances
and cash transactions are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparty with high credit quality. The Group
controls its credit risk to non-performance by its counterparties
through monitoring their credit rating and setting approved
counterparty credit limits that are regularly reviewed. The Group
does not expect any significant counterparty risk. Moreover,
credit limits are set for individual counterparties and periodic
reviews are conducted to ensure that the limits are strictly
followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any individual
debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short-term and medium-term credit lines available.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) believe that
the Group has obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted
general credit facilities from banks for working capital purposes.

Chevalier International Holdings Limited | £+ B EB AR A &
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3.1

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEHMBHRRNT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BEEREREEEERHE®)
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3 BERBEZEGGE)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) BEZREERGE)
The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan RANRBEEER t)] ERANER ZRHE
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the SR RETFERLHIFN o NRES
Company. The following table details the Group’s contractual NEEBFHBEBZELDNHBIBER - £E
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn TR EAREEHERY 25 F HE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities MR aEzRkiTHRES ,ﬁ; @B o K
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to BREBEMNBEEAE ZIRERE o
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Total
Less than More than  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
AMIRRE
The Group PN DPR—F —EWE —ERE BBLE TEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BT T BET T BT T
2010 Z2-%F
Bank borrowings R|ITE ?K 496,915 75,769 612,434 66,797 1,251,915
Outstanding insurance claims & R (&8 R & 137,986 = = = 137,986
Creditors and bills payable ERETRENEE 582,250 = = = 582,250
Amounts due to associates AN A=NGIL N 3,421 = = = 3,421
Derivative financial TEMBIA
instruments (net settled) (B4E) (7,854) 6,597 8,453 = 7,196
Derivative financial PTHEB I g
instruments (gross settled) (BEEE)
- outflow -hd 10,907 8,950 11,206 - 31,063
— inflow - WA (2,582) (675) (826) - (4,083)
2009 —TENF
Convertible bonds QS 452,400 - - - 452,400
Bank borrowings RITER 860,511 134,557 584,186 279,133 1,858,387
Outstanding insurance claims & #{R 2 R & 167,158 - - - 167,158
Creditors and bills payable FERETREMZE 794,202 - - - 794,202
Amounts due to associates JE B 28 1N BIR 30 89 - - - 89
Derivative financial TTHEBMBEIEA
instruments (et settled) (R&H) 17,123 13,290 30,185 - 60,598
Derivative financial TERBIA
instruments (gross settled) (BEHEHE)
- outflow -hd 79,007 - - - 79,007
— inflow -RA (78,495) - - - (78,495)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE RIS B & B A
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 HEREEEBERBE®
POLICIES (continued) .
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMHEEREZEGE
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) BEEREBRARE)
Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
\ KRR
The Company b N DPR—F —EWME —ERE BBRE MEREE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
EET T kiR BETT BT BETT
2010 —E-EF
Bank borrowings BITER 148,019 52,723 358,160 11,466 570,368
Creditors JE < IR 30 19,937 = = = 19,937
Derivative financial MTEMBIA
instruments (net settled) (2%H) 5,891 6,597 8,453 - 20,941
Derivative financial MTEMBIE
instruments (gross settled) (lxEksE)
- outflow - md 10,907 8,950 11,206 - 31,063
— inflow -RA (2,582) (675) (826) - (4,083)
2009 —ETNE
Bank borrowings RITE 329,616 78,237 518,241 13,422 939,516
Convertible bonds ] 5 8 55 508,950 - - - 508,950
Creditors I {1 2 14,317 - - - 14,317
Derivative financial TETBTE
instruments (net settled) (FrE) 17,123 13,290 30,185 - 60,598
Derivative financial MTEBKIA
instruments (gross settled) (a4 E)
~ outflow - 33,899 - - - 33,899
— inflow - mA (34,043) - - - (34,043)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 AXEBER . -
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the A SEERE ZE ZB# é = iz AEEFEL
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the = ZL R Zﬂjt ’ @ I 37 18 B 1 2 1B 75 M #E & tb O
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and AR RE A 2R o
equity balance.
The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital ANEEE Bt hEY) % = %/é\f LN i% ¥ LA
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its [“ﬂ f & A)_SZ #X ﬁﬁ —F Z\\ Gl e T;i\ Fa KA Z}E & Z
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of Be UHEHERAKERFTRHEHE
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs. REBELRAE -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity PN $; Bﬁz\ }\m‘ ﬁj%i/ £y g %EZ %4{— E/i_ ’%‘i &
ratio, which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprise total R ZEELFE j ( /F] 1= ﬁ% T\E; TERIR1T 4517
debt less bank balances and cash and structured deposits) over total &iﬁﬁ K iEE 1%@ ) 8 %@I}i& ko ZBAD t,'% o
equity. Total debt comprises bank borrowings, other loans and liability &% ’E iﬁ RITRE R - H &R R AR E S
component of convertible bonds. ZBEHG -
The net debt to equity ratio at 31 March 2010 and 2009 was as follows: — =— = E E_BBAF=RA=+—HB2#%*
ER RS RN
2010 2009
ZE-BF _—ZTTHF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT T BT T
Total debt ,% 1% %% 1)206’808 2)204)736
Bank balances and cash and structured deposits WITHEELRBEESNEBEER (766,896) (1,777,413)
Net debt FETE 439,912 427,323
Total equity B 4,113,047 3,606,336
Net debt to equity ratio SREMREER X 10.7% 11.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3
POLICIES (continued)

HEMBHER T

g
%
H

SEEHERBE @

Fair value estimation 33 D AEME
In current year, the Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS 7 for MNAEE  ANEEBE MR BRALKRP AR
financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial LEFENITE T AEEMNE S SRS EL
position at fair value. It requires disclosure of fair value measurements FrRZES] MR EEUATALRBIEZ
by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy. BHERAREFEEHEE -
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets e LFHEENEBEERKERMG ZHE
or liabilities (level 1). (FRFAB)V(E—4) °
. Inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are ° FHEEXRBBEZRABTNBERSE —
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as BAHRE - R EZ(BIER) B
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). (ENE B3| M)i(E_4&) °
. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable . BB EBEzE ABI IEKIEH
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). VremBEEEBE(EELRE 2@ AE)(F
=&) -
The following table presents the group assets and liabilities that are TREVWNIE_ZE—ZTF=A=1+—HZ2H
measured at fair value at 31 March 2010. BEcEBEERAE -
The Group The Company
bS] A UNG]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£-4 b ] £=4
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT B%Tn BETR

ot F-5 FZR =4 a
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000

BRI ERTR  ARTn  BETn  EERTR

Assets

Investments
at fair value through
profit or loss

> B
S
hrs
N3

S35 S S

oS B
TmF
i

- debt securities -EBES 72,971 69,337 - 142,308 - 3 - 23,074
— equity securities _RAREH 127,297 - = 127,297 66,973 = = 66,973
— exchange-traded _REMES
funds =g 4,256 - - 4,256 - - - -
~ money market funds _EEmIBEES = 100 = 100 = 100 = 100
- hedge funds -HAES = 1,679 = 1,679 = 1,350 = 1,350
Derivative financial EETS
instruments TH - 1,827 - 1,827 - 1,806 - 1,806
Available-for-sale AEHEy
investments 5
~ equity securities -kAES = 1,728 = 1,728 - 1,728 = 1,728
— private funds -EES = - 201299 211,299 = - 205894 205894
Total assets BEE 204,524 74,671 211,299 490,494 66,973 28,058 205,894 300,925
Liabilities B
Derivative financial TERT
instruments TH - (40,570) - (40,570) - (40,454) - (40,454)
Total liabilities BEE - (40,570) = (40,570) = (40,454) = (40,454)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based RIERBM% FEE 28 ﬂ‘% TEZAREBETR
on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A market JiNE t:u': MRz HmETE - MRETES
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available WhETHERIGM RHE - K TFES
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or - EBRBREERBIRG  MiE fgi 1%
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly RLEE KRR TR BREENATERZR
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted Z  AZmBRERER AEBEMFEY
market prices used for financial assets held by the Group is the bid %E E%ﬁﬁ LMiZHREREREARE - Z
price. These instruments are included in level 1. ETHFAZE & -
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LEBHEEN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
the valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
measure the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument
will be included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument will be included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

BEEREEEERBE®

REEERREMS EBEE W% TA(MFINT
ETR)ZARERBHERMEE - 251G
AR BB (A FE) - W
HEF M E LA AARE
BR - BIZITAKHAS

el > heln
e
%

EIFL}_I

W—AXZAEABMBEIIIFREARETS
2 AR TEBFTASE=M -

AR B TAGEZFREHEERMEE

include:
. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments ° HEUTEZ2mMEREXRXRXSIERE
. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present ° T 2= 45 B /9 A fp (B 1R 18 Al f 45 /9 U &5 il
value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable BIEEEERRR S TENRESE
yield curves
. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is ° =HINES AR EMB R SRS R
determined using forward exchange rates at the end of the HREERET  TIREREFTRER
reporting period with the resulting value discounted back to =l
present value
. For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active ° MW ESER M S M IE - BB
market, the Group establishes the fair value by using valuation BEmM:s  HAEEEAGEETSTE
techniques including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, ERAE BETEEMBIEBARNA TR
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, 5 Z2BHEHMABMERNTIE 2B
reference to net asset value of investee and discounted cash flow WENRIZEBEFENREBRERED
analysis, maximising the use of market inputs and relying as W mofETmSEEREERDE D
little as possible on entity specific inputs. If none of the valuation HEFTEEMKRE - W LM HERTGY
techniques results in a reasonable estimate on the fair value, the RS BHEALE  BBBEIEESA
investment will be stated in the statement of financial position at A E R EEEZY NGk NER
cost less impairment losses
. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used ° ERUBITENA B AE M
to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments Bl BL IR S R EDITET
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the TREIBN = TEBE_ZT-—ZF=H
year ended 31 March 2010: =t+—HItEEZEH :
The Group KE
Equities  Private funds Total
IR A7 R REES B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2009 RZZTZTNFMNA—H 19,970 218,391 238,361
Payments for capital contributions &~ 5x = 13,965 13,965
Receipts for capital return BT B 2 & 7K [B] 2R = (5,702) (5,702)
Proceeds from disposal HEFRTE I = (39,096) (39,096)
Fair value gains recognised REM2EWRERZ
in other comprehensive income, net NREWZS  FEE 93,011 23,741 116,752
Eliminated upon derecognition RS HER 12 Y5 (112,981) = (112,981)
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZFTF=A=+—H - 211,299 211,299
Total loss for the year included AKFEERFRFR L
in consolidated income statement for BEFTAGZEREFRZ
assets held at the end of the year, net EEs1E - JHER - 46,243 46,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3

POLICIES (continued)

HEMBHER T

BERMREEBERBE®)

Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREMEFGE)
The Company KR F
Equities  Private funds Total
MRz REES B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTR  wMTr  BET
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMHA—H 19,970 206,275 226,245
Payments for capital contributions H&E N = 13,965 13,965
Receipts for capital return Fir B 2 & 7K [B] 7 - (5,702) (5,702)
Proceeds from disposals HEMRERIB = (33,932) (33,932)
Fair value gains recognised B B th 2 [ W 2R AR 2
in other comprehensive income, net NAEWZ @ F5E 93,011 25,288 118,299
Eliminated upon derecognition fRIRHER 1B E 5 (112,981) = (112,981)
At 31 March 2010 R_ZE-FTF=A=+—H - 205,894 205,894
Total loss for the year included KEERFERFTBELZ
in consolidated income statement for BESAGEKRGERZ
assets held at the end of the year, net 4 EIE - TR AR = 30,977 30,977
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRSTATTRAE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based HERABRERERLRBREEMEAZ 24
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations PEREBEBELTHEAREEMERKE M
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the BITEOR - RFAE AT o
circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. AREBSRKELE G REBFR - AE 2G5
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal A REERLVEAEFENERERER - &
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have BEARBYFEERBECIREBERT —
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying &l Bt 5 F [ E NZBE{EEE KRB 2 5t RIRER &
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are IR
discussed below:
Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets () BIBEREFEERE
The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible assets have RIBG A M SRR F2x) Tl 2 @5 R
suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies stated NS FREEBRBEFEESSLIRME
in note 2(x) to the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable R EETAR - BeEALABMZAlE S
amounts of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-use BOZERAREEFEESIENRBRHESKR
calculations or its fair value less cost to sell, whichever is appropriate, ZAREBEEUREEERE)EE  MEH
and both bases require the Group to estimate the future cash flows AREBEGHZREELEEU ZARKREN
expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order B UWNEERRXAERE SEHERK
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are ReERELNTEN - BRIES ANFREEE -

less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill) (b)
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its intangible assets
(other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets in
related industries. Actual economic life may vary from estimated useful
life. Periodic review could result in a change in amortisable lives and
consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in future

periods.

A BEFEE(BRBEMN 2UEAFY
AEBZEBEREBBUINCETLEER
JE f AT 5 AR 6 HA 0 4% bt B E AR R 5 R (0
B)  ZEFEANIREBERBITEZAHLER
BRNEEZERAERFH 2 BELERMIE
He BEREEFHAEEGAEREHRA
BorTHEMAE A HEFEREURE - 1§
Mg Mo D RREE 2 HHER -
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LEBHEEN

()

(d)

(e)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENTS (continued)

Income taxes

At 31 March 2010, a deferred tax asset of HK$36,357,000 (2009:
HK$32,718,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual taxable future profits generated are more or
less than expected, additional deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the period in which such an addition or a
reversal takes place.

Also, the Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2(n), the Group uses the percentage of completion
method to determine the appropriate revenue to be recognised in a
given period. The stage of completion is measured by total amount of
work done certified by customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group needs
to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction contract,
which was determined based on the estimated total construction
contract costs and total construction contract sum, including variation
orders and claims. If the actual gross profit margin of construction
contract differs from the management’s estimates, the construction
contract profit to be recognised in the following years will need to be
adjusted accordingly.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on the
basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing modeling
and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance liabilities
are affected by assessed net loss ratio. Assessed net loss ratio for 2010
and 2009 was 62% and 90% respectively. Differences resulting from
reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised in subsequent
financial statements. The Directors continually review the estimates
and make adjustments as necessary, but actual results could differ
significantly from what is envisioned when these estimates are made.
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(g)

(h)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is
made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). It is performed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS. The
valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by considering
the information from a variety of sources including (i) current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of
similar properties in less active market, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due provision for reversionary income potential based
on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment assessment for available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the
fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health
of and short-term business outlook for the investee and historical price
volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value below cost are considered
significant or prolonged, an additional loss of HK$7,336,000 (2009:
HK$48,352,000) would be incurred in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010, being the
transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity
on the available-for-sale financial assets to the consolidated income
statement.

Fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments

The fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by
the valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period (note
3.3).
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5 REVENUE 5 s
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —“ZTTAHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
Revenue represents amounts received KEBEW R EWZ W
and receivable from:
Construction and installation contracts BEENLTRTIE 1,770,245 3,027,886
Sale of information technology equipment, BHRIEEE  RER
motor vehicles and others Hih 74« 724,830 850,476
Food and beverages Z 8 537,924 311,106
Provision of maintenance and EHERERERDE
property management I8 R 509,641 660,049
Warehouse and logistics operations BENLYIREE 134,818 122,288
Insurance premium R & 81,189 36,570
Leasing of properties MEMRE 52,168 55,386
Hotel operations O JE B 51,268 57,580
Sales of properties Y HE 50,094 42,776
Dividend income from listed securities B rtmEAHsEzREKA 10,394 4,259
Interest income from investments BEEZF Bl A 9,417 25,555
Leasing of equipment HERE 1,591 1,646
Total revenue (note 40) 421 =5 (B 5140) 3,933,579 5,195,577
OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET 6 HMWA(ZH) FH8E
2010 2009
—2-2F CZ—TTNH
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value RESEIEATEREZRER
through profit or loss, net Wz, (EE) 38
— realised - D& 15,139 (158,939)
— unrealised - REIE (42,993) (1,800)
Gain/(loss) on derivative financial PTEMBIAEZ
instruments, net Wz, (E8) 38
— realised o &3 (18,989) 2,347
— unrealised _ REAIE 41,767 (74,981)
Interest income on amounts due from associates  J& Ug B 45 N 5] 15 70 2 7 B U A 2,598 5,340
Interest income on amounts due from e RSB ERRZ
jointly controlled entities B2 U A 11,782 1,418
Commission income Hal A 2,719 3,351
Management fee income BB B A = 180
Management fee income received from associates [ & A7) & — KRR HI b W EL 2
and a jointly controlled entity EEEBEWA 5,330 60
Sales and marketing services income from BH—EEE A ArHEE R
an associate (note 48) T 35 4 & AR 75 UL A (Bt 7E48) 4,900 -
Others H b 4,487 4,246
26,740 (218,778)
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A A
7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hfvlzm  FHE
2010 2009
~®F -—TTINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTFT  BET
Gain on disposal of & T F Iz W=
— 75% interest in CPT Group - CPT & . 275%% m
(note 49(c)(iii)) (M $49(0) i) - 156,296
— 2% (2009: 49%) interest -HEIEABEBEZ2%
in CHK Group (ZZ2EZTNF 1 49%) =
(note 49(c)(ii) and note 32(c)) (BT 52 49(c) (i) B2 Pfd 7E32(c)) 25,482 621,626
— other subsidiaries (note 49(c)(i)) — E b B 8~ 7] (P 7E49(c) (1)) 6,765 -
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of wEWEZ ARELENChd)
investment properties (note 14) (Mtst14) 179,781 (99,637)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BE L&
plant and equipment and prepaid BIENAERE KEm
lease payments, net (B8B)  F8 7,028 (6,773)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME HEMEEBEZ
equipment, net (note 15) BAEEE - FE (M EE15) (5,140) (19,139)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) R REEE (M7 (29,174) (129,279)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HEmEEEEZBEEE
(note 18) (M17E18) (12,200) -
Gain on step-up acquisition of interest in B -EEE R ERZ
an associate (note 49(b)(i)) Ug #5 (B 5E49(b) (1)) 3,269 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 7] f i} & =~ 1& & B9 )8 (& /& 18
(note 38) (Pt 538) (46,243) (10,552)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments {1 & 7] fff H & 2 & & B W R
(note 38) (PH5E38) 94,533 -
Impairment loss on loans and receivables B R EWRIE 2 RERBE - (5,334)
Bad debts recovered/(written off) 24 mE (il 8 ) B iR 6,164 (20,429)
Tax incentive HEERKE = 4,498
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative component AMEESETETIESH 2
of convertible bonds (note 36) ApEkE(EE) (M EE3e) 30,488 (27,733)
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds EL A MR EH 218
(note 36) (P 5E36) (31,101) -
Exchange gain/(loss), net EH Wes (E18)  JFHE 14,158 (36,525)
Government grant AT 76 Bh & 1,604 1,367
245,414 428,386
8  FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 HMBEA FH
2010 2009
HK$’000 K$ 000
BT T BT T
Interest expenses on bank loans wholly BREFRNEHEEZEZRITERR
repayable within five years and overdrafts BEYNHMESE 27,961 60,585
Interest expenses on convertible bonds BRTIFANEHEEZITBRRES
wholly repayable within five years m A B 14,777 38,165
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties B BIEEREPWMERR
under development (note) (B ) (5,847) (11,869)
36,891 86,881
Less: Interest from bank deposits B SRIT A BURA (4,624) (16,996)
32,267 69,885
Note: B 5
The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development E@f FERBRISRILA T’E BRERMEZEREER

of properties was between 4.37% and 7.56% (2009: 5.31% and 7.47%) per

annum during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B & M AT

9  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9 BREADER
2010 2009
~gF -TThE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 78T T
Profit before taxation has been arrived b # Bl m A 2 0B
at after charging the following: TAHIER
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ¥ % - BB M & H 2 T & 59,879 68,519
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work o BIES K ITIEK A (1,815) (1,177)
58,064 67,342
Auditors’ remuneration ZE BTN & 7,044 7,907
Staff costs (note a) 8 T (M sta) 732,243 818,974
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work W BIEEH TR A (94,073) (105,295)
638,170 713,679
Operating lease payments in respect of leasingof HEMNU NEBEH 22X MHHEE A
— premises (note b) - EF (M 3b) 139,407 106,815
— equipment e 776 1,442
140,183 108,257
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (note 16) J8 15 12 & 7k 18 8k 85 (fI ¥ 16) 11,167 11,798
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 18) HEmEEEESN(MMHt18) 9,212 1,597
Write down of properties for sale to WREEMER
net realisable value Al &35 H(E - 26,717
Write down of inventories to net realisable value #8177 & & 7] & 1§ F (& 15,336 9,197
Share option granted by a listed subsidiary —MHETmHBARIMERRERT
for consultancy services 2 B S 862 —
and crediting the following: Wit ATHIEE
Gross rental income of HK$52,010,000 48 ) 2T S WA B #52,010,0007T
(2009: HK$55,386,000) from properties (ZZZHE : 55,386,000 )
less direct operating expenses (note c) W EE& ST H (st 37,793 43,235
Write back of provision for properties for sale 5] & %r EMEZBER
to net realisable value ] # 5 )FE 11,878 -
Notes: Pt
(a)  Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in ) EFEHEEREEEIZH H &R 7E M
note 42. SOREE .
Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$520,000 (2009: BT X HBERRE T B s520, OOOT_E (=
HK$3,980,000) in respect of redundancy payments made to staff and TENFE : B ¥3,980,0007T ) K& B HIER IR W 1/\
an amount of HK$34,652,000 (2009: HK$36,651,000) in respect of SRR R 5T & 4 5O 34,652,000 (= F
contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net of NF : 5 ¥36,651,0007C) ©

forfeited contributions.

(b)  Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are
contingent rentals of HK$9,437,000 (2009: HK$6,184,000).

() Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,710,000 (2009:
HK$1,953,000) less outgoings of HK$1,492,000 (2009: HK$1,093,000)
from jointly controlled assets.

Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$45,692,000 (2009:
HK$46,033,000) derived from investment properties.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

10 FBBxH (ER)

2010 2009
T-¥5 —TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BMFR AW
Current tax RNEZHIE
Hong Kong EHE 44,864 18,542
Overseas R4 10,589 9,566
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFEGRRE) TREEBE (2,281) 107
53,172 28,215
Deferred tax IR E T 18
Origination and reversal of EEMERE 2 ESE
temporary differences (note 39) X [0 # (B 3E39) 40,561 (26,053)
Impact of change in Hong Kong profits tax rate ~ & 8 A SR E & 2 2 & - (6,306)
93,733 (4,144)
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) &8 NS B o st il 51 8 R TR FHR 1 £ 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on overseas profit has (= %‘i = 711¢ 16.5%) 5T & ° /8 9|\ R Jh AR
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at W@ﬁ@%ﬁmﬂm$$@ﬁ S XIS R 2
the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group WITHERAE -
operates.
Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 39. RIERIE 2 sFIE E M 39 B8 o
The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the REFET _E S (Ee) I REBLGE KR
profit before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: KAZBRBAEFEIRAT ¢
2010 2009
—2F —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation K R A 549,033 3,556
Adjust for: B
Share of results of associates FriG B & R Al 8 (54,514) (7,482)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities Fris HEEHI D EES (23,002) 11,356
471,517 7,430
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% 1R 2N 4 F) 15 B %16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) (ZFTNF 1 165%) 5t H 2 IR 77,800 1,226
Effect of different tax rates on EETAEBEERKE ZHE QA
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions FRHTRAKRERNTE 5,808 (5,482)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ALY H 2B E 30,314 69,242
Tax effect of non-taxable income BABHRWA ZBHIEZE (33,604) (144,591)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses not ATHERZAFEMRBEEN
recognised HEZE 40,967 87,617
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and FRARFARATHERZHUBEEER
other deductible temporary difference EfaflmzcERtERY
not previously recognised MEE (29,465) (12,263)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE(BE)/ TEEE (2,281) 107
Others H i 4,194 -
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year REEFHREMSH (ER) 93,733 (4,144)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B & M AT

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BRAF
(a) Basic (a) i
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable R EARAR THIREAR R B RERE AESL
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of S A EEE R AR FE B BT EBER Z INEF
ordinary shares in issue during the year. BBt E o
2010 2009
—EB-BF _—_ZTITNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Profit attributable to equity holders KAFIREREA A
of the Company & 16 & Fl 377,547 135,634
Number of Number of
shares shares
K& #AE [ESE - QE|
’000 ’000
¥ IR T X
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EETEREKR
in issue H0HE 35 8 277,564 278,073
Basic earnings per share (HK$) R E AR EF| (&) 1.36 0.49
(b) Diluted (b) #H -
For the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, the convertible bonds BHE_T = %_& — 2= ﬂiﬁff )i: + —
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share HIEFE - Al iﬁ_ﬁ/ﬁ A] #2 E & 3‘5‘ ﬂ =S ZE
and the diluted earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per J:EQ T‘_'J EAREER %‘ - EsNiE BR i‘] e
share. As at 31 March 2010, the Company did not have any dilutive REBREREAM - }5/\\\:5%5 ZFE=H=+—
equity instruments. B ARARYEEMESRELEIRATA -
12 DIVIDENDS 2 B2
2010 2009
—B2-2F _—ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend of HK$0.150 (2009: HK$0.055) B J& * Hi ik 2 & J& B 0.1507T
per share paid —“TTAEF - FROE¥0.0557T) 41,635 15,266
Final dividend of HK$0.550 (2009: HK$0.200) BORA B 85 HQ 75 #0.5507C
per share proposed (ZZEZTNF : FRBE0.2007T) 152,660 55,513
No special dividend (2009: HK$0.200) 150 Bk 5 R H& B
per share proposed —ZEETNF  BRAE0.2000T) = 55,513
194,295 126,292
A final dividend of HK$0.550 per share, totalling HK$152,660,000, ARRIEFERARERABRETRER
has been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject 0.5507C @ & 78 ¥ 152,660,000 7T, * #F B % &
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general A Z BREEFAG - ER % B - ZERIE
meeting. The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained N @ E-E——F=-"A=+—HIEFERA
profits for the year ending 31 March 2011. REEBRBENZ DK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N AT

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF 13 ARERERFEARMLGF
THE COMPANY - — -
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in AR AR B A A B 15 i 71|78 #599,958,0007T
the financial statements of the Company is HK$99,958,000 (2009: (ZZZTNF : E%708,887,0007T) B 5F AR
HK$708,887,000). NEH SRR
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REYE
The Group rE
2010 2009
—E-25 _"TITAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BMFR BT
At 1 April B A—H 1,004,810 1,117,445
Exchange realignment E N 17,315 (6,298)
Transfer from/(to) properties, plant and #wE (2)0E BEK
equipment and prepaid lease payments wERFANEEREA
(note e) (P4 5Ee) 307,979 (6,700)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value (note 7) NaEEn R (MsE7) 179,781 (99,637)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,509,885 1,004,810
The Group’s investment properties at their carrying values are analysed REBZREYFERRIZREAEZOTAT :
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-BF -—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
ikl BT T
In Hong Kong B
On long-term leases (over 50 years) REAAN(A T+ L) 15,750 -
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) RHIEY(+ER+F) 659,375 360,074
Outside Hong Kong HBEI
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FHBEN(+ER+F) 595,706 518,222
Freehold KA KT 239,054 126,514
1,509,885 1,004,810
Notes: B 5
(a)  The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong, (a) $§§ BN EE TREAMEEINZREY
Mainland China and overseas as at 31 March 2010 have been arrived at ER_F-FTF=H §+ —Bz AV (EWEF)
on the basis of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Il B8 78 KZ/ET = T% ii} ZE ST (& A % %ﬁ},@ﬂ at Eﬁj 18
Limited or DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who are independent RAFIBEBRITARAANE BET 2
qualified professional valuers and have appropriate qualifications and E 7% 5 Qt— R EHE at 1 Eﬂj BEHESBEER N
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. WHEBERE iﬁ I EAT "W ¥MmEN ,@%ﬁ © EZ
The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on (ENIE 75 FAS éﬁi 788 % 4 F—-?i— 2 @ B & /EU
Properties published by HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market ERME igi LR E'J DIARE Y M 5 £
evidence of transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the LS El'\J RHE HENBEZ W= FEHE
net income allowing for reversionary potential. fEH FF A o
(b)  Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of (b) fz E/\‘ B Z & B EBIEAR % F§ 1l H A 4%
HKS$21,333,000 (2009: HK$18,667,000) represent the Group’s share of B A E 2 s - H ik E AR E S %21,333,000
interest in jointly controlled assets. T(ZETNF : H%18,667,0007T) °
(c)  Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying (o) IREAERB 626,347,000 (ZTZNEF
value of HK$626,347,000 (2009: HK$350,976,000) for the purpose of 7 #5350,976,0007T ) 2 B AV X B AEIKIR - 1F
securing banking facilities granted to the Group. RETAEERITEE ZHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBRENT

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14 BREWHEw)

Notes: (continued) Mizx : (4&)

(d) Investment properties with carrying value totalling HK$71,974,000 as at d RZZEZEANF=A=+—HB  REEASHLE
31 March 2009 were pledged to a court of the Mainland China as security #71,974,0007c 2 I E X B HWIF T —fEF
for a property preservation measures under legal proceedings among A ERE - VEA AN E B R Y| — K £ /) 15 4
the Group and the joint venture partner of a jointly controlled entity in PENEEBEZEEFA T ZHERSE
Shenzhen. The pledge was released during the year. i o IR ERF AR -

(e)  For the year ended 31 March 2010, following to the disposal of 2% () HE-Z—ZF=ZA=1+—HILFE Wk
interest in the CHK Group as detailed in note 49(c)(ii) to the financial EMRMFF49() () FTEFIL - REEELHRS
statements, the CHK Group is accounted for as an associate of the SEE2%ERE  ELBRAEEERIAAREE
Group, properties leased to the CHK Group is reclassified as investment ZEMENT  HATHIESEFB ZMWERTE
properties at date of disposal. EEHEFIBARKEDE -

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BERKXE
The Group INE
Furniture,
fixtures,
leasehold
improvement,
Other Plant, other
Cold storage Hotel properties machineryand equipment and
warehouse properties  for own use equipment motor vehicles Total
B #8
HENE
BE #E
Httr Bes Hitikts
REER BENE BRNE PET RAE am
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost B
At 1 April 2008 RZEZN\EWA—H 61,000 155,674 417,314 345,629 366,871 1,346,488
Exchange realignment EHAE - (23,623) (23,011) (3,804) (7,216) (57,654)
Step-up acquisition of interest BE-BMBe0R2ER
in an associate (note 49(b)(ii)) (B 5E49(b)(11)) - - 2,160 15,572 30,596 48,328
Additions NE - 24 9,156 37,937 24,520 71,837
Disposal HE - - (381) (22,026) (35,759) (58,166)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR - - (57,004) (211,693) (18,418) (287,115)
Transfer from investment EHRE
properties S - - 1,550 - - 1,550
Reclassification BN - - - 158 (158) -
Reclassified as held for sale ENMNEARFHE - - (4,675) (10,037) (23,454) (38,166)
At 31 March 2009 RZEENF=A=1—H 61,000 132,275 345,109 151,736 336,982 1,027,102
Exchange realignment EHAE = 24,115 23,626 2,503 5,967 56,211
Step-up acquisition of interest HE-HBE AR RS
in an associate (note 49(b)(i)) (B 5249(b) (1)) = = - 59 = 59
Additions NE = 8,096 498 10,740 32,846 52,180
Disposal HeE - (12,486) - (48,919) (69,353) (130,758)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB LT = = = = (42) (42)
Transfer to investment BEpRE
properties = = = (105,327) = = (105,327)
Reclassification ENNE - 4,454 = (378) (4,076) =
CAGIMacha0  RCECTESASEOR G0 156454 6906 LS 30aM 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 YE BERKE
The Group (continued) REE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures,
leasehold
improvement,
Other Plant, other
Cold storage Hotel properties machineryand equipment and
warehouse properties  for own use equipment motor vehicles Total
B 2B
HENE
BE. BB
. i R
REER EEDE BAME e RAE b
HK$’0(E) HK$’0(E) HK$’0@ HK$’0(¥) HK$’0(E) HK$’0(E)
BET T BT BB BRI BT BB
Accumulated deprecation R MERAE
and impairment
At 1 April 2008 R-ZEN\FMA-A 13,597 47,599 9,123 171,374 246,357 577,050
Exchange realignment ERAE - (6,109) (8,583) (1,730) (5,280) (21,702)
Charge for the year EEHE 2,005 2,501 8,192 23,732 31,889 68,519
(Write back of)/provision for ( b )/ BEREEE
impairment loss, net (note 7) /33 #(MsE7) - - - (95) 19,234 19,139
Disposal ek - - (90) (9,963) (29,4%8) (39,551)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRAA - - (7,275) (91,309) (7,072) (105,636)
Reclassification EgibE - - - 120 (120) -
Reclassification as held for sale EHNBEAGE - - (1,227) (9,014) (18,837) (29,078)
At 31 March 2009 R-_ZZNEF=A=+—-H 15,802 43,991 89,140 83,115 236,673 468,721
Exchange realignment ERRE - 7,024 8,730 2,079 4,416 22,249
Charge for the year EFEFE 2,205 2,949 6,114 15,738 32,873 59,879
Impairment loss (note 7) pe fﬁ B8 (MsE7) = = = 4112 1,028 5,140
Disposal pe - (12,486) - (39,636) (67,757) (119,879)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - = = = (31) (31)
Transfer to investment EERRENE
properties - - (21,103) - - (21,103)
Reclassification EHNE = 2,138 = 253 (2,391) =
__AGIMarch200  RZE-FEZAZACA ] 18007 43616 82881 650661 - 204811 414,976
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2010 R_ZE-ZTF=-F=1—H 42,993 112,838 181,025 50,080 97,513 484,449
At 31 March 2009 R-ETZAF=A=+—H 45,198 88,284 255,969 68,621 100,309 558,381
Notes: Bt 5E
(a)  The carrying value of properties comprises: (a) YHEZEEESRE :
2010 2009
—EB-EF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Freehold land and buildings thereon KAERETHRERE FZ2EF 71,264 98,710
Buildings on leasehold land HELH F2ETF 265,592 290,741
336,856 389,451
(b)  Charges were created on certain properties, plant and equipment with a (b) IREMBEARE112,160,0007T (=TT NF :

total carrying value of HK$112,160,000 (2009: HK$153,601,000) for the

purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

75 1153,601,0007T) 2 & TY%E -~ BE k&
EEEA  EARTASERTEEZER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBRENT

16 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments comprise:

16 FANHEERE

BNEERBRSE

The Group &
2010 2009
—g-¥F -—TINF
HK$000 _HK$°000
BT T BT T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: REBZHEE LI
On long-term leases (over 50 years) EHMEY(ATFENLE) 93,124 96,511
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FEHIBRYO(+ER %) 260,735 314,904
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: REBRINZHE L
On long-term leases (over 50 years) EHBEO(RETEFU L) 366 13,888
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FHEN(+ER+F) 8,719 9,866
On short-term leases (under 10 years) REELN(TFUT) 17 28
362,961 435,197
The movements in the Group’s prepaid lease payments during the year AREBERNBENEERBEH 2 HDHWOT -
are analysed as follows:
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ZETTNF
HK$’000 H, $’0®
BMFR B
At 1 April RMOAB—H 435,197 446,018
Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (note 49(b)(ii)) 12 B8 — B & A 7] 2 B 2 (P 5E49(b) (ii)) = 1,640
Exchange realignment ER AR 1,125 (1,552)
Additions NE 2,589 -
Disposal ik = (611)
Amortisation (note 9) 55 (M 519) (11,167) (11,798)
Transfer (to)/from investment properties 8(2)/BRENE (64,783) 5,150
Reclassification as held for sale (note 32(c)) B BEAGES (HE320) - (3,650)
At 31 March R=ZB=+—H 362,961 435,197
Charges were created on the prepaid lease payments with a total R T 48 {8 & 7% 106,187,000 ( Z T N 4F
carrying value of HK$106,187,000 (2009: HK$151,989,000) for the 75 151,989,000 70) 2 AN E X IE B K
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group. W UEARTAEBRETEE 2 ER -
17 GOODWILL 17 B8
The Group NE
2010 2009
—g-BF -—TTpE
HK$’000 H $’0(£)
BMFR BT
At 1 April RIUAB—H 202,591 210,330
Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (note 49 (b)(ii)) 1% &8 — Bk & A 7] 2 25 (B 5F49(b)(1i)) = 171,543
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 49(d)) Ui B8 — 5 T B /0 A (B F49(d)) 5,117 -
Adjustment arising from finalisation of EEEE-REE AR
purchase consideration for step-up JERNREBESE
acquisition of interest in an associate kel (661) —
Disposal of 75% interest in CPT Group (note 49(c)(iii)) HECPTS B 2 75%H & (P 7 49(c) (i) = (46,744)
Reclassification as held for sale (note 32(c)) EFNEAGEE (HF32()) - (3,259)
Impairment loss (note 7) mEBE (T (29,174) (129,279)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 177,873 202,591

Details of impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note 41.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

18 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 HthEFLEE
The Group KE
Trademarks ~ Cold storage
Roads, ofbranded  and public
drainage and  Other patents ~ coffee shops, bonded
Development ~ waterworks  andlicenses  restaurants ~ warehouse
expenditure license rights and bars licenses Others Total
B RB mEWGE - SHRER

RABIE HtSHE £EL  1DRRHA
ES & R RER EBZES BR R aE
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000

AMTr BRI BMTn  BRTR BRI ERTn  ARTX

Cost A&
At1 April 2008 N-ZT\EmA-A 12,725 26,534 23500 108,000 3,000 406 177828
Exchange realignment E ;ﬁ = (272) - 264 - - - (8)
Step-up acquisition of interest 12 B — fE I *g* R 2R
in an associate (note 49(b)(ii))  (FI549(b)(ii)) - - - 10,337 - - 10,337
Additions NET - - - - - 5,933 5,933
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBRTA (12,453) - (23,764) - - - (36,217)
At 31 March 2009 R-FENF=A=1-H = 26,534 . 118,337 3,000 10,002 157,873
Exchange realignment ERRE = = = = = 463 463
Disposal e = = = = = (1,460) (1,460)
o AIMarch20w0 o RCFCREZAZNCE o L S N U -/ N B 136,876
Accumulated R ERAE
amortisation and
impairment
At1 April 2008 R-ZTN\FMA-A 7,290 2157 3,600 - 1837 1,900 16,784
Exchange realignment ERRE (171) - 75 - - - (96)
Charge for the year (note 9) ERBE(IHY) 433 - 864 - 300 - 1,597
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRAT (7,552) - (4,539) - - - (12,091)
At 31 March 2009 R-ZBNF=A=1—H - 2,157 - - 2,137 1,900 6,194
Exchange realignment ELBRE = = = = S (55) (55)
Charge for the year (note 9) ERBE(NEY) = = - 7,889 300 1,023 9,212
Impairment loss (note 7) WEEE (M F7) - 12,200 - - - - 12,200
ABIMarch20l0 RS RECAZNCE o] T R i
Carrying value REE
As at 31 March 2010 R-T-ZF=-A=t—H - 12,177 - 110,448 563 6,137 129,325
As at 31 March 2009 R-TENF=A=1—H - 2,377 - 118,337 863 8,102 151,679
Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks EmEREE(BRER 25 MK TIZEER
license (“License”)) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the ( Hﬁ i | ) SN) Th LA B &R IR AL Eal{E A E
following estimated useful lives: HAETTHEGE -
Development expenditure 10 years H%EER +F
Other patents and licenses rights 16 years H b BRI 4 K% fE PR TRF
Trademarks of branded coffee shops, restaurants and bars 15 years an )iﬁ MeEE  BEEREEZEE THE
Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years RERBERABRBEER +F
The License was purchased as part of business combinations in prior BERRAEFEEXZBOHMBA - KAF
years. The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the EERn EEZEHEREREE il EAR M
upkeep of the License is at minimal cost and the Group would renew AEBETERERBRETHEN AKEE
the License continuously. Various studies have been performed by the BEEETSHEME ZERRAIFHHER
management of the Group, which support that there is no foreseeable BEAEEEEEFReRCESR  AED
limit to the period over which the License are expected to generate net A 78 40 2 PR ) °

cash inflows for the Group.
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HREMBRENT

The Company

18 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18 HMB\EEE@®
The License is considered by the managemnet of the Group as having AEBERERABRRAGERIFERSF
an indefinite usefull life and will not be amortised until its useful life H TRy E2EEEEBRER
is determined to be finite upon reassessment of its useful life annually FERFHERFEFEFRTEE HEERFERE
by the management. Instead, they will be tested for impairment HERAIE - BEBESTFE RE LA R
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. EBEEFETHENR - AR ZFBR
Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in note 41. M sE41 9 2R -
The coffee shops trademark was purchased as part of business MM ERER AT FEREESAHME
combinations in prior years. At initial recognition, the Directors of A REAXERE ARAEERAEEZA
the Company considered that the trademark had an indefinite useful FEERUFEHFH TR BEEEETZIE
life. During this year, the management reassessed the useful life of A 95 DA 2 35 17 51 hE 0 B JE P AR 2RI B 4F
the trademark of branded coffee shops by performing various studies. B - BEHEER EZTREEATHFE
Based on the results, the Directors considered that it is appropriate SR EnrnFERFHeER(FRUEZ
to adjust the useful life of the trademark from indefinite as stated in —EENF A=+ HIEFELREMBR
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March R FABRZEEFIF2ARFHBEBREZ
2009 to finite with a life of 15 years starting from this financial year. 2 oo e st HEt M EFHE B 7,200,0007T 2
The change in accounting estimate resulted in an amortisation of BHETABRE T —ZTF=-_A=1+—HLHF
HK$7,200,000 charged for the business to the consolidated income EziRealamRks -
statement for the year ended 31 March 2010.
19 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 P BARZES
PN
(a) Interests in subsidiaries (a) FTIEMIBARZRER
2010 2009
—E-EF —IZTNF
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BT T BT T
Cost less impairment B 2 F0 B Ok (B
Share listed in Hong Kong EHE L Tz & 5m 268,154 268,154
Unlisted shares 3E F oz Bt 709,231 802,483
Amounts due from subsidiaries E UL BT B A B R 38 1,217,237 1,003,893
2,194,622 2,074,530
Market value of shares listed in Hong Kong EE TR TE 758,639 102,866
Amount due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets RIERBEEN Z F? ”g W B R RIRKTY
are unsecured, interest free and considered equity in nature. EIEH  LENEAERESL -
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R=_FT— g F= A= + —H BEXEMNE
2010 are set out in note 50. RNEIZER  BEHR S0 -
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries — current (b) EW (KB AIRNE-EH
2010 2009
—E-EF Z—ITThF
HK$’000 H/K$’000
BT T BT T
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT B N B IR 3¢ 1,386,246 1,840,220
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETFY B A B 0R 3K 1,392,227 1,413,584
Amounts due from/to subsidiaries current assets/ RuBEEABRZEE T ft
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, B R ARy R - B KRB K
except for a sum of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling BE R WK B N ERRAE /ji\ 7
HK$206,922,000 (2009: HK$427,276,000) which bears interest " 206,922,000 L (= B T S & B W
at Prime Rate of The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking 427,276,0007T) BIZ % G ELRTE
Corporation Limited plus 3% (2009: Prime Rate of The Hong R ARz &EBEF 2?— n EE 3 (ZF
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited plus 3%) per ThE  FABLBESRTERAAZ
annum. REFMEMELE3%)GE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N AT

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 Frih IZﬁE NI £ 4G
(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries — current (continued) (b) FEW/ (F)KEQTRR-ZH (@)
The carrying amounts of the Company’s amounts due from KNG EWHBARIRKZEEBIIAT
subsidiaries are denominated in the following currencies: | EH AR
2010 2009
—g-2F —TINF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T ST T
Canadian dollar me Xt 206,409 172,433
Hong Kong dollar B 2,390,960 2,648,020
Macau Pataca B P = 8,310
Others Hih 6,114 15,350
The carrying amounts of the Company’s amounts due to PN %\: al f& ﬁ NN W]E K2 FRRTIAT
subsidiaries are denominated in the following currencies: NGB REN
2010 2009
T-EF -—TThA
HK$°000 _HK$000
BT T BT T
Euro Y ?& 43 3,383
Hong Kong dollar okt 1,138,438 1,093,715
Macau Pataca P 253,746 279,020
Renminbi AR B - 37,466
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 FRGBEE DB 2R
The Group The Company
rEE bINNET|
2010 2009 2010 2009
2-%F —TTNS —2-BF —TTNA
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Interests in associates, Frib B & R A 2 BEa
including goodwill B E 369,469 187,482 89,594 -
Amounts due from associates & Uk Bt & 1\ B R 3R
(note b) (Pt 5Fb) 156,474 101,582 20,962 85,409
Amounts due to associates JE 1< Bt & N B BR 3K
(note b) (P b)) 3,421 89 = -
The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year REEBFHNFAEBERAR2ERES 29
are analysed as follows: mE
2010 2009
~25 -—TThE
HK$°000 _HK$°000
BT T BT T
At 1 April RMEA—H 187,482 172,818
Share of results FTih 345 54,514 7,482
Transfer from interests in subsidiaries HEREEMENEB QA
upon disposal of 2R
— 2% interest in CHK Group - HITEHEBEEH 22%% = 125,935 —
— 75% interest in CPT Group - CPTE & 2 75%1# 2 - 14,673
Acquisition of interests in associates BABE AR ZERS 30,472 84,701
Transferred as part of step-up acquisition TERIGEE — RS N Nal 2 EmH
of interests in associates (note 49(b)(i), (ii)) a2 B (B 5T49(b) (1), (ii)) (1,479) (53,179)
Eliminated on business combination RS M = (18,528)
Dividends LB (31,495) (20,735)
Exchange realignment ME H A R 4,040 250
At 31 March R=HA=+—8H 369,469 187,482
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20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is set

20 FrihErE

REEBZ QA

DNEZRER @)
Az

MBERBZIEMT :

out below:
2010 2009
—®-%BF -—TTNG
HK$’000 HK$°000
ik cl BT T
Total assets mEE 3,616,116 1,914,957
Total liabilities waE (2,559,220) (1,329,165)
Minority interests DR R E R (46,990) (8,231)
1,009,906 577,561
Revenue W 25 5,141,791 1,357,243
Profit for the year N E 5% A 153,674 4,146
Notes: M5
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2010 are set (@ K= T—= == FH = T-HEFEHE QT
out in note 51. ZER  BEERMEESL o
(b) Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and (b) fE LBZ/VE @ BN RIRKTERTF - 28K
repayable on demand, except for the following balances: RERER - AT AERERR I
(i) Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$9,529,000 (1) $ S EE H&g* M B & A B IR X /%
(2009: HK$9,039,000) which bears interest at a rate of 6.2% (2009: w9, 29,000 7T (= T NF s
6.2%) per annum. 9,039,0007T ) JYIRF £ FE6.2% (ZFF N,
F :6.2%)F B °
(i)  Amount due from an associate of the Group of HK$77,163,000 (i) AEEZ JTE I — B & A Al IR 3k 7% oS
(2009: nil) which bears interest at the prevailing market rates per 77,163,000 7T (== {_jl\i ) 2_5 2
annum quoted by The People’s Bank of China and the average A E% TTRTRIRIT IS H K58
effective interest rate was 4.86% per annum. H 15 8 IR F F X /34.86% ©
(iii) Amount due from an associate of the Group and the Company of (i) AEBEAQAR e M ﬁf =A
HK$79,022,000 as at 31 March 2009 which bore interest at a rate =t -BAEKR—REBERRIRRBE
of 3-month Euro Interbank Offered Rate plus 100 basis points per 79,022,000 T2 = {8 A K& R1T7[E % Tﬁ:
annum. The whole amount was repaid before 31 March 2010. BN E B 10016 & B 5t %: %%‘( B
—E—ZEE=F=+—HAEE-
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates approximate R EMBEARRRZIREES5RE
their fair values. ARBERE -
The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are denominated ERARRZIREBET AT EE A

in the following currencies:

B
==
KFss

&
R

The Group The Company
TEE ARE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTHhEFE ZE-TF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T AT T BT T
Euro Br 28 - 80,964 - 79,022
Hong Kong dollar B 27,449 463 20,962 6,387
Renminbi AR 129,025 20,155 = -
The carrying amount of amounts due to associates are denominated in E’Ef NL NGl RRZIREBELTIES R
the following currencies: B -
The Group The Company
REE ARE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-2F _—ITTHhF ZEB-BF _—TTNF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 3,421 - - —
Renminbi AR - 89 — —
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LA B HIRE N

21 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21 FribHEEHERER
The Group rE
2010 2009
~g& -—TThE
HK$’000 _HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interests in jointly controlled entities, P HEE S 2 2w
including goodwill @? RS 560,308 383,508
Reclassified as held for sale ENMOBAFE (173,157) -
387,151 383,508
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities (note b) & J £ [ 12 #l] {b 2 & FX ([T 7Eb) 464,136 424,837
Reclassified as held for sale EMOBATE (225,494) -
238,642 424,837
The movements in the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities P S ¢ A B[R] 428 ) 1 35 Z* ER BB D
during the year are analysed as follows: T
2010 2009
225 -—TThE
HK$’000 _HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April R A—H 383,508 264,745
Share of results IR 23,002 (11,356)
Capital contributions BERHE 157,541 150,421
Acquisition of interest in a jointly controlled entity Y& — & HEEH G 2= = 32,227
Cancellation of a consideration payable for B e )
the acquisition of certain interest in HEZEHEEST
a jointly controlled entity ERZEMRE - (57,590)
Dividends sy (6,762) -
Exchange realignment fE 5 #& 3,019 5,061
Reclassified as held for sale EMOBARTE (173,157) -
At 31 March R=HA=+—H 387,151 383,508
The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled entities BEAREEEZBHA s LRAES X CHBE
(including financial information of jointly controlled entities classified H(EEIBAFE  HAEHMEZHKE
as held for sale) related to the Group’s interest is set out below: EOBESH O -
2010 2009
—E-%F -—TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 78T T
Current assets mENE E ) 1,375,110 813,429
Non-current assets EmBE E 51,044 222,114
Current liabilities mEBE (690,338) (525,779)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (207,136) (159,970)
528,680 349,794
Revenue U #5 184,595 218,758
Expenses, including taxation S (BIEBIE) (160,290) (230,114)
Notes: B 73
(a)  Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities as at 31 (@ R-FT-THF=-A= T—HEEEHREH
March 2010 are set out in note 52. hEZER  BENMES2 -
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A B IR M AT
21 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21 PSR EEH AR ER @

(continued)

Notes: (continued) MIaE : (88)

(b)  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest- (b) EUHRBEHSERIDEERT @ 28 KR
free and repayable on demand, except for amounts due from jointly ESREE o MEFE W L [E 12 5 b E R B
controlled entities of HK$129,600,000 (2009: HK$14,020,000) which 129,600,000 7 ( — Z & S F : 75 %5 14,020,000
bear interest at rates ranging from 115% to 130% (2009: 110% to T)IRPBEARBITHARRITHIBEFNEH
115%) of the prevailing market rates per annum quoted by The People’s 115%ZE 130% (Z B N F : 110%ZE 115%) 5t
Bank of China and the average effective interest rate was 6.89% (2009: B EFXHEEREFHNEX 5689% (T N,
6.11%) per annum. The carrying amounts of amounts due from F16.11%) o EW LRSI P ZEIIRR ZIRE
jointly controlled entities approximate their fair values. Except for an BHEHERNLBEHRSG BB 126,975,0007T (=
amount of HK$26,975,000 (2009: nil) which is denominated in Hong ZTTNE : B) 2B EDEI)  H
Kong dollar, the remaining balances totalling HK$211,667,000 (2009: BREEE S R 211,667,000 ( ZETNF
HK$424,837,000) are denominated in Renminbi. 7 #5424,837,0007T ) J5 A A R & 51 (E -

22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 2 AHHEZRE
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AHEHECREBRSRE :
The Group The Company
REE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —Z2TNF ZEBE-TBF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETIT BT T BT T
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FLEMKE EHAAE -
— equity securities N &N 1,728 19,970 1,728 19,970
— private funds (note) -FEES(HE) 211,299 223,543 205,894 206,274
213,027 243,513 207,622 226,244
Unlisted equity securities, FELETRAZFS -
at cost less impairment A B R E - 215 - —
213,027 243,728 207,622 226,244
Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following AHEEZREDUNTIEB REN
currencies:
The Group The Company
rE /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —TITNF —B-BE —TINF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT BT T BT T
Euro Bx 78 32,349 32,054 32,349 32,054
Hong Kong dollar ks 1,728 20,185 1,728 19,970
US dollar E= 170,213 180,112 164,808 167,995
Others H1th 8,737 11,377 8,737 6,225
213,027 243,728 207,622 226,244
Note: =3
The fair values of the private funds of the Group and the Company are ARBRARNAZILBEG 2 ARBEHILEME
determined based on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed Bz Emik ,éf Z %5 i&’jgi MEFE - M L™ Trxt:éf Z
investments while the fair values of the unlisted investments are determined AnBERAZEESHMBEXN(NBRERERERE)
based on financial models (such as discounted cash flow model) on the funds. MmEE °
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LA B IRE N

23 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

23 REDKRBRIAEBEEZRE

OR LOSS -
Investments at fair value through profit or loss comprise: RBHERBRAABREZRZEBRE
The Group The Company
AEH FN/NE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
T —“TTNF ZTB-FF ZTTNHF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T B FIT
Listed investments: FmERE
Held for trading FFIEE &/
— debt securities - BB EH 72,971 69,459 = 16,157
— equity securities listed _EE Fm2
in Hong Kong [N 79,717 4,249 60,612 4,249
— equity securities listed —Hfbih 5 EH 2
overseas f& 7N 25 5 47,580 23,513 6,361 -
— exchange-traded funds - RGMEEES 4,256 - = —
e 204524 | 97021 66973 20406
Unlisted investments: ELEMEE -
Held for trading HIEE & A%
— mutual and hedge funds -EERHPES 1,679 21,840 1,350 19,172
— money market funds - EEmBES 100 - 100 —
Designated upon initial recognition Rz A R 05 4% € 5
— debt securities -EBES 69,337 27,436 23,074 13,601
— structured deposits _EEEER = 45,807 = -
R, 7LI16 | 95083 . 24,524 | 32,773
275,640 192,304 91,497 53,179
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Esh S Bd 2o
Non-current assets EREBEE - 27,704 - -
Current assets mEh A E 275,640 164,600 91,497 53,179
275,640 192,304 91,497 53,179
The fair values of the listed investments are determined based on the FHAREZR fﬁ BIRIEE 5? S 2%
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges and the BAHREMERE E ﬁﬁ EMBEZRAARETD
unlisted investments are determined based on financial models or with RMBEAETE L2 ERBEBAMGHEE
reference to quoted prices from relevant financial institutions. ZmIE -
As at 31 March 2009, unlisted investments included structured RZEBEZNF=ZA=+—H A&EEHZ 3'5 s
deposits of the Group of HK$45,807,000, the fair values of which were T i% & £ ¥ 75 545,807,000 7T 7 &5 8 [ 7 3K
. . o o 0.2 7 -+ —
affected by the changes in market prices of specific equity securities or /NI TE XBERAFSR 2 MIHERETIS
market interest rates. MEFZE o
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HREMBHRENT
23 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

The Group The Company
EME PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF ZE-TBF ZTThHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 83,974 4,249 60,613 4,249
Japanese Yen H 44,964 23,513 3,744 -
US dollar ET 144,086 159,199 24,524 48,930
Others Htb 2,616 5,343 2,616 -
275,640 192,304 91,497 53,179
24 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24 BEHBPYIE
The Group rEH
2010 2009
—g-®F —TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
At 1 April M A—H 236,424 -
Additions NE 121,879 166,532
Transfer from other non-current assets EaHEMIEREEE = 69,892
As 31 March R=A=+—H 358,303 236,424
The balance is related to a property development project in ZEHEREARELNF((REDEETA
Changchun, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). —IEYEEREIEEEH -
25 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 25 HihERBEE
The Group N &
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Deposits paid for a property development ENMEERBEEZES
project (note) (M3E) 153,033 152,835
Others Hip 44,229 34,809
197,262 187,644
Note: Fff&F -

OR LOSS (continued)

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or

loss are denominated in the following currencies:

23 REZREBEAABEEZ2REM®

BB 25 0B 1 2 (EL R 2 350 0 O T (7Y X
THESRE -

The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in

Changchun, the PRC.
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A B IR & N
INVENTORIES 26 ®FE
The Group &
2010 2009
-85 ZZTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Raw materials =R 14,698 39,680
Finished goods B S 159,531 135,540
Consumables #E A Wk 5,615 26,849
179,844 202,069
Reclassified as held for sale (note 32(c)) EF oA AFE (WHiE32(c)) - (51,950)
179,844 150,119

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$681,324,000 (2009: HK$832,071,000).

GFERKAEERAIE LI AESE
7B K5 681,324,000 T (= 2 F N, &F
832,071,0007T,) ©

DN
B

Charges were created on inventories with a total carrying value of i T A8 (B &% 21,945,000 (ZEE N 4F -
HK$21,945,000 (2009: HK$46,298,000) for the purpose of securing 78 #46,298,0007) X FEEEER - (EAER T
banking facilities granted to the Group. REBRITEEZER -
PROPERTIES FOR SALE 27 HEWME
The Group &
2010 2009
~g% -—TIA%
HK$’000 HK$’000
ikl Y BT T
Unamortised prepaid land leases REHEN T HHEE
— in Hong Kong -RAEB 35,852 36,618
— outside Hong Kong _RNEEIBINM 8,695 8,619
Development costs il 35 B AR 127,728 152,194
172,275 197,431

Properties for sale include the Group’s share of interests in jointly
controlled assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,376,000
(2009: HK$18,623,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$36,487,000 (2009: HK$34,974,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$83,546,000 (2009: HK$62,675,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

—ZF—ZFFF 3R | Annual Report 2010

FEMEBEAEEENR LR IEG EEMNE
% HIREAE AB%18,376,000C ( ZZEZ 1,
F 118,623,000 ) ©

EEWIAHEHEXNANYWERDRN BB
36,487,000 7L (= & Z J1 F : B ¥ 34,974,000
Jo) °

R [ 428 & 7 183,546,000 T (Z T E L5

75 #562,675,0000T ) 2 FEWMEE R - ER
RPAEERITEEZER-
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ARE RIS B & B A

28 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 28 BWIRN  FHEESRBENKEA
The Group The Company
E AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF ZEBE-TBF TTNF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AT T BT T BT T BETT
Trade debtors B 5 EWRE 320,809 512,124 = -
Less: Provision for impairment B RE B (12,465) (23,937) = -
Trade debtors, net B RWIER - F5E
(note a) (B 7Ea) 308,344 488,187 - -
Other debtors, deposits and H b e Uk mE HoTFHES
prepayments 38 1+ 5/ I8 325,256 435,650 2,946 11,427
Retention receivables JE W (R B IR ; 7\ 206,704 229,853 = -
Consideration receivables on disposal 1 & [ff & ~ &) # E& Z
of interests in subsidiaries (note b) & U X 1B (BT 5Fb) - 191,947 = 191,947
840,304 1,345,637 2,946 203,374
Reclassified as held for sale ENOBEARGE
(note 32(c)) (M 7E32(0)) = (148,722) = -
840,304 1,196,915 2,946 203,374
Notes: B &
(a)  The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each (a) f SEHSEZLEBRR ﬁ% SRR Z
of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors EERRX HRTEHEFPZTHEEH R
was 60 days. X e
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows: REEZESHREBIRRAIREDTOT
2010 2009
-5  —TTAS
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
0 — 60 days 0-60K 235,381 401,268
61 — 90 days 61-90K 12,858 21,313
Over 90 days H90K 60,105 65,606
308,344 488,187
At 31 March 2010, gross trade debtors balances totalling HK$14,096,000 R-ZE—ZTF=ZA=+—H  KEHKERE
(2009: HK$25,362,000) were individually determined to be impaired, TP 2 IR MR R 48 A i & 2L 7508 14,096,000
which were related to customers that were in financial difficulties. The T(ZZE 2 NE - B #25,362,000T) + B A
management assessed that only a portion of these balances is expected Bl 4% = T A ﬂ% TRE - REBE 2 5‘5
to be recovered. Consequently, specific provision for impairment of HAE R W 1] 2R 17 bt MR K » Utk - M= F
HK$12,465,000 (2009: HK$23,937,000) was recognised as at 31 March —FE=A=+—AFEHSRRERE
2010. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The % 12,465,0007EV( - f—; ? JLE - B 823,937, 000
movement in the provision for impairment during the year is as follows: TT) o AE 3z £ 5% % ERFBAEMER
me R REBRBZESHOT
2010 2009
—g-BE  —TIA
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At 1 April mmA—A 23,937 26,897
Impairment loss recognised DR BEERER 2,728 21,696
Impairment loss written back [RACTEC SRV EiS (8,892) (1,267)
Uncollectable amounts written off MU E 2z & 58 (3,600) (15,580)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A 58 (501)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB A A (1,766) (7,308)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 12,465 23,937
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28 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be

impaired is as follows:

28

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHER T

FEWIRR » FHREESRBASRE®

BEEE (&)

(a) (&)
THRIEBTREZE S ERIRR ZIREK DT
R

2010 2009
—®-BF  —TIAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT

__Neither past due nor impaired ____________________: SWAERBMMEONE .. 182390 | . 222,936
Less than 60 days past due @ 2 D 60k 78,366 186,317
61 — 90 days past due #1 Hi61-90 K 7,358 16,252
Over 90 days past due i B 2190°K 38,599 61,257
Amount past due but not impaired B 8 HA 18 R E 124,323 263,826
Total 458 306,713 486,762

Trade debtors balances that are neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers
for more than six months with no history of default in the past.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade debtors are denominated in

EARARECEIRRIRFEHRERRE
EXRAEEBBNEANTE MEHERL
B2 ALTHRF -

AEBEE ZRUKIRKZIREE T A T 5 &8

the following currencies: REM
2010 2009
—E-EF ZTETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
VL BT
Australian dollar BT 124 1,627
Hong Kong dollar ok 253,811 267,228
Macau Pataca SE P9 12,621 120,055
Renminbi AR 3,218 8,342
US dollar ET 19,067 18,611
Others =) 19,503 72,324
308,344 488,187

(b)  Consideration receivables on disposal of interests in subsidiaries of the
Group and the Company as at 31 March 2009 are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Euros and were repaid during the year.

The carrying amounts of other debtors, deposits, prepayments and
retention receivables as at 31 March 2010 are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2010
approximate their fair values.

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is the Group’s share
of receivables of HK$85,000 (2009: HK$205,000) in relation to jointly
controlled assets.

b) R-ZBBEAFE=A=+—0 X&EERERARQ
AIHEH B AR RS2 BUIRAEEZ NS
MEEYE TERERNEE -

RZE-—ZTF=ZA=+—8 HtbEKIR
R FhEREe BENRERBREZRRRZ
REETEZABERARKSE -

R-FBE-—FF=_A=1+—H BRIERXKE
BRZEEEREERAAERE

JEWIRER - FHIRS RTEMNREABREANE
B 5t R 5 & 2= AT il 2 B YRR 578 85,000
TL(ZZEZNF : E#2050007T) °
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HEMBERENT
29 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 29 MENIBREREFEFKWER X2
CONTRACT WORK HIg
The Group b
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Contracts in progress at the end of the REBEHRZEIH
reporting period: 4
Contract costs incurred BEAZAHKA 4,442,128 4,684,138
Recognised net losses EMRFER (237,369) (214,686)
4,204,759 4,469,452
Less: Progress billings B EE A (4,694,908) (4,841,533)
(490,149) (372,081)
Reclassified as held for sale EHNBEAGE - (45,347)
(490,149) (417,428)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBmERBEINTA
Amounts due from customers for EREARDEEAREGHIRE
contract work included in current assets FEmEPWE 7 18 56,040 116,753
Amounts due to customers for EREARDEEARGHIE
contract work included in current liabilities ERARPY Nz A (546,189) (534,181)
(490,149) (417,428)

Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to
HK$99,095,000 (2009: HK$11,424,000) included in creditors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A A
30 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30 PTEMBIA
The Group The Company
ArEE ¥ N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z2F —TTNF ZB-TF _—TTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Financial assets/(liabilities) in respect PTEFBITAZ
of derivative financial instruments BB EE(afE)
— interest rate swaps (note a) — F = 42 HA (B 5Fa) (38,651) (80,397) (38,651) (80,397)
— foreign currency forward - RHEINE S LY
contracts (note b) (Bt zEb) (92) (157) 3 (266)
(38,743) (80,554) (38,648) (80,663)
Reclassified as held for sale ENMORAFE = (49) - -
(38,743) (80,603) (38,648) (80,663)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MmEAEITR
Current assets mEh A E 1,827 5,893 1,806 5,821
Current liabilities iEIB=YEY (40,570) (86,496) (40,454) (86,484)
(38,743) (80,603) (38,648) (80,663)
Notes: B 7E
(a)  Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a total (a) AEERARRZET B XIS EE R
notional amount of HK$950,000,000 (2009: HK$1,256,125,000) were gy N [E))F B A & 2 42 BT 2R AT 2 A X 4=
entered to swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap HeH HELZEZSHER /% 950,000,000 7T
between different floating rates. These contracts will mature within the (ZZEZNF : B%1,256,125,0007T) ° tEEFA
period from 31 August 2010 to 14 July 2013 (2009: period from 24 July AR _ZT—ZF\A=+—HE=-_ZT—=
2009 to 14 October 2014). FLtATHEBHAR(ZZEZNE : R=ZF
ZNFLATORE-_ZT-—WNF+ATHE
HAEARE) B E -
(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company with (b) AEBEKRARGETRINE B H K E MR
a total notional amount up to HK$15,240,000 (2009: HK$78,860,000) XEBmME 2 ERMINEGH  BEERS
and HK$1,338,000 (2009: HK$33,899,000) respectively were entered B9 Bl A A 15,240,000 (Z T NEF B
to swap various foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These 78,860,000 7T ) f 75 1 1,338,00070 (= T Z N,
contracts will mature within the period from 7 April 2010 to 16 July 2010 G H51533,899,0007T) c WEAXN BN =T
(2009: period from 6 April 2009 to 28 September 2009). —TFMAEAE-_ZT-TF LA+ BH
MA(ZZEZAFE  ZTTAFMOAASAE
ZETAEAAZTABHME)EIEH -
The derivatives are measured at fair value at end of each reporting FHPTETEEREEHRERRZARLETE
period. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair RE>ALBEIEEREIA Y FEALE
values of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices -
from counterparties. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are BT F jE 1j\ \ :1_ S TETAZKREFED
denominated in the following currencies: NTIEEREN :
The Group The Company
AEH VN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—BE —TTRE —F-BE —TTNF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
BT T BETT BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollar ok (38,651) (82,427) (38,651) (82,427)
US dollar ETT 9 2,050 — 2,041
Others H i (101) (226) 3 (277)
(38,743) (80,603) (38,648) (80,663)
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HEMBRENT
31 BANKBALANCES AND CASH

32

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed
with financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets
approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in
the following currencies:

;—ﬁ
Ht
X

mgwﬂ
o m’
5 Hioh
d o

O

31

BN
I
s

o ME oy
¥ X

5 3 5

||
B O Smt

o N3 A

=351
BN
Al
i
)

Nt R

RS ZREEDATIEERE

RE AR
R R AF AR
i [ B A L

ﬁu

The Group The Company
REE QT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTHHF —2F —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETIT BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 302,291 869,406 102,730 545,081
Renminbi AR 141,576 322,772 = -
Singapore dollar 203 T 3,283 66,984 = -
US dollar =T 260,162 394,916 38,113 30,798
Others H 59,584 155,765 13,635 13,686
766,896 1,809,843 154,478 589,565
Reclassified as held for sale ENOBREAEGSE
(note 32(c)) (Ff5E32(c)) = (78,237) - -
766,896 1,731,606 154,478 589,565
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s bank balances of HK$4,953,000 75/\ —ZTF=A= ‘_f‘ H KNEBEZ fE T,T
(2009: HK$137,640,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of g e 75"] 75 @5 4,953,000 7T ( = 7—\’ = j‘L % LB
securing banking facilities granted to the Group. 137 640 (1997‘E> EHEETRT  ERERTEAE
BRASEYER -
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits of the Group NEBRARNB ZRBEETER Z BB ER

and the Company was 0.5% (2009: 0.4%) and 0.2% (2009: 0.2%) per

E 5 5l £0.5%

_ggﬁﬁ 0.4%) 0. 2%(_

annum respectively; and these deposits had an average maturity of 23 ZTENE :02%) ' ZEEFRZ2FEHRNEH D
days (2009: 15 days) and 18 days (2009: 9 days) respectively. BAEBR(ZEZENF 1I5K)RISR(ZEE
NE 9K) °
ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUPS 32 DERFEZHEREZ
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE ﬁé/ﬁ{ﬁ
The net assets of disposal groups comprise the following: HEER 2 EESEBE
The Group b=
2010 2009
—B% —TTAL
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T BT T
Citiway Engineering Limited HIETRREBRAD A (a) 113,608 -
Smartco Holdings Limited Smartco Holdings Limited (b) 285,043 -
CHK Group ELr&HESE () = 185,442
398,651 185,442
Represented by: =1
Assets of disposal groups classified DHEAEFEZ
as held for sale HEESENEE 398,651 385,642
Liabilities of disposal groups classified NEAEFEZ
as held for sale HEEEMNAE = (200,200)
398,651 185,442
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUPS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Citiway Group

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 22 March 2010,
the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of Citiway
Engineering Limited and its jointly controlled entity engaged in a
property development project in Shenzhen, the PRC (the “Citiway
Group”) for a consideration of RMB160,100,000 (equivalent to
HK$182,514,000) and the purchaser agreed to take up the repayment
obligation of the loans from the Group to the Citiway Group of
RMB102,900,000 (equivalent to HK$117,306,000). The completion
took place on 9 April 2010, upon which assets and liabilities in
relation to the Citiway Group was derecognised. Net gain on disposal
of the Citiway Group is estimated to be HK$169,529,000 and will be
recognised for the year ending 31 March 2011. As at 31 March 2010,
deposit of HK$29,982,000 has been received by the Group (note 33).

Assets of disposal group as at 31 March 2010:

32

HEBBEHRERMNT
THEAGECHEERZ
BE BfE®

HEXEERBEEE 22 HES
BE-_ET—FTE=-"A=-+-HZ2EEH=
NEE AR B160,100,000 7T (F8 & 7R 6 #
182,514,000 L) R EHEFHELREER A
AINERFRRITHRE—WEZLREEE 2
HAEESCE(HEESEE]) 22 HEBTHR
K -BEBAYREAEHAEBRETFTHESEE
A R # 102,900,000 7T (48 & 72 7% ¥ 117,306,000
TIZEFRHNEEEFXE HEFER-_ZE—
TEPMANBER  EERESEECEER
BERKER HEBESEE 2 FRIE
A5 169,529,000 WHREZ —_F ——F
—AZ+T " BLEFEEIAKR R-_ZE—F
FZA=Z+—HB TAEEEKEREZLEE
29,982,0007T (Fff 5£33) °

R-ZE—ZTF=A=+—H HELEEE
=

HK$’000

AT T

Interest in a jointly controlled entity IR e Ik IR oy i 23,206
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity JE Uik [ £ ) b ZE MR AR 90,402
113,608

Disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Smartco Group

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 3 April 2010,
the Group disposed of the entire issued share capital of Smartco
Holdings Limited, its subsidiary and jointly controlled entity engaged
in a property development project in Hefei, the PRC (the “Smartco
Group”) for a consideration of HK$246,000,000 and the purchaser
agreed to take up the repayment obligation of the loans from the
Group to the Smartco Group of HK$286,052,000 and accrued interest
thereon. The completion shall take place between 30 June 2010 and 10
July 2010, upon which assets and liabilities in relation to the Smartco
Group will be derecognised. Net gain on disposal of the Smartco
Group is estimated to be HK$218,270,000 and will be recognised for
the year ending 31 March 2011.

Assets of disposal group as at 31 March 2010:

(b)

HEAREE N Smartco EE 2 =S ER
REBBHA_ZT—ZFNA=-HZEEW
% 0 K& B S 5 246,000,000 T 2 KB H &
Smartco Holdings Limited * H f{ & 2 7] K& 78
BEEmitE—MERRER 2 ERZEH G
¥ ([Smartco EB ) 2 2 HEBTHA - B
FWREBAEBRANEREE T Smartco &)
286,052,000 2 B3k B B R T B K E
BEE - HEFEHEN_Z—ZF A=+
BE=-Z—ZF+tATHAZTK ' [EF
B# Smartco SR EEMBEBTHIES
AR o & Smartco 5B A FWRTEET AB
#218,270,0007C - WRBE T ——F = A
Z+t—BLEFEERAIR -

RZZE—ZFF=A=+—H HLEEEE
=

m

I3

HK$’000

BT T

Interest in a jointly controlled entity PG LR R E 149,951
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity JRE U2 L[] 28 ) 1 25 MR X 135,092
285,043
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ARE RIS B & B A

32 ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUPS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)
(c) Disposal of the Group’s interest in CHK Group

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 28 November
2008, the Group disposed of its 49% interest in Chevalier (HK)
Limited, its subsidiaries and associates engaged in lifts and elevators
business (the “CHK Group”) for a consideration of HK$668,360,000,
of which HK$534,688,000 was received as at 31 March 2009 while
HK$133,672,000 was recorded as consideration receivable as at 31
March 2009. Gain on disposal of the Group’s 49% interest in the CHK
Group of HK$621,626,000 was recognised for the year ended 31 March

2009 (note 7).

Pursuant to the same agreement, the Group has further disposed
of its 2% interest in the CHK Group on 15 December 2009 for a
consideration of HK$27,280,000. Upon the completion of the disposal
of the 2% interest, the remaining 49% interest is accounted for as an

associate by the Group.
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As at 31 March 2009, the assets and liabilities related to the CHK RZEZENF=ZA=1+—H THEBEE
Group were presented as held for sale: MEENBRBREZINARFTE
HK$’000
BT
Property, plant and equipment WME  WELEE 9,088
Prepaid lease payments (note 16) 8 1~ 18 & 3K IE (52 16) 3,650
Goodwill (note 17) 2 (M 5E17) 3,259
Deferred tax assets EERIE & B 1,565
Inventories (note 26) F& (Kf3E26) 51,950
Debtors, deposits and prepayments (note 28) EUYIRE ~ F RS RTEN I8 (B 5E28) 148,722
Amounts due from customers for contract work TEHNIREERE S WER 2 I8 88,166
Derivative financial instruments PTHEE ?5( = 56
Prepaid tax IR 949
Bank balances and cash (note 31) RITH f FIR & (M 5E31) 78,237
Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale DEAFEZHEEENEE 385,642
Amounts due to customers for contract work MEXNIERERARFPZNZH (42,819)
Derivative financial instruments TTHEMBITA (7)
Creditors, bills payable, deposits and JERRESR  EBNEE HTAERSR
accruals (note 33) TEIE & A (B 7E33) (103,741)
Current income tax liabilities EHMENAER (1,841)
Bank borrowings (note 35) SR17 18 3R (KT 3E35) (51,714)
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE - B 4% 12 R A R RRIR (77,516)
Deferred tax liabilities BEXERIBEE (78)
(277,716)
Add: Amount eliminated on group consolidation e EESALEREESE 77,516
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale SEAFECHEEENAR (200,200)
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEE 2R SR AFE -
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration received 2UWRERE 534,688
Professional fee and expenses HEERANMSTHE (6,877)
527,811
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A A
33 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 33 EBNRN - EARE  FARSRER
ACCRUALS ZH
The Group The Company
rEH RRQFE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—BF —TTAE —B-BF —TTAAF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Trade creditors and bills payable B 5 AR R ESNEE
(note a) (B 7ta) 146,823 233,213 - -
Accrued contract costs FBIEZ A H A 206,031 130,556 - -
Other creditors, deposits EMEMER  FALRS
and accruals MIERE M 346,076 415,186 16,938 14,317
Retention payables JE R B8 IR X 117,521 131,743 — —
Deposit received for the disposal & BE S B AT 2
of Citiway Group (note 32(a)) &% (M 3E32(a)) 29,982 - = -
Consideration payables for EARE
— step-up acquisition of interest in -EE-FEBEARZ
an associate (note b) 125 (B 5Eb) = 95,047 = -
— acquisition of interest in -BBA— M % NG
an associate (note b) # == (B9 5EDb) - 86,000 - -
846,433 1,091,745 16,938 14,317
Reclassified as held for sale BEMOBREF
(note 32(c)) (B u£32(c)) = (103,741) - -
846,433 988,004 16,938 14,317
Notes: Mizt -
(a)  The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable is as (a) AKBEZBHEMERRENREBEORE D
follows: T
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
0 — 60 days 0- 60K 111,196 189,881
61 — 90 days 61 - 90K 3,456 4,450
Over 90 days 190K 32,171 38,882
146,823 233,213
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable are rEEZ % 51 FEE @D pr AR ENER A IREE
denominated in the following currencies: TIATHEER/EM
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Euro B 22 1,220 1,048
Hong Kong dollar 7B 105,679 136,540
US dollar E 5,052 6,464
Others H b 34,872 89,161
146,823 233,213
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AU BRRM T
33 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND 33 BMIRN BARE FARZKEAR

ACCRUALS (continued) B H@)

Notes: (continued) M&E : (8)

(b)  Consideration payable for step-up acquisition of interest in an associate b) RZZTETNF=A=+—H  EBE—HHE=Z
amounted to HK$95,047,000 and the acquisition of interest in an N7 2z 1 SR (E T #595,047,000 7T K BB
associate amounted to HK$86,000,000 as at 31 March 2009 were paid A— R E AR 2R FIE /ﬁ #586,000,000
during the year. TERFANEE -

The carrying amounts of other creditors, deposits, accruals and RZZE—ZEF=HA=+—H EfhE[FIK

retention payables as at 31 March 2010 are denominated in Hong Kong K TFAERe BEREAREMNREERRZ

dollar and Renminbi. IRHEXTZUNEERARKSIME -

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2010 R_E-—TF=FA=+—H BNIRKEE

approximate their fair values. MNREZIRAEBREERAERE -

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals is the JEMIRFR - BN g  TFAZE MFERER

Group’s share of liabilities of HK$218,000 (2009: HK$66,000) in BIEARE E BAEEERNAREZERNEE ZE

relation to jointly controlled assets. 5 578 218,000 (ZEE N F ¢ 7B 66,000

JT) °
34 OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS 34 RREBRRE

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually THEBENZRBRREE R ITE —FRE

settled within one year: B

Employee compensation EBERE

Motor third party liability REE=FRE

Public liability NREE

The claims development, net of reinsurance, of the above business FHi¥EBREZEEERE (MK BRE)EE

claims are disclosed as follows: wmR

The Group rE

Underwriting year 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total
RRER “TECF CTT-F CTTNE CEERF CTERE CTRAF ZT\F ZTENF Z2-%F &%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000 HK$ 000  HKS$'000
BT BRI ABTRT BT AT AT AT ERTR AT ABTR
Estimate of cumulative claims {45 257 R 18
Atend of accident year ENFERER 111653 177,753 207,000 154651 7979 60,371 88,767 39,575 57,615
One year later —Ef 75,307 87985 101,084 126,184 80,471 87,731 84,866 50,541 -
Two years later mER 89510 134277 124843 121,067 70097 78949 55288 - -
Three years later “Fhk 104,263 133,568 116,879 101,303 74,595 70,027 - - -
Four years later mER 101,745 136,621 101,705 107,859 72,226 - - - -
Five years later nER 102,894 121,798 104090 111936 - - - - -
Six years later NE® 97,609 122,348 105,79 - - - - - -
Seven years later tER 97,611 122,229 - - - - - - -
Eight years later NE# 97,596 - - - - - - - -
Cumulative claims ZHEE 97,596 122,229 105,794 111,936 72,226 70,027 55,288 50,541 57,615 743,252
Cumulative payments 2 ENHE 97405 122,018 105583 109235 68754 57,4 29,469 13,534 1844 605,266
Claims outstanding R=Z2-2f&
as at 31 March 2010 ZA=t-HZ2
ARRME 191 11 211 2,701 3,472 12,803 25,819 37,007 55,771 137,986
Claims outstanding RIZTNE
as at 31 March 2009 =A=+-Bz
ARRE 212 130 927 2848 15300 39960 70,468 37313 - 167,158
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e B ERM T
35 BANK BORROWINGS 35 RITHEK
The Group The Company
REE NS
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2F —TTNF —B-BF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFR  BMTT  BETR  BET
Bank borrowings HRITE R 1,206,808 1,844,724 556,000 923,000
Bank overdrafts FITEX = 928 — 37
1,206,808 1,845,652 556,000 923,037
Reclassified as held for sale BN OBRARFE
(note 32(c)) (K u£3>2(c)) = (51,714) = -
1,206,808 1,793,938 556,000 923,037
The borrowings are repayable BERZEER
as follows: wm
Within one year —F R 480,533 826,637 147,000 327,037
More than 1 year but not exceeding —F L FERBB
2 years N 74,550 130,091 52,000 77,000
More than 2 years but not exceeding ~ ® F LA _F{B N @
5 years (note) (5D 588,100 570,387 346,000 506,000
More than 5 years (note) iR F (M) 63,625 266,823 11,000 13,000
1,206,808 1,793,938 556,000 923,037
Less: Amount due within one year o R —F AR BRI
disclosed under current mEBAEER
liabilities WEZw5E (480,533) (826,637) (147,000) (327,037)
726,275 967,301 409,000 596,000
Presented by: =1
Secured B 230,549 404,612 21,000 23,000
Unsecured i 976,259 1,389,326 535,000 900,037
1,206,808 1,793,938 556,000 923,037
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their ﬂ?{ TERZEEEEAEAAERS ==
fair values as majority of the Group’s borrowings carried interest at BRI MHDZERILFIHFERE & o ffx'( TE
floating rate. The bank borrowings are denominated in the following FKIYLARF| S AR
currencies:
The Group The Company
REE NS
2010 2009 2010 2009
2—2F _—TTNF —B-BF _—TITHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT IT AT T BT
Canadian dollar MmE AT 23,851 25,926 = -
Euro E7 = 73,308 = -
Hong Kong dollar okt 915,875 1,229,279 556,000 923,000
Renminbi AR 262,200 461,888 - -
US dollar ETT 4,882 3,537 - 37
1,206,808 1,793,938 556,000 923,037
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mEMBREME
35 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

36

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

35

BITER @
RB|BERR  RITEZIZEREFNENT -

Canadian dollar mEXxT
Euro X 78
Hong Kong dollar ks
Renminbi AR
US dollar ETT

The Group The Company
rEE A

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF ZEBE-TF —ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT  BETT BETT  ABETT
5.0% 5.0% - -
- 2.0% - -
0.8% 0.8% 0.7% 0.8%
5.2% 6.4% - -
3.2% 3.3% - —

The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest rate changes and the
contractual repricing dates are less than six months.

Bank borrowings of HK$230,548,000 (2009: HK$404,612,000) are
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 14, 15,
16, 26, 27 and 31.

Note:

The Group’s bank borrowings of HK$200,000,000 and HK$189,308,000
which were repayable after 2 years but not exceeding 5 years and after 5 years
respectively were early repaid on or before July 2009. Except for an amount of
HK$73,308,000 which is denominated in Euro, the others are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 26 July 2006, the Company issued a semi-annual 2.125%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of HK$450,000,000
(the “Convertible Bonds”), in which an amount of HK$50,000,000
was subscripted by a subsidiary of the Company. Each bondholder
had the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of the
Company with a par value of HK$1.25 each at a conversion price of
HK$11.20, which was adjusted to HK$9.49 and HK$9.35 as a result
of the approval for the payment of the final dividend of an amount
of HK$0.29 per share for the year ended 31 March 2008 and interim
dividend of an amount of HK$0.055 per share for the period ended 30
September 2008 respectively. The adjustment became effective from
26 September 2008 and 6 January 2009 respectively. Conversion price
could be further adjusted upon approval of dividend in future.

Unless previously converted or purchased or redeemed, each
Convertible Bond could be redeemed by the Company at 121.30% of
its principal amount together with accrued interest on 28 July 2011
(the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds).

On 28 July 2009 (the “Put Option Date”), all holders of Convertible
Bond exercised their right to request the Company to redeem all of the
Convertible Bonds of such holder on the Put Option Date at 113.1%
of their principal amount together with accrued interest up to but
excluding the redemption date. On the same date, all the outstanding
Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed and cancelled, resulting in a
loss on redemption of Convertible Bonds of HK$31,101,000 for the
Group (note 7).

36
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36 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Convertible bonds derecognised in the statement of financial position n=
as at 31 March 2010 are calculated as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEBMBHERNE

36 T@&F%f
EEZTT@HxL%quﬁﬁuT

—ZF=HA=1—BFIATBIRR

The Group The Company
AEEH FIN/N|
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Liability component BEHH
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFHEA—H 381,275 428,933
Interest expenses B 29,523 33,213
At 31 March 2009 RZEBEZENF=ZA=+—H 410,798 462,146
Interest expenses B 10,501 11,815
Redemption B (452,400) (508,950)
Loss on redemption (note 7) B o & 1B (FE5E7) 31,101 34,989
At 31 March 2010 R_E—LETF=H=+—H — -
Derivative component PTHETAFH
At 1 April 2008 RZZZENFWMA—H 2,755 3,100
Fair value loss NAEEIE 27,733 31,200
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEZNF=ZA=+—H 30,488 34,300
Fair value gain (note 7) A EkEs (HEE7) (30,488) (34,300)
At 31 March 2010 RZTE—FTF=H=+—H - -
37 SHARE CAPITAL 37 BA
2010 2009
—Z2F —ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Authorised: JETE R AN
540,000,000 ordinary shares 540,000,000 A% & 3/ A%
of HK$1.25 each % (B ¥ 1.257T0 675,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RBERAE
277,564,090 ordinary shares 277,564,090 J% I 37 A%
(2009: 277,564,090 ordinary shares) ZEFNF 277,564,090 % E 8 AL)
of HK$1.25 each % (B ¥ 1.2570 346,955 346,955

During the year ended 31 March 2009, 1,018,000 ordinary shares of the mn
Company were repurchased at a total consideration of HK$4,738,000, /7\\
including transaction cost of HK$16,000, of the price per share
between HK$4.39 and HK$4.81. All of the repurchased shares have

been cancelled.

EBORMHERTH -

—EENF=ZA=+—HLEFE KA F
i% B 18 B #4390 2 78 ¥ 4.81 70 2 A A
48X B 75 ¥ 4,738,000 7T (B3 R 5 A K 7B ¥
16,000 7T ) B [B] 78 A &) I 38 % 1,018,000 % ° BT
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HEBREN T
38 RESERVES 38 f#fE
The Group N E
Capital Investment Otherassets  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Bx RE HitEE HER#
RARE EBAfE EERE EfRE ERRE  TBRE  REEN ko
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETr BT BT BETn  B%Tr  BETR B4t
(note a)
(Mfita)

CAtLApril2008 ] RZETN\FEACAE 7860  34leel 7526 ALel 15821 287,368 1861722 2,973,919
Profit for the year EREN - - - - - - 15634 135,634
Exchange difference on translation £ E 85N T B A A »

of operations of overseas e NF R LR

subsidiaries, associates and TENEBRELL

jointly controlled entities HNEHBESR - - - - - (55,538) - (55,538)
Change in fair value of MHLE RER

available-for-sale investments, net ~ AL EEEFH - FH - - - (64,409) - - - (64,409)
Fair value adjustment upon -

step-up acquisition of interest JEZNALE

in an associate HE - - - - 908 - - 908
Total comprehensive income EFE2MA

e WEEE T (G955 LSO 1695
Dividends paid BRI E - - - - - - (96055)  (96,05)
Repurchase of shares (note 37) B m R0 (M 3E37) - - 1,273 - - - (4,738) (3,465)
Acquisition of additional interests ~ EENBAF 2 Ex

in subsidiaries (note b) (B &) - 775 - - - - - 775
Disposal of interest in subsidiaries [ &M BN A 2 & - - - - - (13,716) - (13,716)
At 31 March 2009 RZBENEZA=+—H 417860 342,43 8799 (2448) 16729 218114 1896563 2,878,053
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LA B RE N

RESERVES (continued) 38 f#HfE®
The Group (continued) AEE(HE)

Capital Investment Otherassets ~ Share Exchange
Share  Capital redemption revaluation revaluation  option fluctuation Retained
premium  reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  Total
&x RE HtEE BRE SHERR
RxEE E4ffe BRORE EMARE EURE  HE TDRE RERN 48
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
ARTr BRI ERTn BETn ERTn ERTn BRTR BMTR E%TR

(note a)
(Hizka)

(AtLApril2009 ] ROFENENACE 47860 3246 8799 (2.8 1679 T 18114 1,896,563 2,878,053
Profit for the year EE?&?& il - - - - - - - 371547 371,547
Exchange difference on translation ¥ 2 8 47 ff F" NG

of operations of overseas 55 ERA ﬂ T“ #l

subsidiaries, associates and M 0ES ﬂ% Pﬁ EEz

jointly controlled entities MNERBER - - - - - - 87,866 - 87,866
Change in fair value of HHEREN

available-for-sale investments, net ~ AL EEE - FE = = = 114,416 = = = - 114,416
Impairment loss on g

available-for-sale investments RERRESE

transferred to consolidated income ~ EEEZHAMER

statement (note 7) (Ht357) = = = 46,243 = = = - 46,243
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale £ & o]t {F & 7 1% & £

investments transferred to NRERZRANER

consolidated income statement UEY

(note 7) - - - (94,533) - - - - (94,533)
Fair value surplus of properties ERERENER

upon transfer to investment NEZLRE

properties i3

- gross _EE = = = = 158,972 = = - 158,972

- net of tax (note 39) _HBFIE (M E39) - = = = (17,261) = = - (17,261)
Total comprehensive income FEZM

R = oSS - s S0 65
Dividends paid BEREE - - - - - - - (152,661) (152,661)
Issue of share option of BI-BMERFZ

a subsidiary BT = > = > = 491 > > 491
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries ! €M B A7 2 & = = = = = - (10,177) - (10,177)
Gain on partial disposal of interest {115 — [} B 17 2

_nasbsidiary(notec)  BREEAMEIE) . N - - - - - -
At 31 March 2010 W-E-ZTE=ZA=+—H 417860 343,385 8,799 43,678 158,440 491 295,803 2,121,449 3,389,905

Notes: PR 5E -

(a)  The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the (a) EHREEREBBAEZESE . BHEE B

past including redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of ARIEM SEECEZHHFEEILEE -

Group entities.

—Z=—THE | Annual Report 2010 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B IS ER& BY A

38 RESERVES (continued) 38 ﬁﬁ(fé)
The Group (continued) NEB (&
Notes: (continued) Misx : (%)
(b)  For the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group acquired additional (b) BHE_ZTETZNF=ZAZ+—HLFE K&
interests of certain subsidiaries, at a consideration of HK$17,618,000. BiEEETHBARI Z2ER REAEK
The difference between the consideration and the Group’s additional 17,618,000 - KB E AR EB(EZZEME R
share of the identifiable net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of the an Llﬁ'( R 25 é EFHENERBE
acquisition of HK$775,000 was accounted for directly in equity. 775,0007T B, B £ 7 & P HE R
(c)  Pursuant to the share placing and subscription agreement dated 11 (00 BE-Z—ZFF_A+—BZRHEEER
February 2010, the Group placed 10,000,000 shares of Chevalier Pacific BBt - N5 B LA 4258 74 ¥ 23,000 OOOTE@E&
Holdings Limited (“CPHL”), a subsidiary of the Group, to independent EfB AR E = EE?"“ ER AR ([ELZ
third parties for a gross proceed of HK$23,000,000. As a result of the 25 |) 2.10,000,0000% f% 10 FHBILE =7 - EfE
agreement, CPHL effectively issued 10,000,000 additional shares to Wik Rz B ﬁlo 000,000 % 28 9 i%
new shareholders of CPHL for a net proceed of HK$22,339,000 and @ FHLZEE Hxi IREE QD %E}%/’é i
the Group’s interest in CPHL was diluted from 59.66% to 57.01%. The 22,339,0007C * MANKEN A )2 o EAF 2 1#
dilution has resulted in a gain of HK$949,000, which was accounted for = F 59.66%% & ;‘::57.01% o b B SH A R B
directly in equity for the year ended 31 March 2010. 949,000t Y 5 - WEREE—F g F=A
ST HLAREERERTRE -
The Company A F
Capital  Investment
Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE BB BAROGRE REEMHRE REEHN B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BRI BETT BRI BRI BRI BETT
(note)
(M5E)
At 1 April 2008 RZEZNEEA—H 417,860 95,413 7,526 23,127 676,332 1,220,258
Change in fair value of AHRHE 2z RER
available-for-sale investments N ﬁ EEE - - - (30,399) - (30,399)
Profit for the year (note 13) FRRF (HF13) - - - - 708,887 708,887
Total comprehensive income FEEZENE
for the year B - - - (30,399) 708,887 678,488
Repurchase of shares (note 37) B (K 537) - - 1,273 - (4,738) (3,465)
Dividends paid BERERE - - - - (96,055) (96,055)
At 31 March 2009 RZEEAF=/=+—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 (7,272) 1,284,426 1,799,226
Change in fair value of MHEHEZIRER
available-for-sale investments NAEED = = = 118,299 > 118,299
Gain on disposal of HEAREEZRE
available-for-sale investments Mz ERs
transferred to income statement Y 5 & = = = (96,893) = (96,893)
Impairment of available-for-sale 7] fff 1} & 7 % &
investments transferred to 0] ‘}ﬁ~ BERER
income statement g% i = = = = 30,977 = 30,977
Profit for the year (note 13) FEEHF(PzE13) = = = = 99,958 99,958
Total comprehensive income FEXANEG
for the year B - - - 52,383 99,958 152,341
Dividends paid BRKE - - - - (152,661) (152,661)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-FF=f=+—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 45,111 1,231,723 1,798,906
Note: B % -
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets MARBBRTIR ?E Fﬁ Hﬁz BE IS8 A A Z BEFER ”51
of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares BESPTEIT AR 52 EE Z cBEBEERE
issued for their acquisition. Under the Company Act of 1981 of Bermuda, —AN\—FA 7 /f>> ;A Ef # 5 R BR 3R
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to 2 f# e
shareholders.
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R E B %R & I A
DEFERRED TAXATION 39 EEBIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised TXFEH I ARERFENBEER ¢ EER
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years: JEFEEREFREAG (BE)REEF :
The Group &
Accelerated Allowance
tax  Revaluation for doubtful
depreciation of properties  Trademark debts  Taxlosses Others Total

MERERE  EfNE R RERE  HEER R RE
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000

ARTn  ARTrn  BRTr  BRTn  BMTn BRTn  EETR

At 1 April 2008 R-FENEMA-A 65,242 146,359 18,900 (30600  (43419) (3:229) 180,79
Step-up acquisition of interest in 3% £ — i B & /D\ Al

an associate (note 49(b) (ii)) (B E49(b) i) 1,358 - 1,706 - - - 3,064
Disposal of subsidiaries m%w%m (2,092) - - (397) 6,223 13,612 17,346
Exchange realignment R (599) 1,249 - 71 36 469 1,226
Charged/(credited) to income AR FEEWRRIT /

statement for the year (note 10)  (5FA) (£ 10) (3,426) (16,167) - 484 2,494 (9,438) (26,053)
Effect on change in EWERIE/

tax rate charged/(credited) GIARZEH

to income statement 132 (3,199) (3,993) (1,080) 163 1,803 - (6,306)
Reclassified as held for sale BHNEAR (423) - - 1,765 145 - 1,487
At 31 March 2009 %% jli A=t-H 56,861 127,448 19,526 (974) (32,718) 1,414 171,557
Disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ ENBR (85) = = (59) (125) = (269)
Exchange realignment ERAEE 581 775 - (134) (18) (287) 917
Charged/(credited) toincome ~ AAFERERIT/

statement for the year (note 10)  (FF A) (B FE10) (12,634) 53,070 (1,702) 939 (3,496) 4,384 40,561
Charged to equity for the year — F R A%

(note 38) (fi5£38) = 17,261 = = = = 17,261
At 31 March 2010 RZE-F4=A=+—H 44,723 198,554 17,824 (228) (36,357) 5,511 230,027
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LEBBEEN

39 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 39
For the purposes of statement of financial position presentation,

The

following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.

reporting purposes:

IEE B IE ()
BRAMBHIRZEIFTR  BEFELTH
EEERBECDERSY - EERIIEZEBE
RERBRZHNMT

2010 2009

—E-Z2F —ZTTAEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T B F T

Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 236,955 176,198
Deferred tax assets FEAEF B E E (6,928) (4,641)

230,027 171,557

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$2,072,282,000 (2009: HK$2,015,874,000) available for offset
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$220,348,000 (2009: HKS$198,291,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,851,934,000 (2009: HK$1,817,583,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses are
losses of HK$94,050,000 (2009: HK$121,883,000) of subsidiaries in
Mainland China that will gradually expire until 2014; the remaining
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$9,779,000 (2009: HK$7,946,000) have
not been recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries. Such amounts are
expected to be reinvested.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of HK$15,425,000 (2009:
HK$16,049,000). A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

11 2 Chevalier International Holdings Limited | £ &+ [ B8 £ B A R 2 A

RBEHR ZAEEBRSHH 2 HIHEEE
5B ¥ 2,072,282,000 T(Z T N F + B
2,015,874,0007C) * A] A E K 85 5 2K 2 FE =R
i F o E AP #220,348,000T (T E N F ¢
75 #5198,291,0007T) 2 TR IEE B E FER AR E
TRIBEE o B AR K jm F B LATEOR| -tk 4 5t
# N 2 T TE B 18 8 5 1,851,934,000 T ( — 2 F
NF : 75 %1,817,583,000 7T ) FE 3R A IE FE 7 1B
BE o BIEEERE T BB A R A
=T — EiZJ&ﬂE,%’H%%osoooorc(_—
T 75 1121,883,0007T) 0 M &R N AR IE &
E%TH@%MLD

KEE THE AR RS KR mA] 6t ]
2 TEM TR AR TR IE B &% 19,779,000
T(ZZTZNF : B#7,946,00070) © FBEIZ
EXEeAEBRBRE -

kSRR - RSB 2 KRR R E
ZRBBE1542500 L (CETNF : B
16,049,0007T ) ° ANEE BRI EARIIZE RS
2 FERR B A DA FB VB 3K 85 & B8 2 AT 006 B
MEE BT ABREBZRBEAELTHE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Executive Directors of the Company that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider the business
from a product/services perspective. Principal activities of the segments
are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for
lifts and escalators, aluminium building materials and curtain walls,
building construction, electrical and mechanical, pipe rehabilitation,
environmental and civil contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, and hotel operations.

Food and beverages: Food and beverages trading and retailing.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and business
machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles, and
grocery trading.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group’s
share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities on a
proportionate consolidated basis.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of segment results. This measurement includes the
Group’s share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities on
a proportionate consolidated basis. Unallocated corporate expenses,
finance income and costs, income tax expense and credit and other
major items that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not
included in segment results.

Segment assets primarily consist of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, goodwill, other
intangible assets, interests in associates and jointly controlled entities,
available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, properties under development, other non-current
assets, amounts due from associates and jointly controlled entities,
inventories, properties for sale, debtors, deposits and prepayments,
amounts due from customers for contract work, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities primarily consist of amounts due to associates,
amounts due to customers for contract work, derivative financial
instruments, creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals, unearned
insurance premiums, outstanding insurance claims and deferred
income.

40
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ARE RIS B & B A

40 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

40 DTEER@®

EEEBHZHEARBIMT -

Revenue and results W R EE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Total
BER RER ERBARNE
BHIR RE L/ 3 REf “E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BETT BT T BT T BT T
For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ_-ZE-ZTF=F=+—-HL
FE
REVENUE Llﬁz?ﬁ
Total revenue Fallg 2,295,568 119,544 395,444 537,924 683,353 4,031,833
Inter-segment revenue g P (273) (18,544) (61,828) - (17,609) (98,254)
Group revenue SR 2,295,295 101,000 333,616 537,924 665,744 3,933,579
Proportionate Group revenue from 2 ¥} §5 7 & £ /42
jointly controlled entities PENRLHEER
eliminated g (58,038) - - - - (58,038)
Share of revenue from external ERBBE AT R
customers derived by associates EREFCENSEE
and jointly controlled entities & 962,666 = 133,210 3,797 477,302 1,576,975
Segment revenue 2 Bz 3,199,923 101,000 466,826 541,721 1,143,046 5,452,516
RESULTS %%
Segment profit/(loss) SERR/(BB) 129,550 49,967 379,890 (12,297) 13,273 560,383
Included in segment profit/(loss) PEEHN/(BE)
are: B
Share of results of associates FriEBt e nrEE 29,161 = 18,855 221 6,277 54,514
Share of results of jointly PG Emma
controlled entities E 526 = 22,476 = = 23,002
Depreciation and amortisation W REs (10,404) (1,078) (26,450) (40,163) (2,163) (80,258)
Increase in fair value of REMEZARE
investment properties 20 - - 179,781 - - 179,781
(Provision for)/write back of ) % f B R&E Z
impairment loss on property, E(FR)/ E#
plant and equipment, net /% %E (5,473) = = 333 = (5,140)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHEERE = = = (29,174) = (29,174)
Impairment loss on intangible assets 4t & ¥, & &= 7 (B 18 (12,200) = = = = (12,200)
Impairment loss on AHEEEZRENRE
available-for-sale investments Ea - (46,243) - - - (46,243)
Unrealised loss on investments at RERKEAREREYZ
fair value through profit or REMAEHEEE -
loss, net FHE = (42,993) - - - (42,993)
Write down of inventories to MEFER
net realisable value AERHE (8,852) - - (331) (6,153) (15,336)
Write back of properties for sale to 2] %% EMER
net realisable value HIEEE - = 11,878 - = 11,878
Unrealised gain on derivative 7 E TR
financial instruments, net AERWE  FHE = 41,767 = = = 41,767
Fair value gain on derivative MRRESTEIES N
component of convertible bonds NhERZE - - - - 30,488 30,488
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40 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

490 DEER@

Revenue and results (continued) W REEE)
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Total
E@, H((( &
BER R R BHBANEK
BHIRE RE LES ER REAM ok
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BB BB BETT BT BB BB
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HZ_-ZFZEAF=A=+-HLt
£E
REVENUE U&%ﬁ
Total revenue @l 25 3,698,050 76,798 386,879 311,106 810,740 5,283,573
Inter-segment revenue DEZENGE (650) (10,414) (65,502) - (11,430) (87,996)
Group revenue EXENE 3,697,400 66,384 321,377 311,106 799,310 5,195,577
Proportionate Group revenue from £ % §5 7% B £ [ 12 5]
jointly controlled entities rENZLOIE
eliminated Wz (43,520) - - - - (43,520)
Share of revenue from external RERNEE YNGR
customers derived by associates HEZFHCENPRERZ
and jointly controlled entities g 55 232,205 - 178,715 124,349 125,200 660,469
Segment revenue PERE 3,886,085 66,384 500,092 435,455 924,510 5,812,526
RESULTS ES 1
Segment loss PEER (279,791) (235,996) (31,643) (127,760) (15,609) (690,799)
Included in segment loss are: PEERBE
Share of results of associates P it Bt % ’/} AxE (5,750) - 1,934 11,229 69 7,482
Share of results of jointly PG R AEH
controlled entities ES % 685 - (12,041) - - (11,356)
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH (37,302) (68) (17,633) (22,096) (4,815) (81,914)
Decrease in fair value of BEMELZ
investment properties NN - - (99,637) - - (99,637)
(Provision for)/write back of i% % J?ﬁ % & 5B Z
impairment loss on property, 8),/ B &
plant and equipment, net é %,E 3,193 - (6,803) (15,529) - (19,139)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHEER (10,579) - - (118,700) - (129,279)
Impairment loss on AHHERES
available-for-sale investments REEE - (10,552) - - - (10,552)
Unrealised loss on investments at ~ PEZIRE A L ERIEZ
fair value through profit or BREMKERER -
loss, net FEE - (1,800) - - - (1,800)
Write down of inventories to WRAFER
net realisable value EBRFE (5,193) - - (856) (3,148) (9,197)
Write down of properties for sale to  #fi /i, & & W% 2
net realisable value AR EE - - (26,717) - - (26,717)
Unrealised loss on derivative THEBBIAZ
financial instruments, net FEBEE  FE - (74,981) - - - (74,981)
Fair value loss on derivative MBRBEFTETIASH
component of convertible bonds NAEEE - - - - (27,733) (27,733)
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40

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue and results (continued)

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management

with reference to market prices.

Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group’s revenue in the

consolidated income statement as follows:

2 EER @
U 26 R B 4K ()

LERET -
moBKaERAEER

ENBERABRENR ZERBEEEKRED

MR B R R Az W

HIRAT :

2010 2009
—g-®F -—TInA
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Total segmentrevenue  MOFMGE 5452516 5,812,526
Add: Proportionate Group revenue from jointly — J : & ¥ 45 5 £ R 42 6 ¥ &Y
___controlled entities eliminated a‘:é_z_t_t_ PISSEME 58,038 | 43,520
Less: Share of revenue from external customers N el =N R R/NE=] DN
derived by associates and jointly controlled A 2 i1 % 9| BEP
entities Z I =
Construction and installation contracts L BENLTERTR 893,076 227,830
Sale of information technology equipment, BRI RE
motor vehicles and other BENEMZIHE 478,984 129,574
Food and beverages R 3,797 124,349
Provision of maintenance and REREEME
property management B R 68,023 -
Leasing of properties MEMRE 4,408 4,434
Hotel operations I E 19,140 3,754
Sales of properties ES R 109,547 170,528
Total revenue in the consolidated Wil ER2Z
income statement 48 UG 5 3,933,579 5,195,577
Reconciliation of segment profit/(loss) to profit before taxation is SR EF(EB) EER AR 2 8k a0
provided as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Segment profit/(loss) DRSNS (FEIE) 560,383 (690,799)
Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries ﬁ EWNBARIEZRZ HQ = 32,247 777,922
Gain on step-up acquisition of 1B — F'EJ b 2 N A ME 2R
interest in an associate Z W= 3,269 -
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEARZE (14,599) (13,682)
Finance income B UL 4,624 16,996
Finance costs B 75 & A (36,891) (86,881)
Profit before taxation % 2 A s A 549,033 3,556
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40 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 0 DEERG®
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverages and others Total
ERK
BHIR RE LES 18 REM ag
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BET T BET T BT BETT BETT

As at 31 March 2010 R-ZEB-ZF=ZA=t-H
ASSETS AE
Segment assets PEEE 1,039,239 844,810 4,328,827 424,408 502,253 7,139,537
Included in segment assets are: NEEERE:
Interests in associates IR 2N 5 255,007 - 68,619 932 44911 369,469
Interests in jointly controlled entities FT {5 £ [F)4% | & % 7 #Ez 12,005 - 375,146 - - 387,151
Amounts due from associates JEE Ui BS: & R B IR 3R 39,161 - 24 142 117,147 156,474
Amounts due from jointly i U R A 4 %

controlled entities 1R 26,975 - 211,667 - - 238,642
Additions to non-current assets RNEERDEE

(note) (B &) 6,528 330 139,128 30,482 5,298 181,766
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities SEEE 1,100,368 285,525 130,256 61,458 77,462 1,655,069
Included in segment liabilitiesis: B EEIE
Amounts due to associates JE 1B & R BIIR X 3,421 - - - - 3,421
As at 31 March 2009 RZZBAFEZA=+-H
ASSETS £E
Segment assets PEEE 1,720,984 771,964 4,055,597 470,317 396,815 7,415,677
Included in segment assets are: NEEERHE:
Interests in associates BIREY 2-WN 5 98,416 - 49,763 1,079 38,224 187,482
Interests in jointly controlled entities FT{f £ 42 %l b % 7 # 45 16,340 - 366,668 - - 383,508
Amounts due from associates JiE U B & A B BR X 82,016 - 5,903 311 13,352 101,582
Amounts due from jointly JiE U R 9 4

controlled entities 1R 3 2,136 - 422,701 - - 424,837
Additions to non-current assets RNEERDEE

(note) (F3E) 44,313 5,892 169,236 192,783 10,747 422971
LIABILITIES &&
Segment liabilities TEEE 1,288,269 319,289 114,775 179,460 539,662 2,441,455
Included in segment liabilitiesis: D& FERE :
Amounts due to associates EEEE A RIRD 89 - _ - _ 89

=
w

Note: In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments EZ]K%T)ZEZ ' 3?"7{@]% ?*—j: @j\iﬁ\,ﬁiﬁ B %il\ (&
(including interests in associates and jointly controlled entities) and &P {'5 e = ARRARZEHERZER) R
BIENHIBEE °

deferred tax assets.
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ARE RIS B & B A

40 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 40 9 ﬁ ﬁ *SI'(,%E)
Assets and liabilities (continued) EENEE(®)
Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and DEEENAEHAEERBENEENT -
liabilities is provided as follows:
2010 2009
—g-BE —TIAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFR  BMTT
Segment assets SEEE 7,139,537 7,415,677
Unallocated bank balances and cash APOWMBITHEFLES 133,367 668,226
Other unallcoated assets Hi ko REE 18,786 30,561
Total assets W8 oR B 7,291,690 8,114,464
2010 2009
—g-BE -TThE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETR BT
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,655,069 2,441,455
Bank borrowings RITER 1,206,808 1,793,938
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B E 236,955 176,198
Other unallocated liabilities HikomiaE 79,811 96,537
Total liabilities BARE 3,178,643 4,508,128
Geographical information i & & #
The Group’s operations in construction and engineering are located AEERZERBMIEESRE R )
in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Mainland China and Australia. W BB A KRN EE  RIERRE XK
Insurance and investment business is conducted in Hong Kong. EEBEFE MEEBIBEEERD  MEX
Property operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Canada and RPBAMEE: EREHBEES - MK
Mainland China. Food and beverages business is carried out in Hong RABEAMERE: BERRERBAR &% %
Kong, Singapore and Mainland China. Computer and information TEEFSE THEAMEREERE X
communication technology operations are mainly carried out in Hong BEMERREBEEE -
Kong, Mainland China and Thailand. Other operations are carried out
in Canada and the USA.
Group revenue by geographical market
EpETS s 2 KBRS
2010 2009
225 EES PR
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
BT BET
Hong Kong &5 2,507,848 63 2,482,393 48
Macau R 514,909 13 1,310,119 25
Singapore 7N 357,111 9 366,258 7
Canada mER 313,637 8 355,771 7
USA x 107,383 2 116,610 2
Mainland China B A 82,095 2 114,629 2
Thailand B 37,617 1 47,322 1
Australia BN 2,487 1 184,832 3
Europe B = = 206,336 4
Others H At 10,492 1 11,307 1
3,933,579 100 5,195,577 100
The Group maintains healthy and balanced portfolio of customer AEERBFERLTFTENE,HES - HER
basis. No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue of PEXAEBRHEEZE-_ZT—ZFR_-F = NEFE=
the Group for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. A=+ —HILEFEZHBKEERI10% A I o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 40 EER®
Geographical information (continued) HEE R (8)
Additional disclosures on segment revenue by geographical market BEHEmBE S 2o ERENBINER(E
(including the Group’s share of revenue of associates and jointly BAEEmRGEHBES AT REEESDE I
controlled entities) are shown below: =)W
The associates’ and jointly controlled entities’ operations in i NI == B sl R = = i % v
construction and engineering are mainly located in Hong Kong, EBETERES P BEAH - FTNE - BUN
Mainland China, Singapore, Europe and Australia. Property operations KBNEE YERKEEXELEITENEELFP
are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Food and NHEE BRHREBNEBEE HMK
beverages business is carried out in Hong Kong. Other operations are BER B A EE o
carried out in Mainland China.
Segment revenue by geographical market
RHEMEEI 2P ERE
Associates Associates
Company  and jointly Company  and jointly
and controlled 2010 and controlled 2009
subsidiaries entities Total subsidiaries entities Total
BEARAR 3N
ApAk  HEEH ARk HREH
5 PG ¥ BE B2 g4 ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 % HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
BT B¥Tr BE¥Tx BETL RETn BRI
Hong Kong o 2,449,810* 203,080 2,652,890 49 2,438,873* 229,891 2,668,764 46
Mainland China R A 82,095 1,152,047 1,234,142 22 114,629 303,856 418,485 7
Macau el 514,909 16 514,925 9 1,310,119 - 1,310,119 n
Singapore Eigib 357,111 54,694 411,805 7 366,258 - 366,258 6
Canada mnex 313,637 - 313,637 6 355,771 547 356,318 6
USA x 107,383 5,585 112,968 2 116,610 6,929 123,539 2
Europe B - 106,662 106,662 2 206,336 88,544 294,880 5
Australia BN 2,487 52,771 55,258 1 184,832 30,581 215,413 4
Thailand £ 37,617 - 37,617 1 47,322 - 47,322 1
Others Hi 10,492 2,120 12,612 1 11,307 121 11,428 1
3,875,541 1,576,975 5,452,516 100 5,152,057 660,469 5,812,526 100
* The proportionate Group revenue from jointly controlled entities are * B85 2R B FERIE fil 1 2 A iR b A S B U A o
eliminated.
The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non- AT AR 29Kk & T E (BTG
current assets oth.er' than financial instruments (including interests ANERHERZEH A% X)) RELERIBEEE
in associates and )01ptly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets SN EREEEEEED I
analysed by geographical area:
Non-current assets
FREBEE
2010 2009
—E-%% -TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 75T T
Hong Kong oS 1,638,311 1,498,084
Mainland China B A i 973,476 776,330
Singapore I hnsg 210,527 155,207
Canada mex 178,894 139,777
USA = 19,525 19,738
Others Hh 25,520 24,407
3,046,253 2,613,543
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41

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND 41 BHEREFEEEZHEANSR
INTANGIBLE ASSETS o o 5
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business F’r?’% TTRE DRI E/\\\%ﬁ‘%é\ Pi BAZ Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ )
combinations, licenses, trademarks and others are allocated, at }/@ E” N Pﬁﬁjg ME @ TH A U B H_if Sa) Eﬁﬁ '8 8 4%
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from such 1t )E%ﬂ ﬁ E PREZ fﬁ?ﬁﬁ BfL o $ =
intangible assets. The trademarks of branded coffee shops business BIEE RS m MO X R ERE REE
and restaurants and bars business are considered by the management EBzBEE _TSNAFOA-—BEARIS
of the Group as having a finite life of 15 years from 1 April 2009. The FZARAERAFEY ZTEZEEEEED
respective carrying amounts had been allocated as follows: Femr
Goodwill Licenses Trademarks Others
E Je: 18 wE i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BMTRT  BMTR  AETR
Construction and engineering AR N T A2
—roads, drainage and —EE - RBX
water works K7 T 58 = 12,177 - =
— pipe technologies business - E B - - _ 99
Insurance and investment R RIKE - - - 3,869
Property ES
— cold storage and -REBEER
public bonded warehouse RBRRBE 64,566 563 - -
Food and beverages Z 8
— branded coffee shops — e g 35,432 = 100,800 =
— restaurants and bars _ & EE NZHE 72,758 - 9,648 -
Others H A,
— natural resources - KRB 5,117 - - -
— others - Hfb - - - 2,169
177,873 12,740 110,448 6,137
The Group tests goodwill and intangible assets annually for S %ﬁ: FHE /HU Bl ?;ﬁ BEREVEER & =l
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they might FIRE  MEARERRE  §EETET
be impaired. BIE, o
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of ErHBESRERMIERTEENRAR
the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell, whichever is appropriate. TE @ ﬂél = ﬁk}’x (FR1EAR ﬁﬁ E; ) o TE{E A& M A
Both approaches require the entity to estimate the future cash flows STEER % /JE e % 5t E% REEELEEMN Fh
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to E2RKRBEERE  WABEE MR XHAE
calculate present value. HifE -
The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverages operation and BEREB BRAREBREB 2R eEEBMA
natural resources business are determined from fair value less cost to sell AJ Yz 5] /i\ #IIR N ST EREHE K ZK ATEAE
approach while recoverable amounts of CGUs for remaining operations E R B’\\ HERZEBH Eﬁ %E A BB g El’\] GIRL @
are determined from value-in-use calculations approach. The key SENHRERTEE A EABE o M AR
assumptions for both approaches are those regarding the discount rates, 7 E’\] FEBRZABRE  BER 2?— K& EHE
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs. BHE ﬁ_& f H 78 H;q e  BEEMGG @ ﬁ\E I
Management estimates appropriate discount rates that reflect current REAMTEEEEREENASELEMR
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to ﬁ [ b & & E"] 55 WE . ﬁﬁ %E ME#E @ PN
the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past 2% AIRBEAEEINRET S RREENTA
practices and expectations of future changes in the market. AT E ©
For impairment assessment adopting value-in-use calculations RA/ERP {ﬁg Bt ;E: VA b ETRE H:ir =z PN
approach, the Group principally prepares cash flow forecasts derived mEHBRERA - HEME mERESR
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for T\‘HS MERFHHEZ B i iﬁﬂ gt B( i\ o REMG
the next five years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five Ell 2%\2 FIR KM Efﬁ\ﬁ? K12 E/t\ AN 2R ki % Z
years based on estimated annual growth rates of 2%. The pre-tax rate WemE > ALARIRTERIR 2% & 2 %Al A

used to discount the forecast cash flows was 9%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment loss of
HK$12,200,000 (2009: nil), nil (2009: HK$10,579,000), nil (2009:
HK$49,750,000) and HK$29,174,000 (2009: HK$68,950,000) were
made on the goodwill and intangible assets allocated to the Group’s
roads, drainage and water works business, pipe technologies business,
branded coffee shops business and restaurants and bars businesses
respectively. Management is of the view that such impairment has
resulted from the global economic downturn. The loss has been
included in other gains, net in these consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$35,432,000 (2009: HK$35,432,000)
and trademark, after amortisation, of HK$100,800,000 (2009:
HK$108,000,000) are allocated to the Group’s branded coffee shops
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on
fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth year and
zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to fifteen year, gross
profit margin of 75% and a discount rate of 11% per annum.

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$72,758,000 (2009:
HK$102,593,000) and trademark, after amortisation, of HK$9,648,000
(2009: HK$10,337,000) are allocated to the Group’s restaurants and
bars businesses. The estimated recoverable amount is determined
based on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-
year period are extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up
to the fifth year and zero growth per annum from the sixth year to
fifteen year, gross profit margin of 76% and a discount rate of 11% per
annum.

No impairment is made on goodwill of HK$5,117,000 allocated to the
Group’s natural resources business. The estimated recoverable amount
determined is based on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period.

Management determined budgeted growth rate and gross profit margin
based on past performance and market expectation. The discount rates
used are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

41
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HEMBHER T

BEREFEE Z2BENR®

ETREARE SEEASE 2 EREES
ROKF TIRER «  EERMER - REUCE
EEBREBREEER  EHEREFEE
BB B 18 5 Bl A7 12,200,000 (ZEE h
FBET)  BEZT(ZZEENF B
#10,579,0007T) * BEZT L (ZEZTNF B
49,750,000 7T ) & 78 #529,174,0007C (ZEZ A,
F : B %68,950,00070) c BEEERS B
BEREREE T BER - Z2EIBE T AL
A BHRERZEMIKRE  FER °

ik B 18 78 #535,432,000 C( — TN F : B
35,432,0007C ) Z 7 2 N 8 55 14 75 5 100,800,000
T(ZZZAE : 5% 108,000,000 7T ) Z & 12
WHMEARER Z BEMBEIEET o fh5T A
WEHBBEDNEZEAARBREEXKAEE A
MeitEfRAEEEH s —FHUKEE
ZHBEREREEN  —FREFHRFZR
ERERRRAETF 20 NENFEE+H
FATEER « FFEK759%K& 8 F R11%Mm

st
H o
=

B 1878 172,758,000 T (ZEENF : B
102,593,000 7T ) 2 & 2 N 35 12 75 159,648,000
T(ZZEZNFE : B%10,337,0007T) 2 & 12 %
PEERNEEZERE REEER o 5Tl U
DHBENEZERAABRBEEXNAETE - 5 #
ZitEFEREEBM iz —FHTKEEE

HerBeneRl —FREFAF2HES
MEERERAEBF2ERENFEE+RF
BTEEER « EFE769%MBEIR F K11%Mm #

H o
A

MERDEEAEB I RAREREH 2HE
78 # 5,117,000 T 1E HR{E  fBEH I e m S 58 D
BERABRBEEXNANETE - BBEZFED
EREEBEMZZ —FHMBREZRR

RenERA -
EEERBAERALAMESENEEAEE

RRREMNE - FAAMBBERSHREK  LRBK
HREREELAENAB R EAR -
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FEHMBHRENT
42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 9 EERERITBRAEZHE
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments EEMe
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: ENRENTARAGESE MM T :
2010
Z—ZF
Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and scheme
fee other benefits contribution Total
HoR  BIKGHE
EEWS H fth 38 F Z = B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BT BETx
Executive Directors HITESE
Chow Yei Ching 5 7]' il - 10,098 — 10,098
Kuok Hoi Sang ;LB g = 6,700 338 7,038
Tam Kwok Wing ﬁ 28 = 3,700 158 3,858
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar B 4 IE = 1,475 75 1,550
Ho Chung Leung 1EJ R - 1,934 75 2,009
Ho Sai Hou (note a) fa] tt 5% (B 5Fa) = 1,274 6 1,280
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph? JE) BA 150 = = 150
Sun Kai Dah, George* H 5= 150 = = 150
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* BE = 150 = = 150
Ko Chan Gock, William (note b) = EE (K 5Fb) 100 - - 100
550 25,181 652 26,383
# Independent Non-Executive Director # BIYEHNITES
2009
—ZETNF
Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and scheme
fee other benefits contribqtion Total
) Hek RINEE
£xMe HuaEd Z R FERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT A¥FTr AEBTL
Executive Director HITESE
Chow Yei Ching J& 73 5 - 10,090 - 10,090
Kuok Hoi Sang Eiyisxaa - 6,572 338 6,910
Tam Kwok Wing B & - 2,700 158 2,858
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JE 4 1E - 1,492 75 1,567
Ho Chung Leung Al =R - 1,600 120 1,720
Ho Sai Hou (note a) ATt = (P 7Fa) - 2,155 12 2,167
Independent Non-Executive Director ¥ IEHTEE
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph & BA & 150 - - 150
Sun Kai Dah, George 7 E 150 - - 150
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles (note c) BE= (Kt sEc) 150 - - 150
450 24,609 703 25,762
Notes: Mk -
(a)  Appointed on 1 April 2008 and resigned on 16 September 2009. (@ N_FT) \ EF MA—-—BEZERR_ZZTAH
FNAT/NBEE -
(b)  Appointed on 1 April 2009. b)) RZZETZNFHNA—HEZE-
(c)  Appointed on 1 April 2008. (0 RIZEZENFHA-—BEZRE-
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42 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 2 BEERSHITBRAEZHME @
MANAGEMENT (continued)
Employees’ remunerations & & 5
The five highest paid individuals include three (2009: four) EebhEAtTtzZHME BE=Z2(ZZZh
Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total FNR)ES FEZ2HMeFBEHI W
remunerations paid to the remaining two (2009: one) highest paid FXNTFTERKTRE(ZZEZNF : — &)
individuals are as follows: e MA T ZBEHMNE
2010 2009
—2-BF —ZTTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e WL HEMET 2,696 864
Performance-based bonus WRIRBEHRZIEL 4,131 1,569
Contributions to retirement scheme BRE ZHK 99 12
6,926 2,445
The remunerations of the remaining two (2009: one) highest paid H#SME(ZZEZENF  —RB)&aFHMIA
individuals fall within the following bands. TAREEE DA TIAR :
2010 2009
—E-BE -—TThH
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 7 2,000,001 7T — 7 82,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 7 4,000,001 7T — & #4,500,0007T 1 -
2 1

FREE
RBEHMR  AEEREC BB ERME L
ZERNIARBERRE

43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contingent liabilities
in respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to:

2010 2009

—E2-25 —TTNF

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Banking facilities granted to associates RTBMERRZRITEE 120,928 194,443
Banking facilities granted to BTHEZEHEEZ

jointly controlled entities RITEE 262,430 435,050

383,358 629,493
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43 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 43
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had contingent

RABE @)

RB|ERR - NRAIAED B AERMEL

liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in ZHERBSABEBRE
relation to:
2010 2009
—E-F2F —ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries RTYTHBARZIETEE 809,444 1,076,635
Banking facilities granted to associates BYPEENTZETEE 120,928 194,443
Banking facilities granted to RrTHRAEHREZ
jointly controlled entities RITEE 262,430 435,050
Performance bonds and demand bonds of MEBARBEETAEHZ
subsidiaries under certain contracts BAREBELRERE 85,064 109,472
1,277,866 1,815,600
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s share of contingent RBEBMR  AEEMEEAREZESICRZ
liabilities of its jointly controlled entities are as follows: SSARBEWT :
2010 2009
—E-EH5 —ZFNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities 45 FIR(TRL IR P HREH B 2
granted to certain buyers of the jointly MENETERZZBEEN
controlled entities’ properties IR 123,086 52,835
44 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 4 BREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had capital RBEBRR  NEBZEREEWT
commitment as follows:
The Group AEHE
The Group
RE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTNAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 7 T T
Contracted but not provided for in respect of MTHIEE BT & HERTE
— acquisition of plant and equipment _BEABMELEG 184 613
— a property development project _—EAWmEZEREIER 300,397 32,419
— acquisition of an associate - A— &R A = 35,000
300,581 68,032
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of m—EMEZRBEEERE
a property development project BREL 7 EE 1,999,584 2,344,260
2,300,165 2,412,292
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44 CAPITAL COMMITMENT (continued)

45

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s share of the capital

4 BEXREAE®

REEHMR  AEEMEERRESNEEZ

commitment of its jointly controlled entities is as follows: BARAENT :
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Contracted but not provided for 22 41 R EHIE 288,269 67,402
Authorised but not contracted for SHOEEAREYD 292,698 603,386
580,967 670,788

OPERATING LEASES 45 EEMEE

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

AEBMEREBA

AEEREFTHERBIAIBBE ZEXMEH
EMARAAXMNzKERESH  BHE

mEmn

2010 2009

—ZE-2F —ZTTNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T 78 T T

Within one year N—F R 115,004 108,786
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERFNR 97,615 97,206
Over five years AEE 2,779 4,834
215,398 210,826

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such additional rentals.

FREEAEERREEAES AL A TE
EREIEMNES (RAES)(MB) 2 %&E -
ZERIHE—REMRREEZERAD
WREHEZEAHEMETE - At T A8

ERABERIME ZKE o
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45

(a)

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties and
completed properties for sale with a carrying value of approximately
HK$1,255,136,000 (2009: HK$819,000,000) and HK$58,816,000 (2009:
HK$69,000,000) respectively were rented out under operating leases.
All of the properties were leased out for periods ranging from one year
to five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following
periods is as follows:

45

EEMEE@®

AEBEESEHAEA

RBEFR  UEEMEHELA 2R EDE
FEEREENEZRBED NS BE
1,255,136,0007T ( ZZ = NLF : 7 #819,000,000
TC) N 78 58,816,000 L (— T E N F ¢ B
69,000,000 ) - ZEMEZHEFHAE—ER
F o AEERBIABBEzEXHEHAEER
RHORRAEEWSEDT ¢

2010 2009

—F-%BF Z—TTNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within one year N—F R 37,697 36,463
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_E2RFRN(BIEEEMSE) 11,605 22,458
49,302 58,921

SHARE OPTION

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 September
2002 for the primary purpose of providing the participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10%
limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Each grant of options to any Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by Independent Non-
executive Directors. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their
respective associates would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be
granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up
to the date of grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.
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46
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION (continued)

Share option scheme of the Company (continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors
which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of
grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted would be 25,502,240
shares. No options have been granted or exercised under the Scheme
during the year and none are outstanding as at 31 March 2010 (2009:

nil).

Share option of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (“CPHL”)

(i)

(ii)

Share option scheme - employee services

The share option scheme - employee services of a subsidiary of
the Company, CPHL (the “CPHL Scheme”) was adopted on
20 September 2002 and its terms are similar to the Company’s
Scheme. No options have been granted under the CPHL Scheme.

Share option — consultancy services

In addition to the share option scheme — employee services
mentioned in note 46(b)(i), on 10 February 2010, CPHL has
conditionally granted options to two consultants to subscribe
for an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares (after subdivision) at an
initial exercise price of HK$0.30 per share, subject to adjustment
and an option period of two years from the date of the option
agreement.

The options may only be exercisable after the relevant
consultants have provided the consultancy services and the
completion of the investments by CPHL or its subsidiaries,
in terms and conditions to the satisfaction of CPHL. The
consultancy services include sourcing for and introduction of
investment projects to CPHL and lining up of investors for the
said projects.

The fair value per option at grant date is HK$0.0856 and is
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

No option is exercised and lapsed during the reporting period.

The significant inputs into the Binomial Option Pricing Model
are as follows:

Share price at the grant date HK$0.265
Exercise price per share HK$0.30
Expected volatility 66.46%
Expected life of options 2 years
Expected dividend yield 0.24%
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.52%

The volatility measured at the standard derivation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
price over the last three years from the grant date.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options
amounting to HK$12,840,000 are to be recognised as share
option for consultancy services received over the vesting period
together with a corresponding increase in equity. The expenses
charged to the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 March 2010 amounted to HK$862,000.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong,
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying
within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are
required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs at a maximum of HK$1,000 per month to the
Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the
Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31
March 2010, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable in future years, was nil (2009:
HK$8,000). The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this
manner during the year was HK$34,000 (2009: HK$207,000). At 31
March 2010, contributions of HK$1,859,000 (2009: HK$2,057,000)
due in respect of the reporting period were paid over to the ORSO
Scheme in April 2010.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is
required to make monthly defined contributions at rates calculated as a
percentage of the monthly payroll.
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48 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N AT

48 FHEALTZRS
REAFEBMEATZEERHHEBEW

related parties are as follows: T

2010 2009
—2& _—ZTTHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T 7T T

Building management fee income received from & — & B & A B U EL 2 12 F
an associate EIEEBH 428 -
Interest income received from associates 55 &N AU ER 2 B B A 2,598 5,340

Interest income received from jointly B E 5 6 2 YE 2

controlled entities F B WA 11,782 1,418
Management fee received from associates BEERRIWR s EREER 5,270 -

Management fee received from a jointly
controlled entity

= *F’ﬁ CEEH W 2
EHEEHA 60 60

Management fee paid to an associate m—EBEARSNZERER (83) -
Maintenance fee paid to an associate M — ”* ERAEXNZRESE (135)
Purchases of inventories from an associate M — % ”‘ EREBERE = 29,174
Rental income received from an associate B —E Hgi Ena i E el A 3,987 456
Rental expenses paid to an associate m—EBEARSN2EE (35) -
Sales and marketing services income received from £ — & & 2 B U EL 2 4 & M E

an associate (note 6) AR 7 U A (B 7E6) 4,900 -
Secondment fee income received from an associate £ — & Bt & 2 7] U EY 2 & 3 & U A 129 -
Service charges income received from B— e QRUE 2

an associate AR 7% & A U A 149 -
Contract income received from B H [ 4% i) 1 5 U 2

jointly controlled entities S A BA 115,485 75,711

The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key
management of the Group, during the year are set out in note 42.

AERAGEES(RENMRARAEEEE
EEEKEB) ZFH BN a2
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49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 9 FERERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) REXEBELEZHS
2010 2009
—g-25 -TTAS
HKS$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Profit before taxation & %53 A Y A 549,035 3,556
Adjustments for: HE
Share of results of associates PTibE & ARl & (54,514) (7,482)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities Frih HEIEH e (23,002) 11,356
Interest income from bank deposits RITHFEF B YA (4,624) (16,996)
Interest income from associates BEZNaE 2 F Bl A (2,598) (5,340)
Interest income from jointly controlled entities BHREHREZFSEA (11,782) (1,418)
Interest expenses on bank loans and overdrafts ROEREBET 28X H 22,114 48,716
Interest paid on convertible bonds —f Tﬁ fo EZ R ELH 14,777 38,165
Dividend income from listed securities &7 2 R B WA (10,394) (4,259)
Depreciation T)‘T % 58,064 67,342
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments a7 S R IE B8 11,167 11,798
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hip R & EHH 9,212 1,597
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of REMEZARBEGEM),/
investment properties NN (179,781) 99,637
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BE - JEREN
equipment and prepaid lease payment, net MEREZ (k) BE F8 (7,028) 6,773
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ME BELXREBE2REERE 5,140 19,139
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREEE 29,174 129,279
Gain on disposal of : PEUNTEE K :
— 75% interest in CPT Group - CPTE E75%E & = (156,296)
—29% (2009: 49%) interest in -_E+FE \’é & B0t 2%
CHK Group (Z2% nfﬁ 49%) (25,482) (621,626)
— other subsidiaries - H b E A (6,765) -
Impairment loss on other intangible assets HihELEE Z R SEE 12,200 -
Gain on discount from step-up acquisition of R -EEEARER Y
interest in an associate - L e (3,269) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEITHEE 2KRENKE (94,533) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AHHEZRENRERE 46,243 10,552
Loss on investments at fair value through RERREAREREZ
profit or loss RENEE 27,854 160,739
Amortisation of properties for sale ﬁ EYE B 909 939
(Write back)/write down of properties for sale to (= %f% SR EEMESR
net realisable value ] &I R E (11,878) 26,717
Write down of inventories to net realisable value W WEEEM#IR%E 15,336 9,197
Bad debts (recovered)/written off (Bdem),/ T s ik (6,164) 20,429
Impairment loss on loans and receivables ERRERR 2 REER - 5,334
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial instruments, net PTEBBIEZ (W) EBE  F5 (22,778) 72,634
Share option granted by a listed subsidiary for —HETHB AR EARE
consultancy services % R R A 862 -
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative component of Al Ty@ KESTETIEL D2 A E
convertible bonds =)/ BB (30,488) 27,733
Loss on redemption of convertible bonds i @ —J Tﬁ‘ RESHZEE 31,101 -
Operating cash flows before movements HEBESEHRI I RE
in working capital Rens 338,108 (41,785)
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49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 49

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

RERE

EL NI )

(a) BEEREEZRE(H)

2010 2009
—E-FF —TENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T ST T
Changes in working capital EEESE
Increase in properties under development R B Y EEN (116,032) (154,663)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE0gm,/ md (40,816) 52,901
Decrease in properties for sale FEMER D 36,487 34,974
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments BWIRS - FHES RBENZER D 129,606 103,194
Decrease in amounts due from customers for RENTIIREREPLWE 2
contract work NIER D 44,665 7,635
Increase in derivative financial instruments, net PTEMET RSN R (19,033) (21,550)
Decrease in investments at fair value through RERERALEBREZ
profit or loss RER D 1,791 541,180
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to associates JE A B 2 2 BIIR FR 38 00, O ) 3,332 (5,837)
Increase in amounts due to customers for contract work gt & 4 TR EME P % {7 ZIEZ N 19,287 316,319
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, bill payable, deposits ~ JEfT IR 7K « BN EE - FARE K
and accruals BIRERL M CHD) 54,753 (93,574)
Increase/(decrease) in unearned insurance premium KmER BN ORd) 34,930 (2,965)
Decrease in outstanding insurance claims KRRBZRERD (29,172) (48,414)
Increase in deferred income I E U AN 1,103 1,025
Exchange difference E R R 26,232 20,593
Cash generated from operations EEERELE RS 485,241 709,033

—ZF—ZFFF 3R | Annual Report 2010

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B IR M AT
49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 9 ZERTREBRME®
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Step-up acquisition of interests in associates (b)) EEBEZENTZER
(i) On 30 September 2009, the Group acquired the remaining i) MZEENFHALBE=FH  X&EBMR—
76% registered capital of an associate, Guangzhou Chevalier BEtE N a s TEREWEEMNTE L
Development Company Limited, from the associate’s major BERAR A A F ER76%E lt &R o WiE
shareholders. Upon completion of the acquisition, the associate TRE  ZBMERARRALNEBR ZEE
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. MiEB AR
HK$’000
AT 7
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WEREBZIZHAK
Waiver of a receivable of the Group RN AN RN
from the 76% registered owners of the associate ToNIE R B A AR 1,416
Fair value of assets acquired (as shown below) FrBAEEZ A ARB(OTAAR) (6,164)
(4,748)
Transfer from interest in an associate (note 20) By — R 2N B 2 s (M sE20) 1,479
Gain on step-up acquisition of interest in an associate BE - E R 2w
(note 7) (B 5E7) (3,269)
Fair value of net assets acquired: FFEAEEZREZARE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) WE BB M ERE (ML) 59
Inventories 7E 1,675
Debtors, deposits and prepayments R - FHRe NTENKIE 7,796
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFENR S 318
Creditors and accruals ERER R ERTER (3,167)
Current income tax liabilities EHFMENRAR (517)
6,164
Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition: WHEMEEX ZHESMAFRE -
Bank balances and cash acquired FBARITEERES 318

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the Group’s
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year would
have been increased by HK$14,592,000 and HK$2,175,000
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Step-up acquisition of interests in associates (continued)

(ii)

On 31 March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% (ii)
issued share capital of an associate, Sinochina Enterprises
Limited (“SEL”), from the associate’s major shareholder. Upon
completion of the acquisition, SEL become a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.

19 HmEBELHRERMFT @

(b) EBBHEQTzEDHE)

Brzz2EMBAA -

R=ZZZAF=ZA=+—08 A5EMA
— @5 & A Az £ 2R FE U Sinochina
Enterprises Limited ([SELJ) #% T51%2 %
TR - RUREE TR & » SELEX R A&

HK$’000
BETT
Purchase consideration satisfied by: WEREZINAR

Cash paid 2R E 40,000
Cash consideration payable ENRERE 95,047
Fair value of net assets acquired (as shown below) FIBAEEFEZARBEW THATR) (16,683)
118,364

Transfer from interest in an associate (note 20) A pT(h — RN a2 s (B EE20) 53,179
Goodwill arising from the acquisition (note 17) WHEFTE £ 2 2 (M sE17) 171,543
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HEMBREME
49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Step-up acquisition of interests in associates (continued)

(ii)

9 HmEHREREBRMFT @

(b) EEBBEQTZEDSE)

(continued) (ii) (4&)
The net assets acquired on 31 March 2009 were as follows: R-EENF=ZA=+—"HFBAEE
FEMT -
Fair value  Carrying value
DA AE R E &
HK$’000 HK$’000
RMTR _ RMTR
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - BE REE (M) 48,328 48,455
Prepaid lease payments (note 16) T8 1+ 10 & 3R IE (it 52 16) 1,640 916
Other intangible assets (note 18) E b & E (M FE18) 10,337 -
Interests in associates Frib Bt & R Al 2w 1,079 1,079
Amount due from an associate & Uk — i B 2 R Al bR 5K 311 311
Inventories 7E 5,838 5,838
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIR R - T iRE RIBEFFKIA 22,079 22,079
Bank balances and cash RITEFLERE 35,684 35,684
Amount due to a shareholder FER—Z IR R IR (14,733) (14,733)
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERRR  FAKS MTEIRE R (27,117) (27,117)
Dividend payable FE AR B (35,684) (35,684)
Current income tax liabilities EHEHRERE (2,164) (2,164)
Bank borrowings RITE N (9,823) (9,823)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 39) IEIET T B & (M 5E39) (3,064) (1,260)
32,711 23,581
Equity interest acquired P RE AR R #E 25 51%
Total fair value of net assets acquired g NEEFEARBERE 16,683
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: WEREE s RERE F5E
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration paid ERNBEeRE (40,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired EBACETEFERRS 35,684
(4,316)

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2008, the Group’s
consolidated revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended
31 March 2009 would have been increased by HK$277,400,000

and HK$11,687,000 respectively.

WREBR T )\FNA—HE4 8l
AEBHEE-_TTNF=_A=+—HIE
FREZEEWERERE R 5 5%
7 277,400,000 7T & 78 #11,687,0007T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B RE N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

19 HmEBELHRERMFT @

() HEWEBRA

(i) On 17 June 2009, the Group disposed of its 90.1% interest in (i) RZZEZENFAATtH AEERB

subsidiaries engaged in project management and consultancy
services in Mainland China to an independent third party.

The net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of on 17 June 2009

were as follows:

VE=ZSTHEEARPEARMLE =R E

I8 K i AR A 2 MY B 2 R AV 90,194 25 ©

BzBERENT :

BEHENBARR_ZZTAFE AT+

HK$’000

BT R

Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 11
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EUWRE - TFHIRE RTEMNIRR 29,634
Bank balances and cash RITERFLEERE S 8,164
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE A R R AR R R RIE (27,073)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERAER RAKLSNERER (169)
Current income tax liabilities EHIFTE™RAaE (323)
Minority interest LB R (3,853)
Exchange reserve INERBRE (5,721)
Net assets as at the date of disposal REEHB s EEFE 670

Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWETT = ¢
Cash received o E 4 34,508
Waiver of amount due to the Company AN EAWNGIL TS (27,073)
AP 72
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 7) HE M B R Rl 2 Was (B EE7) 6,765
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEA RS RAFE :

HK$’000

BT T

Cash consideration received EHERERE 34,508
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHEZHRTEFERES (8,164)
26,344
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B & M AT

49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 9 HERERERMT @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c) HEHEBAQTE
(ii)  Disposal of the Group’s interest in CHK Group (i) HEFXEBERELEEBEEFZEn
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 28 November i g — g FE)N\E+ — )5] + N\ B2z
2008, the Group disposed of its 49% interest in the CHK Group EEWME AEBER_ZZ AN ¢ = A
for a consideration of HK$668,360,000 on 31 March 2009. As =+ —HEESREARE 1% R
at 31 March 2009, the assets and liabilities related to the CHK Bz ETEBEE Z19% R KEA
Group were presented as held for sale. 7B #668,360,0007C ° AR - ZEZ LF = A
=—+—H EXHFAKENEERARE
BE2AEE -
Pursuant to the same agreement, the Group has further disposed BER Wz AEBR_ZETZTNE
of its 2% interest in the CHK Group on 15 December 2009 for +—B+AH J«/{ (B 75 %27,280, OOOTI:E
a consideration of HK$27,280,000. Upon the completion of HERELTEBEE 22000z - B E
the disposal of the 2% interest, the remaining 49% interest is 200FE TR TR 1B 0 2 T 49%E R A EAR &£
accounted for as an associate by the Group. ZHE RN A AR ©
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWE SR -
Cash received 2 U R4 27,280
Less: Professional fees and expenses B BEEBRARIH (292)
26,988
Less: Consolidated net assets of CHK B BEHEHEIBEEEBZEE
Group disposed of BEEFE
Assets of disposal group (note) HEEBE 2 &EE (M) 444,913
Liabilities of disposal group (note) HEEBEZBE (W) (220,803)
Exchange reserve HMVE (8,749)
Retained profits as at RZBEZENF+ZA=1T—HZ
31 December 2009 (note) 1R m F (M aF) (140,048)
Net assets as at R-ZZETZNAF+_A=+—H
31 December 2009 ZEEFE 75,313
2% of consolidated net assets of CHK BEHEELTHEFTEE 2%
Group disposed of ZIEeEERE 1,506
Gain on disposal of 2% interest HEE LTSS EH 2% =
in CHK Group (note 7) 2 Wz (B E7) 25,482
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: HEMEEZRSREFE
Cash consideration received BEWIRERE 27,280
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHEZRTEFLERE (118,322)
Professional fees and expenses HELZHNLSTH (292)
(91,334)
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(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 49
CASH FLOWS (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c)
(ii) Disposal of the Group’s interest in CHK Group (continued)

Note:

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the acquirer, 51% of
retained profits of the disposal group as at 31 December 2009 are to be
shared by the Group (according to the equity interest in the CHK Group
before 15 December 2009). The retained profits will be distributed to the

mEe

HEMBHER T

BEREBRMEF @

HEME 2R (8

(i1)

HEXFBRA L ZEREE 2 #i (5)
i

BEAEERKES ZHE  HEEER=
ZENF+ A=+ BHZRBEFNEAE
Efh51% (BER T NF+=-_A+HHBA
RETHEEEEZEIZIME) - RB B H B
TEBR-_Z——FNA=Z+—AUBREDIK

Group as dividend no later than 31 August 2011.

TAEH -
The net assets of the CHK Group disposal of on 31 December 2009 were EHEELITEBEERN _ZETNE+ -8
as follows: =ST—RZEEFENOT :
HK$’000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ES N 8,696
Prepaid lease payments T HERIE 3,516
Goodwill (note 17) 2 (K aEL7) 3,259
Deferred tax assets RIERIE & & 1,450
Inventories FE 49,380
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FERIR - FHIES RTEMFKE 153,439
Amounts due from customers for contract work MANTIREERTS W Z K18 106,029
Prepaid tax SERRETRE 822
Bank balances and cash RITHEERR S 118,322
Assets of disposal group HEEECEE 444,913
Amount due to ultimate holding company J& 1~ S AR AE R A B IR K (28,085)
Amounts due to customers for contract work MANIREREPL,I N2 IE (50,098)
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBIT A (51)
Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals ERER  EBNRE TFARERERER (122,022)
Current income tax liabilities EHMEVEE (19,882)
Bank borrowings RAITE K (434)
Deferred tax liabilities R IE A F (231)
Liabilities of disposal group HEEE81F (220,803)
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FEHMBHRENT

49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 49
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c)

(iii) Disposal of the Group’s 75% interest in CPT Group
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 16 May 2008
(the “CPT Agreement”), the Group disposed of its 75% interest
in CPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies GmbH and its subsidiaries
(the “CPT Group”) to an independent third party. The disposal
was completed on 25 July 2008.

HEBERERMT @

o B A B ()

(iii) 4 & 7K 5 B HCPT 5 B 2 75%# 25
BEZZEZNFEA+SAZEER W
#([CPTH=])  AEERABILE=7
i & FACPT Chevalier Pipe Technologies
GmbHK H Mt & 2 &([CPT& B ) 2
75%H % c RHEER_ZTZENFLA

“t+HRHEEK -
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZWRAR :
Cash received BER e 233,100
Consideration receivable FEW R B 58,275
Less: Professional fees and expenses W BEBALTH (11,950)
279,425
Less: Consolidated net assets of B EHECPTERZ
CPT Group disposed of HAEBEEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEE&E 181,459
Goodwill (note 17) A& (M sF17) 46,744
Other intangible assets HM@\EEE 24,126
Deferred tax assets EXERBEE 17,739
Inventories 78 80,388
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWIER - FHEe AN A 188,411
Amounts due from customers for MEHNTIRRERNER
contract work WE 2 5/ IE 101,045
Bank balances and cash RITEFERA® 30,358
Amount due to a shareholder JE 1<t % BB 30 (96,409)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIER FAERSLERER (295,333)
Current income tax liabilities EHMGHARE (247)
Bank borrowings RITHE K (176,083)
Other loans HAet a3k (1,372)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE (393)
Minority interests DHRE#E R (23,454)
Exchange reserve SVEH B (18,288)
Net assets as at RZZEZNEFLAZTHAZ
25 July 2008 BEFE 58,691
75% of consolidated net assets of CPTE B 275%E HE 2
CPT Group disposed of HEEEFE 44,018
Less: Acquirer’s share of loss (note) B W R h 2 B (B EE) 79,111
Gain on disposal of 75% interest in B HECPTEE75%E & 2
CPT Group (note 7) Uz (BT 5E7) 156,296
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEMEEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received 2R ERE 233,100
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHECRITEFRES (30,358)
Professional fees and expenses BEEBANTH (11,950)
190,792
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A A
49 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 9 RERTREBRME®
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c) HEHEBRRAE
(iii) Disposal of the Group’s 75% interest in CPT Group (continued) (iii) H E X E B RCPT & B 2 75%# 2 (18)
Note: B 3E -
Pursuant to the CPT Agreement, all rights to profits or losses derived BECPTHzE  RN_EZENENA—Hzk
for the fiscal year commencing on or after 1 April 2008 should be 1% B %A HY B IR Eﬁ Fr B EZ i Al 2K BT 1 2 BT
proportionately shared among the Group and the acquirer with reference BHEF - ERR z]x £ E K UWEE T = B RCPT
to their respective percentage of shareholding in the CPT Group. EE 7 ARKE E  HZ L Il B AN S [ &Hﬁ'{ i
Acquirer’s share of loss from 1 April 2008 to 25 July 2008 amounted Fo# -f TS /\gﬂ BA—HZ-_ZZN
to HK$79,111,000 and this amount has been taken into account in the FE+HA-_+HRBWKEFFAGZ ;gg B A ,ﬁ K
calculation of the gain on disposal. 79,111,0007C * WS BEBEEFTE L E K&
Moo
(d) Acquisition of a subsidiary (d WE—REKHEBLLF
On 2 October 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share NZZEZENF+A-_H  NEERBILE =
capital of Great Dragon Petroleum Limited (“Great Dragon”) from FWBEEEARERAR(IER]BEETR
independent third parties. R 7 100%KE 25 ©
HK$’000
BET T
Purchase consideration satisfied by: BERBZXMNAR :
Cash paid EfNEE 5,000
Direct expenses relating to the acquisition ERWBrEES T 111
Fair values of net liabilities acquired FREFEBEZARE 6
Goodwill arising from the acquisition (note 17) W BE BT EE £ 2 e = (M aE17) 5,117
The net liabilities of Great Dragon acquired on 2 October 2009 are as RZZEZNFTHAZBABAERECAEF
follows: BT
Carrying
Fair value amounts
NAHE R EE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
Other creditors and accruals HE@ENRIERERER 6 6
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WIEMEE 2R MEIFHAE
HK$’000
BET T
Cash consideration paid ENBEeNRE (5,000)
Direct expenses relating to the acquisition BRAWE 2 EBEEZS (111)
(5,111)
Since the acquisition, Great Dragon did not contribute revenue to the BWELAK ERITERAANEE TR K -
Group and had incurred loss of HK$3,594,000 for the year ended 31 BREBE-ZZT—ZEF=A=1+—HIFEHK
March 2010. 15 &5 1878 % 3,594,0007C °
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the Group’s MR T NEN )EJ E| AT BIARE
consolidated revenue and the consolidated loss for the year would have EIDiAFIN E EzielamRizaEEag HRlE
been increased by HK$450,000 and HK$16,000 respectively. hin 7% & 450,000 7T 2 7 16,00071: °
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e RR M
50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50 EEMEAFE
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BRTR FRARACRT
i g% & BRBRA/ Rt RESEMRAER FE
NAER HEHER E<Fi] R #E B# B XK
% %
Capital World (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$5,000 5,000 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
EZ(FR)ERDA BA g 75,0007 EERER
Champ Success (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 57.01  Restaurant
e (FE)ERAF Bk LB BT 2B
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Supply and installation
Hong Kong Limited &5 & BT of aluminium
EL(RIR)ERRARAA building materials
and curtain walls
B RSN LR
Big e R
Tk
Chevalier (Aluminium Engineering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation
Limited (note d) 0 i AE1007T of aluminium
HT(8RIR)ARAA () Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 building materials
BRI BT and curtain walls
RN R
Big 2 HER
i
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common C$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of
mex L@ 0IMERTT automobiles
REHER
BERE
Chevalier (Building Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation
Engineering) Limited (note d) 56 *38 V& H1007T of building materials
HEt (@i IiR)ER AR (FzEd) Deferred HKS$2 2 - 100 and equipment
BT BT B R R
Zk
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment Mainland China ~ Not applicable RMB250,000,000  Not Applicable - 100 Investment holding
Management Limited (note a) B A i i@ A R #250,000,000 7T NER and providing
HE (M) REEBERRA management service
(Ff5ta) REER R
REEERY
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LA ERT

50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 EEMEAT @
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares  held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BRTR VNNCIES2TRE: Ch)
% Kkt BERE/ kit REASEMRAEE E
DEAER BHAER Epi] R #E HE B %%
% %
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common C$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of
nex Efi 101MEXRT automobiles
REHER
BERS
Chevalier Civil Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Civil engineering
(Hong Kong) Limited B i B E1007T TARIRE
EtEATR(BE)ERAA
Chevalier (Civil Engineering) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$49,991,002 49,991,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited (note d) BA g 78 #49,991,0027C TATRE
AL (EATR)ERAR (M) Deferred HK$24.964002 24,964,002 - 100
BT 78 #524,964,0027C
Chevalier Cold Storage and Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 75 Operation of a cold
Logistics Limited BB i@ BT storage warehouse
HT-REMRARRA and logistic business
BERRRER
WRE
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.6  Building construction
Company Limited BB T 7 #60,500,0007T and maintenance
A+(BE)BRDA BTFRERRE
Chevalier Construction Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
(Hong Kong) Limited (note d) 575 g A E1,0007T BFEE
At (RR)ARAR (M) Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100
BT 78 10,0007
Chevalier (Corporate Management) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Provision of corporate
Limited &5 i) BT management services
EL(hREB)BRAA RELZEE RS
Chevalier Development (S) Pte. Ltd. ~ Singapore Ordinary $$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
# g g 2,500,000%T 115 7T MERA
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Philippines Common Pes08,750,000 87,500 - 100 Waste disposal
FErE Lim 8,750,000 treatment services
FREHER BEBRNREEK
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HEMBRENT

50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 FEMB AT @
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital ~ Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
ERTR APRABEDRT
i e L) BRRE/ R BRASEMRAER FE
AEER BHRER Ehl MR L B B %%
% %
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of electrical
Limited a5 i 75 #69,200,0007T and mechanical
HI(BEIR)BERAA equipment and
provision of project
management service
ZEBEIER
REERER
AR 7%
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 Environmental
HT-(BERMBERAR e L@ 75 148,600,000 7 engineering
RRIRE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
Et(RERER)BRRA e il 7 #1,000,0007C RE R
Chevalier Insurance Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance underwriting
EtRBARLA 0 L& 7 200,000,000 R EH
Chevalier International (USA) Inc. USA Common US$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery trading
=351 Rt 4,012,003 7T HEEH
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Trading and servicing
EIRRIRARAA 0 EgE] BT of computer and
business machines
BRREERS
BHR#EE
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of computer
(noteb) (Pff7Eb) e TR 18,980,000 £k and business machines
Preference BAHT1,020,000 10,200 - 100 ERREEHEZES
B% 1,020,000%% &%
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary Macau Pataca 100 - 100 Building construction
HT(RFM)BRAR i Tia 100,000 and installation of
100,0005% F9 & air-conditioning
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

50 FEMEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares  held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BRTR VNNCIES2TRE: Ch)
% Kkt BERE/ kit REASEMRAEE E
DEAER BHAER Epi] R #E HE B %%
% %
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Network systems and
Limited &5 8 e 0T solution services
Er (@M BRAR BERG R
R %
Chevalier Network Solutions Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100  Trading of
Thai Limited R T 15,000,000 £k telecommunication
equipment
ENREES
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of computer
HT-(BEZ5)BRAA BB Ll 7 %100,0007T and office equipment
and provision
of repair and
maintenance service
EREMRERE
B RRHEHEE
RRER®
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited Bermuda/ Ordinary HK$112,770,008.50  2,255,400,170 57.01 - Investment holding
(listed on the Stock Exchange) Hong Kong 3] 7 1112,770,008.50 7T (after REER
HtZoaBRARRE ARE/EE subdivision)
(B P E7) (Fa%)
Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and
Hong Kong Limited BB L 78 #£43,400,0007T construction
HETBEBEBERBERAT for flushing water,
cooling water, gas,
sewages and drainage
pipelines
Wt RERUK -
RIK R
BRRKREE
Chevalier Property Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Limited (note d) BB Eg 7 360,000,000 7T and investment
HIWERRARQA (M) Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 MEEERKRE
BT B 51T
Chevalier Property Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property management
Limited (note d) &5 Lim AE1007T and security services
HIERNXERARAA Deferred HK$1,002 1,002 - 00 MEEER
(Pff 5£d) EIT B 1,0027T RE R
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HEHEBEN

50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50 FEKEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital ~ Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BBTR ERRARECRT
i g% kt BRBRA Kt BRAFEMRAESE B
DAER BHAER ¥l R3UeN L= EE  BE XK
% %
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,165,000 1,165,000 - 100 Installation and
EL(HERBARAT BB i 75 11,165,000 7T maintenance of
satellite antennae
ZERREHE
BHRXE
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
ELRERRAR 'R g 78 %1,500,0007C e L2
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$183,400,200 1,834,002 - 100  Civil engineering
Limited (note d) BE g 75 183,400,200 TATE
ETERRABRAR (M) Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - -
BT 78 25,936,007
CPT Asia Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$230,000,000 230,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
AT EBMRTNERERAR &R L& 78 230,000,000 7C REZR
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$6,080,832 6,080,832 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
REBRAF aA g 78 6,080,8327C EERER
Full Ascent Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 75 Property investment
BAREARLA 20 LB BT NERE
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 57.01  Restaurant
SBE(BB)BRAF BA BB 7 10,0007 £E
Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$176 176 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
BEF(BB)ERRA 20 LB BEL76T EERERE
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
ER(BB)ERAA Bk i BHT EERER
Gold Express Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property development
Limited (note d) BB 3 B 1007 NEERE
EAERER A (M) Deferred HKS2 2 - 100
BT BET
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$100 100 49 51 Property investment
eRREBERAA BB i BH1007 NERE
Good Process Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$149 149 100 - Property development
BEAR AR (M) B L& B 19T NEER
Deferred HKS$51 51 - 100
BT BT
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

50 FEMEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares  held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BRTR VNNCIES2TRE: Ch)
i, g% Kkt BERE/ kit REASEMRAEE E
DEAER BHAER Epi] R #E EE B XK
% %
Igor’s Group Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 5701  Restaurant
EAGEEEARAA B g BT 2B
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 5701  Trading of food and
EARARATF &k Ef 7 %10,0007T beverages
ERESH
Lac Kar Investment Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
AMEXRBRAF BA gl 75 3,600,0007C MERE
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common C$101,100 10,100 - 100 Property investment
nmex L@ 101,100 1 2 AT and hotel operation
NERER
BReBEXY
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common C$1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
IE R LOOIIE AT MERE
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10 10 - 5701  Restaurant and bar
REBREARAA &R g BT EERBER
Matterhorn Properties Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 Property investment
Islands/ Efi IE NERE
Hong Kong
RERAEE/
BE
New Global (HK.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
M (ER)ARRA BA gl 7 110,007 EENERE
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 5701  Restaurant and bar
EX(BB)ERAF &R i BT EERBR
Pacific Coffee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$77,355 77,355 - 57.01  Trading of coffee
BB L@ B 877,3557T products, operation

—ZF—ZFFF 3R | Annual Report 2010
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and provision of

maintenance services
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e R AR g
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HREMBRENT

50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50 FEKEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital ~ Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
BBTR ERRARECRT
i g% kt BERE/ Kt BRAFEMRAESE B
DAER BHAER %5 R3UeN L= EE  BE XK
% %
Pacific Coffee Company (S) PteLtd ~ Singapore Ordinary $$100,000 100,000 - 57.01  Operation of coffee
IR Ea 100,000 201 3% 7T shops
kR
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
ER(BE)ERRA BB g BT EEREE
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 57.01  Operation of coffee
E 8 LYY shops
Rk E
PCC Investment (II) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 57.01  Operating of coffee
G R BT shops
kR
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
REBRAR BA g BT NERE
Plastream Pipe Technologies Australia Ordinary A$294,195.21 29,419,521 - 7751  Franchising,

Pty Ltd B 3] 29419528 7T manufacturing and
marketing of
products and systems
in the pipe
renovation market,
manufacture and
marketing of air
conditioning ducts
and components

NEBBHMS
FERRERZ
RATEE Bk
kMG HEE
RREREMHZ
HERTHHE
Proud Rich Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BRAR QA (M) BA g BET NERE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
BT BT
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA ERT

50 FEMEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares  held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
EBTR KRARARACRT
i, g% k& BERE/ ke BRASEMRAESE FE
DAER BHAER Epi] AfRA #E EE B XK
% %
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China ~ Not applicable US$3,650,000  Not applicable - 100 Property management
Management Co., Ltd (note a) ehcilaapi TEH 3,650,000% JT NEH and providing
FEHIEERERAA property
(Ff5Fa) management
consultation
MEERRRH
NEEEHKS
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Mainland China ~ Not applicable US$1,000,000  Not applicable - 100 Trading of lifts,
Co., Ltd. (note a) B A i NEH 1,000,0003 7T NEH escalators, electrical
HEETESERRA (M) and mechanical
equipment
FHIEH - ERBR
BEREES
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate Mainland China ~ Not applicable US$18,000,000  Not applicable - 80  Property development
Development Co. Ltd. (note c) Hh B A i TiEA 18,000,0003 7T i@ and investment
LTHRAEEHERRARAT NEERLRE
D)
Sinochina Enterprises Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100 - 5701  Investment holding and
Islands/ TE 100E 7T operations of
Hong Kong restaurants and bars
RERAEE/ REEBRLEE
BE EENERZ XS
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
HE(BB)ERAF BE g 7 %10,0007C EENEE
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
% g 15,000,000 & MERE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$100 100 - 57.01  Restaurant and bar
ER(BR)ARAF &R g B 1007 EERER
Talent Luck Limited (note d) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development
RERLARD (M) &5 £ 78 270,000,007 and investment
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 YEERENEE
BT BT
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50 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50 FEKEQR

Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
orregistration/  Class of share capital/ No.of  registered capital  Principal
Name of company operation shares registered capital shares held by the Company activities
Directly Indirectly
ERTR ERRARAECRT
i g% &t BRBRA Bt RASEMRSES B
RAEE EHER Y] AR L= BE Mg %5
% %
Union Pearl Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Property investment
ERBRERRA Bk i BT NERE
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Property investment
BAERBRAA B L& BT NERE
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co. Ltd. Mainland China ~ Not applicable RMB74,142,781  Not applicable - 70 Hotel operation
(note c) P E A Tam AR 74,142,781 @R REBEXRH
EHELRBEEBR AR (M)
RENETEREHERE Mainland China ~ Not applicable RMB400,000,000  Not applicable - 96  Property development
BREMAF (notec) (HfEEc)  HEIAM TE A A #400,000,0007C TER NEER
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common C$10 10 - 100 Property investment
IEY e IEY NERE
Notes: Bt 3E -
(a)  Established in Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises. (a) AINEBEELERFBEAMAKL
(b)  The preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference (b) BEBRABIFRFI0%  MZARZENRKRE
shares of this company carry one vote. ERMAE—F o
(c)  Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint () NAFIHINEERLERPBEAMMKIL -
ventures.
(d)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to (d) FMAEERMHEEREE mER EIRERE

participate in any distribution upon winding up.
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PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

51

TEHERQT

HEBMBHERNE

Effective
percentage of
issued capital/

Place or registered capital
country of held by
incorporation/  Class of the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
RATEEEH
A, EBITRAR
BEARER iy BB =R igrig bzl AfRAEE FTEXH
%
Chevalier Engineering (S) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary 49 Installation and
b0 3 Eim maintenance of lifts and
escalators
FERRETEH K
BHRH
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
HE-(FH)ARAF BB LA maintenance of lifts and
escalators
HE  ZRRRFRE
T+ B B B R
Chevalier Lifts Engineering (Shenzhen) Mainland China Not applicable 49 Installation and
Co., Ltd. A B A i A maintenance of lifts and
HITEBRIRORIDARAT escalators
TENRETEH R
R
Chevalier Singapore Holdings Pte. Ltd. ~ Singapore Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
HEHMBERLABR DA #T AN R maintenance of lifts and
escalators
HE  ZRRRE
%M%& K
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
Company Limited & ] maintenance of lifts and
ERTRARAAF escalators
HE  ZRERE
Tt B 7 N B R
KMG Pipe Technologies GmbH Germany Ordinary 25 Pipe-line engineering and
1= i@ maintenance,

—ZF—ZFFF 3R | Annual Report 2010

rehabilitation and
construction of pipelines,
including sewage,
cleaning, gas and water
pipelines, and civil and
structural engineering
BiE %%&V@%L
TR(BEFZK ER -
MR R AR R E +R
NAEBIRE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEHEBEN

51 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued) 51 EEBEQT @)
Effective
percentage of
issued capital/
Place or registered capital
country of held by
incorporation/  Class of the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
RRBEERE
AL, B BITRAH
BENTEH Hb B SR B R 40 B! AR ERE TEXEK
%
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Property investments
BENKERQA & & MERE
Sekisui NordiTube Technologies SE Sweden/Belgium Ordinary 25  Supply PHOENIX process
(formerly known as NordiTube It SRR ER for pipe rehabilitation
Technologies SE) projects
(AT NordiTube Technologies SE) £ FEPHOENIX{E & 11 T
MmN MEBEEE
EEHBZA
Sekisui Rib Loc Group Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 25  Franchising, manufacturing
M T and marketing of
products and systems
in the pipe renovation
market, manufacture
and marketing of air
conditioning ducts and
component
REBBH MG EER R
ES A SIS S
ELMGHER
BRRENTHZ
ELMGHER
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China  Not applicable 49 Installation and
Engineering Co., Ltd. o B A 38 A maintenance of lifts and
FPEELTERTREER DA escalators
RERNRETEHE R
BB
Sekisui SPR Europe GmbH Germany Ordinary 25  Pipe rehabilitation
(formerly known as Sekisui CPT 1= 5 *m BiEEE
GmbH)
(A1 78 Sekisui CPT GmbH)
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and
BWERRELTBR AR BB LA provision of concrete
HERREHRRLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

51

HEMBHER T

FEBE QT (@)

Effective
percentage of
issued capital/

Place or registered capital
country of held by
incorporation/  Class of the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
EABBEEH
A% BBITRAR
BENAEW RS E R iR 10 5! MR EE TEER
%
)RS REE S ERAR Mainland China  Not applicable 36 Trading of motor
R A3 vehicles and provision of
maintenance services
REESHR
REHERERS
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales,
RZEH(PRH)ERA B AR A i i installation, repair and
maintenance of lifts and
escalators
e RIRE TR R
BHRH
Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales,

Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.
REEHOEB)ER QA

B A3

i@ A

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these

associates is in proportion to its ownership interest.

installation, repair and
maintenance of lifts and

escalators
HIERRE R R
R N

AEBEEEBERRZANABRNIZE
HAEED ZHLHIEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEHEBEN

52 PRINCIPAL JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 52 FEHEE&IDE
Effective
percentage of
issued share
Place or country capital/registered
of incorporation Form of share capital held
or registration/  Class of business by the Company
Name of jointly controlled entity operation shares held  structure indirectly Principal activities
3 ARAMBERE
3V EBITRAH
HEEHEXERE HEHE R R 10 5! BREBER ZMRAERE IEXE
%
Evernoon Century Limited British Virgin Ordinary Incorporated 49 Investment holding
ERHLEBFRA R Islands Tim EEi REER
REBEXES
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Civil engineering
BamEEaR AR B8 e 1 TARIR
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Building
BamAEZARADA s g AT maintenance
BFRE
ZRHEEBREARAA Mainland China Not Sino-foreign 51 Property
(note 32 (b)) (FI&EF32(b)) A [ A b applicable owned equity development
NiEH joint venture L
hONEBRE
bR B IS EMR AR /AR Mainland China  Not Domestic 44 Property
AR A b applicable enterprise development
AN iE A NEDRE MEERE
RESE T EiHEZERGR AT Mainland China Not Wholly- 49  Property
A B A i applicable foreign development
TiEA owned MERER
enterprise
SEBE R E
AR R R T BIBBIE B R A A Mainland China Not Domestic 49  Hotel operation
=RETlNpl applicable enterprise L TS
A5 A NED®E
FIE 4 R EEHER 2% Mainland China Not Sino-foreign 46 Property
BRAF] (note 32(a)) AR A b applicable owned equity development
(BF5E32(a)) 4 A joint venture MEER

53

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these jointly

controlled entities is in proportion to its ownership interest.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform

with the presentation of current year.

FINEERE

AEBZEEARENECRZAMKERTD
HHERBRE RS ZLLPIFE -

53 LEEE

=

ETHRBFEEHNDBUELAFREZER
TR -
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